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'Chair's foreword -
Charles Randell -

Financial services affect the
lives of everyone. And, as this
Annual Report shows, keeping
pace with the depth and breadth
of developments in financial
services canbe a challenging
balancing act. We must act
swiftly and decisively to tackle
harm to consumers, particularly
the mostvulnerable.Inthe _
process, we have to make some
difficult choices, learn from what
works and what doesn't —and be
openabout both. .

Some of our prioritie’s are beyond
ourimmediate control. As our
Business Plan for the next year
explains, we will continueto -
devote aconsiderable part of our
resources to Brexit. A

At the sametime, our remit
continues to grow. This year, for

. example, we will take over the
regulation of claims management
companies. And, as this
Report demonstrates, modern
technology requires regulation
that both keeps pace with current
developments and anticipates
their evolution.

Technology is key to delivering
financial advice, products and
services to meet society's
changing needs. It can slash
costs, join up information and
services and offers access to
financial services to new groups
of consumers. Innovation so far

has barely touched the surface
of whatis, and will be, possible
inthe industry. Butitremains a
double-edged sword. It allows
more people than ever to access
essential financial services, but
may also expose themtorisk,

' including the risks of online

fraud and unfair use of their
data. Thereis also therisk that
some consumers—vulnerable
consumers —get left behind.

The FCAhasbeenaconsistent
championof FinTechand
RegTech. Our advocacy and
experience has encouraged’
regulatorsin otherjurisdictions
to follow suit. lhope and expect
that the number of these joint
programmes, both formal and
informal, willgrow. Not least
because financial innovationon a
global scale requires consistent
standards of global regulation.

As financial services have
become globalised, so has
financial crime. Whatever
shape Brexit eventually takes,
maintaining and deepening our .
partnerships with international
regulators and law enforcement

" agencies.willremainvital. The

UKis, and mustremain,an
inhospitable place for financial
crime. Bothbecause of the
inherent damage this type of
crime causes, and to ensure.
the UKremains a global centre
for attracting andtransacting



National Audit Office

4
J

[

legitimate business. Financial
crime cannot have ahome here.

llook forward to meeting and

~ working with firms and consumer

groups over the coming years.

. Bothwillbenefit fromthe FCA's

move to our new Stratford office,
which provides the technical

" infrastructure we need to

regulate effectively. But moving
to Stratford is more than simply
moving buildings. We willbe " -
joining an existing community
whichis very different to thatof
Canary Wharfand we wiltbe much
closer to the consumers our work
protects. We willwork to e‘nsuré _
that we are a genuine part ofthat
community, and supportthe
people who live there.

Our move to Stratfordis also a
great opportunity to challenge
ourselves to work differently:-

to be more collaborative across
the whole of the FCA, streamline
our processes, and be faster to

Financial Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

-delivéer fair outcomes. As Chair-

Iwill ensure that the FCA Board -
supports Andrew Bailey and his
senior leadership team inhdo(ing
this, and that the FCA challenges
itself to build onits considerable
achievements to be the best it
canbe.

lam honoured and delighted to
have been appointed Chair of.
the FCAatatimeinits history
whichis both challenging and
fult of possibilities. | would like

* to pay tribute to the work of my |

predecessor, John Griffith-Jones,
who chaired the FCAinits first five
years. | look forward to the next

chapterinthe FCA's development.

(1 (\}m

Charles Rahdel[.
Chair
Financial Conduct Authority

Chair's foreword
Charles Randell
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We have to make some

difficult choices, learn
from what works and -
what doesn’t"—and'be
openaboutboth

/4
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Chief Executive's statement
~Andrew Bailey

Welcome to our 2017/18
Annual Report. It shows what
we have achieved against

the priorities in our Business
Plan. In line with Our Mission,
it also seeks to explain both
-the direct and indirectimpact
our work has had on consumer
protection, market integrity and .
competitionin the firms and
markets we requlate.

I hope itis also apparent that
we have started to measure
our impact and the public value
we deliver in more meaningful
ways. We will continue to make
changes to the way we do

this as we develop new ways

of evaluating our actions and
interventions.

While this Annual Report
illustrates the wide range of our
activities, there are three key
areas that particularly define
our work this year.

EU Withdrawal

The firstis our ongoing work to
prepare for the UK's withdrawal
from the EU, which cuts across all
of our functions. The resource we
have devoted to this work is, and
‘willcontinue to be, considerable.
As well as providing ongoing
technical assistance to the
Government, we have worked
with firms to understand their
future operation plans and their
impact, worked on the design

of the proposed temporary

permissions regime for EEA firms
currently operating in the UK and
éontinued our close cooperation
with the European Supervisory
Authorities.

The European Council's
agreement to the terms of a
transitional arrangement earlier
this year is very welcome. We
supportits implementation as
part of the wider withdrawal
agreement. It isimportant that
markets and firms —and indeed
regulators —have certainty. Our
aim s to continue to work closely
with EU regulators to deliver our
joint objectives in the months
and years-ahead.

In the meantime, the UK
Government has committed
to legislate for a temporary
permission regime. This gives
EEA firms an important backstop
to ensure they can operate as '
seamlessly the'day after we leave
the EU as they did before. It also
provides important reassurance
for consumers that the services
they use from firms that choose
to use the regime will continue

_uninterrupted. But it cannot

currently provide the same
assurance for customers in the
EEA who use the services of UK
firms, and we will continue to
work with the EU to achieve this.

Regulatory change
While planning for a future
outside the EU, UK firms and .
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their regulators must still continue
to implement and embed all EU
legislation affecting financial firms
and markets. This year we have
applied legislation which will have
profound implications for firms'
transparency, the way they treat
consumers and, in some cases,
even their business models.

-MiFID I, which applied from 3

January 2018, presented firms
with a challenging deadline,
which the vast majority rose to.
It addresses key drivers of harm
from lack of transparency to
operational resilience and we will
support firms to ensure it is fully

.embedded across the industry

over the next year. The second
Payment Services Directive, also
implemented in January, has

the potential to revolutionise
competition for consumers
through open banking, as long as

-firms can assure consumers their-

data remains secure.

This'year has also seen us

implement or extend important
domestic legislation and rule
changes that will raise standards
of conduct, transparency and
security in the UK markets. In

May 2017 we extended the Senior
Managers and Certification

-Regime to non-executive

directors. In advance of the
Treasury's announcement about .
when the SM&CR will be extended
to all the firms we regulate, we
consulted on new rules that will

drive up standards of individual

Chief Executive's statement
Andrew Bailey

Financial Conduct Authority
Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

conduct at all levels in financial ”

services. ]

Our wérk thisyearhas
sentaclear message to
firms that, if t‘héy donot
treat consumersfairly,
thenwe willtakeaction

Treéting consumers fairly

Our work this year has sent a clear
message to firms that if they do
not treat customers fairly, then we
will take action.

We now require credit card firms
to help customers in persistent
debt reduce their outstanding
balances. Our new rules have -
reduced the costs and charges of -
workplace pension schemes to

1% or less. And we have also made

”

new rules to better align the pay

and rewards of staff in consumer
credit firms with consumer
outcomes. However, there is

still a significant and ongoing
amount of work needed to ensure
consumers can be consistently
confident in the financial products
and services they rely.on.

I would like to welcome Charles
Randell as our new Chair, thank
altmy FCA colleagues who work
so hard to deliver our increasing
workload and the FCA Board for
their expertise and challenge.
Next year is certainly going to be
aninteresting one.

.

_Andrew Bailey
- Chief Executive

Financial Conduct Aut_h‘ori'ty
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1' lnfroduction '

Our objectives, set by Parliament, ensure that we act in the public interest. The
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) gives us a single strategic objective
—to ensure the markets we regulate function well. FSMA also gives us 3 operational
objectives to advance this: . '

« protect consumers — to secure an appropriate degree of protection for consumers

« protect the integrity of financial markets — to protect and enhance the integrity of
the UK financial system

-« promote competition — to promote effective competition in the interests of.
consumers ’ : ’

We are the conduct regulator for over 58,000 financial services firms in the UK and
145,000 approved persons.

We are also the prudential superviéor for approximately 46,000 firms. We set detailed
standards for the largest 18,000 of these firms to meet. Even firms with no minimum
financial resource requirements must still ensure they have adequate resources,
according to our threshold conditions for authorisation or registration.

Our Mission, published in 2017, provides the framework for the strategic decisions

we take to ensure that the markets we regulate function well. We concentrate our
resources on the markets and firms that are most likely to cause harm to consumers,
damage market integrity or weaken competition. This report outlines work we have
done within key sectors to reduce harm over 2017/18. This reflects the structure of our
Business Plan. : A

Our decision-making framework

entification

4. - Qur N 2.
Evaluation i Ciagnostc
T R R s———— }KOOIS .

A

Y 4

Remedy tools

10 °
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Our Mission outlines 5 categories of harm, which reflect our operational objectives.
Our aimis to use our tools efficiently and cost-effectively to reduce or prevent this
harm, deliver the greatest public value and so serve the public interest: )

Relevant FCA operational
Type of harm objective(s)

. o e ~¥ N 5 . $3 3 .2 : % . . ‘- P AL
”ﬁ.& s,zy 4&?&%&;’ ; %“
mportant consumer needs 3re not met because of gap n the exnstmg ran e P ¥
LA T e ST A e, LR T T o’:}”’. e i
fp’gsdu ts;consum exclusuon Jlack of market resnhence : ‘ -
e,
s ]

isumer,ex f 7
3%‘” '~é-sm,,~ :’3«*» &5,

The exa'r'nples listed throughout this report explain- what we have done this year to
prevent or reduce these types of harm and, therefore, to advance our operational
objectives.

Our regulatory remit is wide. Between November 2017 and March 2018 we published
5 consultation documents to explain our approach to regulatlon in more detail: This
is part of our MlSSlon commitment to be more open and transparent about how we
regulate and the way we take key decisions. Together, these documents provide
examples of how we have advanced our statutory objectives. These consultatlon
documents are: . . . -

National Audit Office

» Approachto Consumers - This explained the way we regulate to improve outcomes
for retail consumers, in line with our consumer protection objective. It provides our
view on what good practice looks like and how we' d|agnose and remedy potentlal
and actual harm. ‘ Coee .z,

§ o

* Approach to Competltlon —This set out how we deliver our obJectlve to promote
competition in the interests of consumers. It explains our focus on keeping markets
open to entry and innovation, tackhng anti-competitive conduct and intervening to
ensure competition drives good consumer outcomes.

« Approach to Authorisation - This explained how we use authorisation as a'tool to
) . prevent harm occurring, including by ensuring that all regulated firms and individuals
meet —and continue to meet —a common set of standards.

+- Approach to Supervision - This detailed our principles of.supervision, including our
active, intelligence-led and data-driven approach to engaging with firms. It described
how we look at business models, culture and drivers of firms' behaviour to ensure we
take prompt and direct action against the harm we idéntify.

» Approach to Enforcement - This explained our aim for fair and just outcomes in
response to misconduct, to ensure that firms meet our rules and requirements. It

11
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. sets out our overridih'g principle to provide substantive justice, and explains how we
carry out investigations in a consistent and open-minded way. This work advanced
our market integrity and consumer protection objectives.

- We have'sought feedback and.commernits on these documents-and will publish final

versions during 2018/19. Our focus is on driving forward work that reduces harm,
working closely with our domestic and international partners, and keepin‘g in mind
our regulatory remit (our ‘regulatory periméter’). In the next financial year, we will also
publish our Approach to Market lntegnty

. Overview of reg_ulat'ory activity

12

We use our powers to promote and deliver robust, practical rules and frameworks |
that help ensure the markets we regulate function well. We have set out below a few

specific highlights from the year:

»  We published Our Approach to Authorisation. In thisreporting period, we processed
4,452 applications for authorisation from firms.! We processed 1,907 applications -
for approval of a change in control, 2,531 cancellations of permission and 391
individual waivers. We also varied 2,656 firms' permissions, processed 7,743 mutual .
societies' returns and 10,619 firms' applications for passporting.? This helps us
prevent the spread of poor practice and helps us demonstrate how we have acted -
compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure markets work well.

« We sUpervise firms to prevent harm to consumers and markets, as explained in Our
Approach to Supervision. We supervise 58,000 firms serving retail and wholesale
consumers. Where we find that harm to consumers or society is likely, we take action.

« We have taken appropriate enforcement action, as outlined in our Enforcement

Report.In 2017/18 we issued 269 Final Notices (248 against firms and individuals
" trading as firms and 21 against individuals), secured 317 outcomes using our

enforcement powers {303 regulatory or civil and 14 criminal) and imposed 16 .
financial penalties totalling €69.9m. Our enforcement action included imposing our
largest fine to date-for a breach of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules wherea
firm failed to recognise that certain assets had substantially dropped in value, and
fanled to report that to the market in its half year results.

« Our Competition Report explains what we have done to promote éompetition
in consumers' interests. We continued to work on several market studiesduring .
2017/18. Forexample, some stakeholders'in the wholesale insurance broker sector
had concerns about the way that competition was working. We decided a market
study was the best diagnostic tool to assess this, as it would provide perspectives
from a wider range of stakeholders, rather than using our supervusory toolsto .
address specuﬁc practices of individuals firms.

» We contributed to important initiatives to strengthen the UK's approach to anti-
money laundering (AML) as outlined in our AML Report. This included implementing
the EU's latest anti-money laundering directive through The Money Laundering,

1 This figure includes applications whichwere approved, rejected and withdrawn,
2 Thus figure refers to both new Passports and amendments to existing ones.
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'Terrorlst Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the Payer) Regulatlons
2017(MLRs 2017). :

‘o Our Diversity and Inclusion programme is central to the way we act both as an

employer and a regulator. We explaun our approach to diversity i in our Diversity
Report : :

' Our regulatory principles and functions

Under FSMA, we have a number offunctlons These include making rules giving
general guidance, supervtsnng and authorlsmg ﬂrms

When we exercise our general funct|ons we take into account the followmg principles
for good regulatlon : : :

.. efficiency and economy A
+ proportionality -
+ sustainable growth

+ the responsibility that consumers themselves have

e the responsibility of firms' senior management to comply with the regulatory

ﬂ'amework

+ recognising the differences in businesses carried on by different regulated persons
+ " openness and disclosure

* transparency
|

These pnncrples underpin all our work and allare equally |rnportant As required by
FSMA, we include a compatibility statement in our consultation papers. This explains
why we believe our proposals are compatible with our duty to have regard to the
principles, recognising that not all the principles will always be relevant i in every case
and that more than one principle may be |n\/olved in any one case.

For example:

« Our MlSSlOﬂ and the follow up 'Approach to' documents hlghhghted how we work and
our approach to regulation, demonstratlng transparency and openness by explaining

the rationale behind our dec15|ons

« The deadline we have set formaking a complai'nt about PPI, and the campaign
. we are running to prompt consumers to consider their position and act befdre the

3 The Financial Services and Markets-Act 2000 (‘the Act’). requires the Treasury, at ledst once in each Parliament, to make-
. T recommendations to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) about aspects of the economic policy of the government to which the
FCA should have regard when considering how to act in a way which is compatible with its strategic objective; how to advance one
- or more of its'operational objectives: how to discharge its duty to promote effective competition in the interests of consumers; the
application of the regulatory principles set out in the Act: and the importance of taking action to minimise the extent towhichitis
possible for a business to be used for a purpose connected with financial crime.

13
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. deadline, highlights how we encourage consumers to take appropriate responsibility -
for their decisions. Our measures also demonstrated proportionality, particularly
with regards to the costs to firms of the campaign and of handling fairly consumers'
complaints and checking enquiries, as compared to the harm that mis-selling
caused consumers and the benefits which the certainty of the deadline gives firms.
The deadline and campaign also highlights how we encourage consumers to take
appropriate responsibility for their decisions by asking them to demde now whether
to check nfthey had PPI, complain, and to do so promptly.

« Thelaunch of the Asset Management Authorisations Hub, demonstrates our
commitment to sustainable growth. It also illustrates our recognition of the
differences in businesses carried out by different regulated-persons.

« The extension of the Sehior.Ménagers and Certification Regime (SM&CR) applies
our conduct rules t6 non-executive directors. This highlights our continued work on
senior managers' responsibility to comply with the regulatory framework.

+ Interms of efficiency and economy, we have updated the v'\/‘ay we report on our
Service Standards, which show how efficiently we carry out specific internal
. processes. Our updated Service Standards document provides a better explanat(on
- of the link between the efficiency of our processes and outcomes.

Measuring performance

Our Mission explained the 3-tier approach we use to measure our performance:

Tier 1: The efficiency of internal processes :
We use the National Audit Office definition of value for money as the optimal use of
resources to achieve anintended outcome’. We have improved the way we measure
value for money in our processes and the way we work. We recognise that being
efficient with our resources also includes how we make the best use of the data and
information available. '

We are committed to achieving value for money when we address harms and deliver
our objectives. Our success at delivering public value depends on managing key risks
around stafﬂng andresources. We provide an explanation of how we manage these
operational risks in the chapter on Corporate Governance.

Our Service Standards document provides measures of our service standards using

. amix of voluntary commitments and statutory obligations. These standards cover
areas including telephone enquiries, Freedom of Information Act requests and MPs

o~

14

letters. As our Mission explained, we wanted to explain outcomes more clearly and

meaningfully. In Septémber 2017, we updated this document to ensure it explains the

“link between outcomes and the efficiency of our processes better :

~Tier 2: The impact of our interventions

This April we published for consultation our apptoach to post-intervention evaluation.
This explains how.we will assess the effectiveness of key interventions every year.

Forsmaller projeet's, we look at key measures or indicators that suggest the impact

individual pieces of work have within the relevant:sector or cross-sector theme.
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Tier 3: Outcomes in the sectors we regulate

in this report, each of our cross-sector themes contains a ‘measuring change section
to show whether or not dnvers of harm under that theme are changing. Weuse a
mixture of qualitative and quantitative methods to analyse progress within each
theme.

For each sector, we use 'outcome indicators'. However, these do not provide a
complete evaluation of how effective our work has been, nor do they set targets.
Instead, they tell us about the direction of travel for key harms and whether they
are increasing or decreasing. Following feedback on how we could improve how we
evaluate our work, this year we established a baseline for outcome indicators and
will develop further indicators in the future. For example, where we use biennial data
sources such as Financial Lives 2017, we now use additional sources to build a more
detailed picture ofoutcomes over time.

~ Firmratings on FCA as effective regulator

Between January and March 2018 we surveyed firms® with the FCA's Practitioner .
Panel, asking them for views on the FCA, the effectiveness of the regulator, and
satisfaction with the regulatory relationship.

In this most recent survey, the mean overall score rating the FCA's'effectiveness
{Figure 1.1) increased from 7.0 out of 10to 7.1. The mean overall score that rates
satisfaction with the relationship with the FCA (Figure 1.2) also continues to |mprove it
rose from 7.5 out of 10to 7.6.

Figure 1.1: Scores rating how effective the FCA has been in regulating the financial
services industry in the last year (out of 10) :

Mean
score

7.1

6.7

p b A LA .
. N TYF - N E .
(50 l e w8 J 6.7

6.5

B1lto3 Q4tob £17t010

4 The FCA and Practitioner Panel survey was carried out Using an online questionnaire. Just over 12.600 firms were sent a link inviting
them to complete the questionnaire, with just over 2,800 responding. We structured the survey sample using the firm's Primary
Business Category allocation. In addition, all the'firms that came within the FCA's Fixed Portfolio regime were invited to complete a
questionnaire, with a sample of other firms being selected. We also promoted the survey through a variety of channels including the
FCAs Régulatory Round-up newsletter, Trade Associations and a postal invite.

15
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- Figure 1.2: Scores rating satisfaction with relationship with the FCA {out of 10)
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Feedback from our stakeholders

- We commission independent research every year through BritainThinks. This asks

awide range of stakeholders —including trade bodies, consumer organisations,
parliamentarians and the media —about how they perceive the FCA. The latest
research suggests that our consumer protection and market integrity objectives
continue to be viewed as more important than promoting effective competition.
However, the proportion of respondents who view the FCA's competition objective as
important has risen.

Figure 1.3: Perceived imbortance of each statutory objective for the FCA

Q1-Q4change
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Protects and enhances
marketintegrity
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2 EUWithdrawal |

In our-2017/18 business plan, we identified work on the implications of EU Withdrawal
as a key area of focus. We have dedicated significant resource to coordinating and
managing the work on EU withdrawal across the: organlsatlon We expect this work to
increase.in 2018/19. »

Technical advice to the Government

We have been supporting the Government by providing technical assistance relating
to EU withdrawal. This includes providing technical advice on the EU (Withdrawal) Bill
introduced by the Government in July2017 to transfer eX|st|ng EU legislationinto
domestlc rules.. .

Working wrth regulated firms -

‘We have worked vvlth regulated firms to understand their emergung plans for future
- operations and how these plans may affect markets and consumers. We have
. liaised closely with the Bank of England ondual- regulated firms and areas of joint

responsibility.

Temporary Permissions Regime

InDecember 2017, the Government announced that, if necessary, it would legislate to
give regulators powers to create a temporary permissions regime for EEA firms which
are currently operating in the UK under passports resulting from EU legislation.

We have been wo'rklhg on the design for the temporary permissions regime and
making the appropriate operational preparations. We provided additional information
on the regime in public statements in December 2017 and March 2018.

H

l‘nternational cooperation

We have continued our close cooperation-with the European Supervisory Authorities,
national competent authorities and other |nternatlonal regulatory authorities on our

_role and remit in relation to EU withdrawal, and on broader issues relatmg to cross-

border financial services regulation.

17
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3 - Ourcross-sector priorities

Flrms culture and governance

. .

Effective culture and governance mitigate the risk of harm to consumers and markets.

We have been looking at what drives firms' behaviour. Our aim is to assess and address
the key drivers of behaviour that are fikely to cause harm from our perspective as a
regulator ~a firm's purpose, leadership, approach to rewardlng and managing people
and’its governance arrangements. .
We do not see the role of the regulator as being to set a single, acceptable culture. But
we placea'high priority on ensuring that individuals, especially senior managers,are
accountable for.their behaviours and are fit and proper for their roles. We also focus on -
ensuring remuneration and other staff rewards do not create the wrong incentives and
that governance arrangements provide for firms to effectlvely identify and mitigate

. risks of harm and protect whistleblowers.

We also aim to stimulate debate and consensus on good practices and standards.
across, key sector stakeholders compatible with our strategic objective of ensuring
the markets we regulate function well. Examples of the work we completed this
year to advance our consumer: protectlon and market mtegr;ty obJectlves are
provided below

Monijtoring change

We have continued to focus on firms' progi"ess in embedding key strands of our.culture -
and governance priority, which includes accountability, delivered through the Senior
Managers and Certiﬁcation Regime (SM&CR) and remuneration.

The SM&CRis fully lmplemented in dep05|t takers and dual- regulated investment
firms. We have received generally positive feedback from the industry, where it has led
to clearer senior management accountability. : ,

Our routine supervision of remuneration policies and practices in the level one firms '
(deposit takers and investment firms with total balance sheets over £50bn), found
that they continue to embed conduct and culture in their remuneration measures and
adjust awards to reflect material poor performance and misconduct.

’

Ensuring stafflncentives do not dl'ive behaviours that cause ha_rm

. "We published new rules on how consumer credit firms should manage risks ansing
from the way they pay their staff and manage their performance. We also published
additional, non-Handbook guidance to help firms identify features of their incentives -
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schemes or performance management that mlght harm consumers, whether through
mis- selhng or other poor conduct.

This guidance also provides suggestions for ways firms can manage these risks more
effectively. The new rules will come into force on 1 October 2018. We subsequently
intend to assess the impact of the new rules and gutdance by reviewing how consumer
credit firms have responded to them. oo

Accountability

The FCA and, for-dual-regulated firms, the PRA and FCA, approve Senior Managers. -
The SM&CRis a key part of our culture and governance programme. It sets minimum
common sense standards of conduct for financial services staff at all levels and
clarifies Senior Managers' areas of responsibility. The regime makes it clear that every
individual in a firm is responsible and accountable for their own behaviour and that
Senior Managers are also responsible and accountable for taking reasonable steps to
ensure good conduct in their areas of responsibility. Finally, the regime is designed to’
ensure that those individuals with the greatest potential to do harm are fit and proper.
Firms are required to review annually other lmportant |nd|v1duals and certlfy that they

are fit and proper.

In May 2017, we extended the regime to apply our conduct rules to non-executive
directors. At the same time, we issued guidance to explain how we will enforce the
Duty of Responsibility. This power allows us to take action against senior managers of
SM&CR firms if they do not 'take reasonable steps to avoid.a contravention happenlng '
or contmunng in activities they are responsible for managing.

The SM&CR has applied to deposit takers and dual-regulated investment firms since
March 2016. It is now embedded in our authorisation, supervision and enforcement
processes, allowing us to identify and focus on key accountable individuals in these

firms.

" In 2016, Parliament gave us a duty to extend the SM&CR to most of the firms that we

regulate. Last year, we published consultation papers on our proposed design of this
extended regime and on how we propose to move firms and individuals to it. -

*

Protecting and encouraging speaking up in firms .

We have enabled more staff iri firms to act as whistleblowers, to increase the Ievel

of valuable information we receive about actual or potential wrongdoing. Being

a whistleblower is Usually difficult. So we now offer all whistleblowers'a meeting

with us to-build their trust and reflect the value we place on them. We know that .
whistleblowers can come to any part of the FCA with information, so we have also
rolled out training to help all FCA staff recognise whistleblowers and treat what they tell

us accordingly.
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We use a range of whistleblowing data to show whether firms act approprlately on
intelligence they are given and to be transparent about how we respond to mudents
This year we:

» Managed 1,106 cases from whistleblowers. Of these we reasonably believe that 649

are qualifying disclosures within our remit, 307 are not. We have not yet been able to
determine whether 150 are or not.

'« Decided to take further action on 121 disclosures we reasonably believed to be

qualifying disclosures. We are still assessing a further 128 disclosures to determine if
we should take further action.

Whistleblowing disclosures are a vital and unique source of information for us. They
demonstrate that we have acted compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure
relevant markets function well, and they help us deliver our operational objectives to
protect consumers and the integrity of financial markets. They do this by helping us
take enforcement action against firms and individuals, deliver effective supervision
through our work with firms or thematic work, and better understand the behaviour of
the firms we regulate. '

Encouraging an active focus on firms’ cultures

Firms' cultures shape conduct and can drive behaviours that harm consumers and
markets. So we have encouraged firms to actively focus on their cultures in line with
our objective to protect consumers. We have also undertaken a number of initiatives to
try and provide thought leadership in this area, encouraging dlscu55|on from different
perspecttves to speed up the pace of cultural change.

For example, in March 2018, we published a discussion paper on transforming culture
in financial services. The paperis a collection of 28 essays, giving views from industry

“leaders, academics and practitioners. We followed up the paper's publication with a
conference to encourage broader debate on these topics.

~ A number of themes emerged from th‘e conference, including the need to:

 ensure firms create environments of ' psychologlcal safety’ where speaklng up
becomes the norm

» ensure diversity and inclusion

» provide better support, capability-building and empowerment to ‘squeezed' middle
managers

 using our supervisory communications and challenge with firms to shape healthy
cultures, given many participants’ views on the limited role offurther rules

» look at a broad range of incentives to shape behaviOurs, including those that go ‘
beyond remuneration and other financial incentives

“We are revrewrng the results of the conference to decide what next steps we should '
_take in this vvork o



Na(ional Audit Office

Financial Conduct Authority . ’ .+ Chapter3
Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 Our cross-sector priorities

Report into the Royal Bank of Scotland GlobalRestructuring Group

In 2014, we appointed a Skilled Person under section 166 of the Financial Services .

-and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) to conduct an independent review of Royal Bank of

Scotland's (RBS) treatment of small and medium-sized enterprise (SME) customers

. transferred toits Global'Restructuring Group (GRG) between 2008 and 2013. The

review was commissioned in response to allegations contained in a report published
by Dr Lawrence Tomlinson and some of the recommendations following Sir Andrew
Large's RBS Independent Lending Rev:ew (23 November 2013).

Commercial lending is largely unregulated;in the UK, which means there were -

no ‘conduct of business' rules against which to assess GRG's treatment of SME
customers. The Skilled Person therefore assessed GRG against applicable legal and
contractual requirements and the standards RB.S setitself.

While we recognise there has been a high level of public interest in the Skilled Person's
Report, we have clear legal obligations under section 348 of FSMA that require us to
get the consent of everyone from whom we obtained information, and anyone else
that the information relates to, before we are legally able to disclose the report. We
are also required to give anyone criticised in the report a fair opportunrty to respond to

: ‘that criticism before publication.

We therefore concluded that the best way fo,rw'erd wasto publish an extended
summary of the report. Our guiding principle in drafting the summary was to balance

. our desire to give as much information as possible to small businesses and the wider

public about the contents of the report with our obligation as a public-authority to act
falrly towards the potentially affected parties who have legal rights.

The Treasury Select Committee(TSC) commissioned an independent review by
Andrew Green QC to determine if our draft final summary was true to the main report I
in substance and tone. His findings have been published by the TSC, which are that we

. were fair on both counts.

Following publlcatnon of our final summary in February 2018, and recognising the public
interestin the full unredacted report, we beganthe process of seeking consent from
the necessary people. However, the Treasury Select Committee considered thisan
exceptional case, and under Standing Order 152, required us to produce the full report
toit, notwithstanding the provisions of sectlon 348.1t subsequently decided to use
Parliarnentary Privilege to pubhsh thereport.’

We continue to investigate the matters arising from the Skilled Person’'s Report and
will consider whether there is any basis for further action, noting that the majority of
RBS GRG's activities were outside the regulatory perimetér and pre-date the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime.
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Fmancnal crime and anti- money Iaundenng (AML)

- Financial crime harms sooety and the wider economy. It causes financialloss to

victims, enriches criminals and supports serious criminal a_ctmty The sizeand -

global nature of the UK financial industry mean that both monéylaundering, and the
criminality that requires money to be Iaundered present s:gmﬂcant risks to the UK and
undermme the integrity of the UK financial system.

.Our aimis to make the UK financial markets hostile for criminals. We also want to

ensure the UK's financial system is resilient against their activities and a safer place for
customers. So when we desngn safeguards, we need to ensure they are proport|onate
efficient, and minimise any unintended consequences of regulation.

We also want to reduce and prevent the harm caused by scams and to increase

‘consumer awareness of the risks of fraud.

We prowde more deta|| on our work to tackle money laudering in our Anti-Money
Laundering Report.

: Monitofing changein firms’ AML controls

We have strengthened our AML supervisory work in recent years. Our initial work found
serious weaknesses in some major banks and smaller firms. But recent findings have been
encouraging. We have put an emphasis on ensuring that major banks recognise that AML is
anissue that requires attention from senior management, and a strong tone from the top,

‘though we know it will take time for all the improvernents needed to filter throughout larger ‘
_organisations. In smaller, higher-risk firms, we have seen signs of much better engagement

by senior management and resulting improvements in thetr AML controls.

In December 2016 we introduced our first financial crime return for firms to complete.
Inline with our market integrity objective, we have used these data this year to help -

- identify firms with higher inherent money laundering risk and i improve how we identify

risks and trends in the mdustry

We contributed significantly to the Financial Action Task Force's Mutual Evaluation
Review of the UK's AML regime, which is due to be published towards the end of 2018.

. As we continue to review our approach to financial crime supervision, we will take into

account this review's findings and lessons. -

Implementing the Fourth Money Laundering Directive

The Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information'on the
Payer) Regulations 2017 (MLRs 2017) came into effect on 26 June 2017. They update
the' UK's AML regime in line with the EU's Fourth AML Directive and bring in a stronger,

- risk-based approach to preventlng money laundering. Before Jmplementatlon we

consulted on proposals to ensure that our policies and procedures for the use of our
powers under the MLRs 2017 were up to date, effective and proportionate. We issued a

- Policy Statement in July 2017
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Proportionate approach to politically exposed persons (PEPs)

In July 2017, we also issued guidance on how firms should treat customers who are
defined as PEPs in the new MLRs 2017. The guidance makes clearer how firms should
apply the definition to UK customers, and makes it clear that it is unlikely that a large .
number of UK customers would meet the definition. As a result, UK PEPs should be
lower risk than PEPs from countries with-high levels of corruption. -

Ensuring high and consistent standards across AML superviéion

In 2017, the government announced it would ereate an Office for Professional Body

- Anti-Money Laundering Supervision (OPBAS). OPBAS is housed within the FCA and
- started supervising professional body supervisors of AML on 1 February 2018. OPBAS

WI|| ensure a robust and consistently high standard of AML supervision across the
Iegal and accountancy sectors and enablé better intelligence sharlng between the
supervisors and law enforcement agencies.

Reduéing harm i:aused by scams

-Our ScamSmart campaign aims to give at-risk consumers knowledge and tools to stop

them falling victim to investment fraud. It warns the over 55s about the signs of a scam and
also promotes our Warning LlSt This is a tool that helps users find out more about the risks
of aninvestment and search alist of firms we know are operating without our authorlsatlon

In January 2018 we Iaunched anew pha’se of this campaign. It included advertising and
social media activity, which we publicised through partriers including banks, pension -
p"ro\/ider‘s, consumer groups, other regulators and crime prevention organisations.

" In total 445,000 users visited the ScamSmart site in 2017/18 and 53,000 checked an

investment on the Warning List, up from 320,000 and 26,000 respectively in 2016/17.

Alongside our ScamSmart wd'rk 'we continue to monitor, quantify and tackle cases of
systemic pension mis-selling and fraud involving firms we regulate and unregulated
firms that work with them.

This year, we have worked with the Treasury and the Depéartm'ent for Work and Pensions
onlegislative measures to combat pension scams, including a ban on pension cold
calling. Recently, we announced we intend to collect data from all firms who hold our
permission on pension transfers so that we can thorqughly assess how they are using

.this permission.

Chapter3
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Intelligence and partnership working to stop financial crime

We continue to collaborate domestically and ‘internationally with law enforcement
agencies, the Government and other regulators to prevent financial crime. In particular,
we are helping to develop and strengthen public and private sector partnership .
working to support the Government's economic crime reform programme. We also
continue to contribute to the Government’s Joint Fraud Taskforce.’
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Promotmg competltlon and mnovatnon

Our mandate to promote competltlon is the main reason for our work on Financial
Technology, known as FinTech, which continues to transform firms' products and
services. The growth in online-only banks, savings accounts and payments has
changed consumers' expectations on price and delivery. Innovation has also made
it much easier for consumers to shop around: over 25 million people used price
comparrson sites in 2016.°

At its best, innovation drives.firms to compete to offer new, better value services.
This increases choice, reduces industry costs and allows firms and consumers to
communicate more directly. But it can also create harm. Consumers can find it hard
to understand and choose between technologically complex services and products.
As a result, they may buy unsuitable products or find themselves unable to assess
investment risks accurately. The examples below illustrate how our work this year has
advanced our competltlon objective. .

We want to sustain a regulatory environment.which helps consumers and firms to
make the most of the opportunities that competition, innovation and big data offer,
while preventing or reducing harm to help ensure that the markets we regulate
function well. For example during 2017, our Advice Unit extended its scope to

include firms developing automated advice models within the mortgage, general
insurance and debt advice sectors. The Advice Unit now accepts firms that want to
provide guidance instead of regulated advice, as well as firms that do not plan to seek
authorisation. From this, we will be able to give regulatory feedback to firms offering *
a wider range of services. The Unit also now accepts applications throughout the
year, rather than fixed application periods. This example illustrates how our work on
competition is compatible with our strategic objective to ensure rnarkets work well.

Following consultation, in December 2017 we also published guidance from the Advice

Unit. This guidance shares insights from our work with firms so that the wider market
can use the additional clarity on our rules.

Monitoring change

FinTech firms have to invest significant sums to bring their innovative concepts

to market and ensure that they meet our regulatory requirements. This can act

as a barrier to new entrants. Our regulatory sandbox, part of our wider Innovate
programme, gives businesses of every size the opportunity to test if these concepts
meet regulatory requirements before they invest in them further. It also gives
consumers important safeguards and helps us to understand both the opportunities
and-harm that innovation can create.

We received 77 applications for the second phase of the regulatory sandbox, an
increase in the numbers from the first phase (69). We also supported 24 firms to
complete testing, which is short-term and small-scale. We have worked with the -
sandbox firms to agree the parameters of this testing to ensure consumer safeguards
are builti in.

5 https:/assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/ Ssez24f5e5274a06b3000099/dcts -consumer-research-final-report, pdf and
www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/itandinternetindustry/datasets/internetusers.
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. Wereceived 61 applicétions for the third phase of the regulatory sandbox and are
currently supporting 18 firms to test their concepts. Awareness of our wider Innovate

programme is growing, with over 1, 000 requests for support since its inception. Roughly .
half of these reached our threshold criteria and have received support fromus.

Market Stddies

. We have used market studies to advance our competition objective by assessing how N
amarket works and whether it could work better. For example, during 2017/18 we have
analysed competition in Asset Management, Wholesale Insurance Brokers and Credit
Cards. More details are providéd in relevant sector pages and our Competition Report.

Influencing international innovation

The FCA's'Innovate prorhotes the UK as a centre for innovation in financial services
throughiits international engagement, by supporting innovative overseas firms to enter
the UK market. It also supports UK-based innovative firms who expand into overseas
markets, making them potentially more sustainable challengers in the UK:

. Regulators in other countries are adopting our Innovate approach. We have signeda
number of co-operation agreements with overseas regulators.‘5 ’

The FCA's Innovate and Sandbox; Incréasing the development of |
new products .

This year we started to review |n5|ghts and Iessons learned from testing since we-
Iaunched the sandboxin 2016. * '

Early ﬂndings suggest the sandbox s providing the benefits it set out to achieve.

We have evidence it enables new products to be tested effectively. It has reduced .
the time and cost of getting innovative ideas to market, improved access to finance
forinnovators and'ensured appropriate safeguards are built in to new products and
services at an.early stage.-

We will use these findings to help shape our future sandbox developments as well as
our ongoing policymaking and supervision work. ‘

Over the first 2 phases of the sandbox, we have seen grewing diversity in the types
of sectors applying to us, and a greater proportion of applications from firms outside
- London. '

6  Thisyear these lncludéd Hong Kong Insurance Authority (Sept 2017): Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission {(May 2017}
Cooperation agreement with US Commodnty Futures Trading Commiission {February 2018); Enhanced cooperat;on agreement with
Australian Securities and Investments Commission {March 2018)
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Using technology to improve reporting efficiency

We regularly look at how we can make our regulation more efficient through
technology. Regulatiorthat involves high costs and inefficient processes can limit
competitionand mean firms pass higher costs on to consumers. By using technologles
specifically designed to solve ﬂrms regulatory challenges we can add to the public
value we deliver as a regulator

in Nevember 2017 we held a TechSprint event. This looked at how technology could

- make it easier for firms to meet their regulatory reporting requirements and improve

the guality of their information. The event developed a proof of concept that showed

‘the potential for a fully automated process for firms to provide their regulatory returns.

Introducing this technology to our regulatory reporting process could provide significant
benefits for regulators and firms. Thesé include saving the industry significant costs,
increasing the clarity of our rules, and allowing us to identify and monitor issues and risks
more efficiently, diagno_se harm and potentially intervene earlier. -

We published a Call for Input seéking views on the proof of concept as well as on
related legal, commercial and other implications for us and the- industry should we

move towards this new approach.

Balancing our approach to new technology

This year we issued a DlscusS|on Paper on Distributed Ledger Technology (DLT)
Responses suggested that our rules are flexible enough to accommodate the

use of DLT by regulated firms. They also agreed that DLT could deliver regulatory
requirements more efficiently than current systems, substantially reducing costs for

both firms and regulators.

We will work collaboratively with industry, and national and international regulatory ‘
bodies to shape regulatory developments and standards on DLT.

At the end of 2017, we issuedc-onsumer warnings on cryptoassets, Contracts for
Difference and the risks of Initial Coin Offerings (ICOs). In.March 2018 a taskforce was

* also established with Bank of England and the Treasury to develop our policy thinking

oncryptoassets.

I3

New Bank Start-up Unit } - . .

Launched in 2016, the New Bank Start-up Unit is a joint initiative between the FCA
and thé PRA. It provides information and support to potential new banks, explaining
the regulatory requirements, helping them through the authorisation process and

- providing support once authorised. It aims to encourage competition, drive innovation -

and tackle harms caused by a lack of product choice, market access and high prices.

Over the past year, we have authorised 10 new banks, including banks providing SME
‘finance, business banking and consumer Iendlng as well as overseas banks establlshlng

branches in the UK

Chapter>
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Improving operational and cyber resilience

The'pace of technological change and innovation ¢c©
firms and we have seen weaknesses in their systems
infrastructure. Some firms also have an over-reliance ©

These issues can increase the risk of outages and
collaborate with Government and other national 2
these threats and vulnerabilities. -

Inline with our consumer protection objective, thi

relationships with larger firms and our specific themm
. to prevent and deal with outages and cyber attacks:
appropriate governance, risk management, and incid

‘We have also stepped up our communications to

Treasury and the National Cyber Security Centre, 2
an infographic guide for firms on the practical 1"o.u1"'d

dedicated webpage.

Improvingdata s‘haring and handling

Under the second Payment Services Directive (P5D
information and payment initiation providers have
to access customer dataand payments function?@&
" timé as the Competition and Markets Authority (C

to develop Application Programming Interfaces

cover PSD2 and Open Banking in more detail in th€

Under existing data protection law, these'busih e o3
and PSD2 requires these businesses.to put furt N €’ m

and secure.

The General Data Protectioh Regulation (GDPR

May 2018 and will be an essential step forward i m

personal data. We have worked closely with the

to produce a joint statement on how our differe

GDPR.

ntin

n compl
Julnerability

nd internationa

) ur
s year, o

aticwor

Firms and publish

ations of

a
fity. Thisc

MA) hasr
( APls)

éses must
. sur

imprOVil"\g

i formatio
+ roles an

It considered fa
ont response arrangements.

ues to challenge regulateq
design, management and

éx legacy systems. .
to cyber attack. We
| regulators to tackle

proactive supervisory
K assessed firms' ability..

ctors including

ed with the PRA,
incident response g’unde,
good cyber security and a

2). new(y régulated'account :
right, with the custome

r's consent,

hange comes at the same
equired major retail banks

that enable this access. We
Retail Banking Section.

p‘rotéct customers' data
es in place to keep it safe

effect in the UKon 25
the security and privacy of
n Commissioner's Office
drules will interact under

I



il

i

=

(NA(S)

- Naﬁonal Audit Office

T - Financial Conduct Authority ' Chapter3
. Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 Our cross-sector priorities

Treatment of existing customers

Effective competition relies on consumers responding to the quality and value of .
products, and providers competing as a result. [t should not unduly disadvantage
existing customers. If existing customers are not treated fairly, they can end up getting
poor service or paying high charges. While many firms have made progress in putting

~ customers more firmly at the centre of their business models, many need to further

improve their stfandards of treatment for existing consumers.

© We aim to ensure that firms treat longstanding customers fairly. They also need to

keep them well informed about the products they have bought, including performance
and charges. Our work on general insurance renewals is an example of how we have
advanced our competition and consumer protection objectves this year (see sector
pages on General Insurance and Protection). Further examples are provided below.

: Monitoring change

We have outlined data that relate to existingAcustomers in particular sector pages of

this report. Forexample, the Retail Banking chapter refers to the data firms will have to
give customers about current accounts, as well as consumer data on rates of switching

from our Flnanoal Lives 2017 survey.

Ensuring customers are informed before retirement

There are many customers who have held pension products with a firm for along time.
As aresult, there is a clear link between much of our work on pensions and retirement
income'and our focus on ensuring that existing custormers are treated fairly. A couple
of examples are: :

+ Annuity prompts —In May 2017 we issued our final rules requiring firms to issue
prompts to.inform consumers how much they could gain from shopping around and .
switching provider, before potentially buying an annuity. These rules took effect from
March 2018. This should help customers understand the pros and cons of remaining .
with the same provider and encourage them to switch to better deals.

+ Retirement Outcomes Review (ROR) —In July 2016 we launched the Retirement
Outcomes Review (ROR) to assess how the retirement income market.had evolved
since the pension freedoms. In our interim report, published in July 2017, we

" identified some emerging concerns and set out some potential remedies. We
published our final report in June 2018 alongside a Consultation Paper on most
of our proposed remedies and seeking views on others. These remedies include
measures to: protect consumers against poor outcomes, improve consumers
‘engagement with their retirement income decisions, and promote competmon by
making the cost of drawdown products clearer and more comparable.
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Ensuring a long-term strategy for intere'sf-only mortgages

There are currently 1.67m full interest-only and.part-capital repayment mortgage
accounts outstanding in the UK. This year we published the findings of our thematic
review into the fair treatment of existing interest-only mortgage customers. Our
concern is particularly focused on customers who are at risk of a shortfall when their
mortgage comes to the end of its term, : :

© We found that lenders are actively tryingto communicate with their consumers to
help them understand repayment strategies and to provide appropriate and affordable
solutions. But there is clearly more for both them and us to do to tailor these
‘communications more effectively, target them better and improve the process for
handling interest-only customers. Although lenders are writing to customers before
their mortgage matures, subseguent engagement rates with firms are fow.

Our own work demonstrated the challenges of getting disengaded customers

to become involved in their decisions ~ we initially found it difficult to get them to
discuss this issue. However, by persisting, we were able to get important insights and
subsequently published consumer research about why customers are failing to talk to
their lenders. Our aim was to give lenders a better understanding of why customers
may not contact -them about repaying shortfalls. - :

We have also produced a leaflet for consumers hrghlrghtrng the benefits of talking to
therr |enders as ear|y as possible.

Retail banking competition remedies

We have taken forward our work to promote competition in retail banking, particularly
‘onservice information, prompts to engage customers and measures on overdrafts,
including text message alerts. This work followed the CMA's retail banking market
investigation, but was broader in scope, in line with our wider objectives and remit.

For example, we published our Policy Statement in December 2017. This sets.out
our final rules requiring banks and building societies with more than 70,000 personal

- current accounts or 15,000 business current accounts to publish objective service
information from August 2018. :

We also commissioned consumer research and worked-with firms to run randomised
control trials to assess the impact of auto- er\rolhng customers into overdraft text

messaging-and mobile push notification alerts.

We have made good progress in all areas and consulted on a number of proposals in
May 2018. ’
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Consumer vulnerablhty and access to
ﬁnancnal services -

Consumers in vulnerable circumstances are more susceptible to harm and generally
less able to advance their own interests. Weprioritise consumers who are unable to
shop around over those who can shop around but chodse not to. This reflects our

. objective to secure-an appropriate degree of protection for consumers, as weli as the

requirement to have regard to the differing degrees of experience and expertise of
different consumers. For example, this year, we we made rules requiring firms to take
steps to help customers in persistent credit card debt.

We have published a series of documents that provide more detail on our approach to
meeting our consumer protection objective. These include: Our Mission, our Future
Approach to'Consumers and our Occasional Paper on the Ageing Population.

To provide more certainty for all stakeholders, our Future Approach to Consumers
consultation explained how we regulate for retail consumers. It set out initial views
on what good looks like, and explained how we work to diagnose and remedy harm
to ensure we protect consumers. We W|II publish a Feedback Statement and Final
Approachin summer 2018.

Monitoring cha'ﬁge

The Ageing Population Occasional Paper described potential harm to older

consumers, such as exclusion from a range of financial services and poor outcomes.

The paper sets out the areas we want firms to consider to prevent potential harm. We

gave 3 broad headings that cover ways in which firms can-help meet older consumers’

needs. First, by designing products and services that understand and anticipate

the needs of older consumers. Second, providing adequate customer support and
recognising when customers are having difficulties. And third, continuously reviewing

and adapting their stratedies to ensure they remain approprtate for consumiers. We will

review progress made inthese areas in 2020. :

Increasing our understanding of consumers

Over the past year, we have used research to increase what we know about consumers' .
priorities and identify where our work can add the most value. This information will help
us to prioritise our interventions to provide as much public valué as possible.

F inancial Lives 2017 -
Financial Lives 2017-told Us that 50% of UK adults (25.6 million) dlsplay one or more
characteristics that suggest their potential vulnerability. They may be at increased risk -
of harm, or may suffer disproportionately if harm occurs. '

Several groups are more likely to demonstrate these characteristics. These inciude
those who are unbanked (do not have a current or e-money alternative account) and
those who are unemployed-and looking for work. Looking at the unbanked (3% of UK
adults), 77% demonstrate characteristics of potential vulnerability.
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A greater proportion of women than men show characteristics of vulnerability (47% of
men are potentially vulnerable, compared with 53% of wormen). We used these findings:
to develop our Consumer Approach and in our business planmng and prioritisation
process

Agelng Population Project and Occasional Paper
The Occasional Paper we published in September 2017 revuewed the public pohcy
implications of an ageing population and how this could affect financial services. Age

- often, although not always, correlates with some types of vulnerability.

When reviewing the tréatment of older people, we found risks that their financial
services needs are not bemg fully met, which can resultin exclusnon poor customer
outcomes and potentlal harm :

Our paper set out some ideas on ways firms can improve their business models. These
include looking at product and service design, customer supbort, and reviewing and
adépting their business strategies. It also explored a range of issues, including older
consurners’ engagement with retail banking, third party access and planning ahead,
lending for people in later life and long term care. '

‘Occasional Paper on preventing financial dlstress by predlctmg unaffordable

consumer credit agreements '

This paper provided both theoretical and practical evidence to help develop more
effective affordability rules. We have used it to inform how we develop rules for
mdustry that aim to reduce the risk of harm to consumers.

In areview of credit reference ag'en'cies, we found substan’gial differences in the"
total value of outstanding debts recorded by 2 agencies for the same people at
the same time. This suggests that the data lenders use to predict financial distress
do not consistently estimate incomes and expenditures for some applicants. This

- inconsistency limits lenders’ 'ability to predict financial distress.

Reducing persistent debt
Qur Credit Card Market Study found that while the market works well for most
consumers, those in persistent debt pay on average around £2.50 in interest and
charges for every £1 that they repay of their borrowing.

So this year we made rules requiring firms to take a series of steps to help'customers
who aremaking low repayments over along period. These start when the customer
has beenin per5|stent debt for over 18 months.

‘Once a consumer has beén in persistent debt for 36 months, their provider has to offer

them a way to repay their balance in a reasonable period. If the consumer is unable to
repay, then the firm must show the customer forbearance. This may include reducing,
waiving or cancelling interest, fees or charges.
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Improvmg how debt management firms help customers manage debt

Poor practlce by debt management firms poses a htgh risk to consumers, particularly
those in vulnerable circumstances, so debt management remains one of our priorities.

‘Since 2014, we have been explicif with debt managenﬁent‘firms.that they need to

act responsibly, and in the interests of consumers. Since then, we have refused
authorisation to a number-of providers; others have left the market. Those that remain .
have had to show that they meet our threshold conditions to be authorised.

This year, we reviewed a sample of both fee charging andfree-to-customer debt
management providers to help us build up a full picture of the sector. We want to
understand where-good practice is helping consumers to deal with their debts, as well
as identify areas where ﬂrms needto lmprove Our aim s to complete this review inQ1 .
2019.

Where issues persisf we will take enforcement action. For example, in October
2017, we banned 2 former directors of a debt management firm for dehberately
misapproprlatmg client money.

" We have also undertaken work on high-cost credit. Here we have identified particular .

concerns for rent-to-own, home collected credit and catalogue cred|t sectors. We glve
more information on this is in the sectionon retail Iendmg
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Wholesale financial markets

Wholesale financial markets enable firms and governments to acce'ss finance and
provide investment opportunities for institutional and retail investors. The UK's
wholesale financial markets are vital to the UK's prosperity and economic growth.
They fulfil a broad range of financial needs for corporates, governments and financial .
institutions. These include making and receiving payments, financing investment,
innovation and growth financing operations and managing cash, facilitating domestlc
and international trade, providing opportunities to invest and managing financial
and other risks. The effectiveness of these markets relies on them being visibly fair,
competitive, transparent and resilient. Our work this year to address the drivers of
harm showed how we act compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure markets
function well.

‘ Our work focused on 4 broad principal drivers of harm in wholesale markets. The
first key driver is serious misconduct such as financial crime or market abuse. The
second is, participants who do not deal with each other appropriately, due to conflicts
of interest, poor governance or inadequate systems and controls. The third is, poor
operational resilience leading to, for example, disorderly failures, successful cyber
attacks or market disruption which can harm both market participants and the wider
economy. Finally, where we identify markets that could be working work better, we may
intervene to improve their efficiency and effectiveness to ensure they better serve
users. The examples below illustrate how work in this sector advanced our.objectives
to promote competition and protect the integrity of financial markets. '

Outcome indicators -

Market abuse can cause harm by, for example, unfairly exploiting information
asymmetries and disadvantaging law-abiding market participants. This canlead to a
loss of confidence in the integrity of the market and reduce market participation.

The Market Abuse Regulation (MAR) was introduced in 2016. It requires market
participants to report orders and transactions that could constitute insider dealing,
market manipulation, attempted insider dealing or attempted market manipulation.

MAR expanded market abuse surveillance obligations on firms. The newregime increases
the number of suspicious behaviours that need to be reported to us, which is one of the
reasons the number of reports submitted to the FCA has increased. This expansion
included the reporting of suspicious orders as well as transactions, added attempted abuse
and increased the instruments, firms and trading venues within the regime. Further, the
new regime requires that for each individual participant a new Suspicious Transactionand
Order Report (STOR) must be submitted. For this reason, this year's datais not comparable
with previous years' data. In 2017, we received 4,829 insider dealing reports and 666 market
manipulation reports. This will be a baseline for reportingin future years.
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Each year we publish a Market Cleanliness statistic for the UK equity markets. This

is defined as the proportion of corporate takeover events for which we observed an

" abnormal movement in share price before the takeover announcement. We recognise

this is not a perfectindicator of market cleanliness, but itis 1 indicator of possible
insider trading.

Figure 4.1: Annual Market Cleanliness and number of events per year
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The 2017 Market Cleanliness statistic was 22%. This meansthat 22% of takeovers

in the UK were associated with abnormal price movements before the takeover
announcement. From 2009 to 2014 we saw this percentage fall but since 2014 it has
risen again. Since 2008 there has been a general downward trend in the number of
takeover events in the sample and this plateaued after 2013.

The statistic has several shortcomings as a measure of market cleanliness. First, in
terms of scope, it deals only with the equity market, and looks only at insider trading.
Second, in relation to accuracy of the measure, its volatility has increased due toa
reduction of the sample size; as the difference of just 1 or 2 positive events in a smaller
sample makes a bigger difference to the headline measure. To deal with this, we plan to
develop additional indicators to evaluate market cleanliness for the future.

Markets in Financial Instruments»Directiv‘e (MiFID 1)

The revised Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID 1) applied from 3 January
2018. The directive focuses on key drivers of harm, such as lack of transparency,

" inadequate operational resilience and stability, opaque disclosures of fee and charging 3

structures, conflicts of interest, asymmetry of information and product complexity.

This was a challénging deadline, and we finalised our rules in mid-2017 to ensure

" firms were able to meet it. We engaged with firms and trading venues to help ensure

market readiness for 'day one’. Our work included working with firms and venues on -
the authorisations and permissions necessary to operate under the new regime, the
delivery of our new Market Data Processor (MDP) system, and outreach to explain
policies and system requirements. Overall, implementation was smooth and markets
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remained orderly fhrbughout the process. We continue to work with industry as the
new regime is embedded to ensure firms maintain this posmve momentum while the
market adapts to the changes.

The UK's decision to leave the European Union (EU) has, and will continue to have,
a substantial impact on the way we work. A significant proportion of our resources
are already focused on the forthcoming exit, including arrangements to implement
the change. In December 2017, the EU Commission published a legislative proposal
- for anew prudential regime for investment firms authorised under MiFID. It offers a
-more suitable and tailored prudential regime for these firms to reduce and manage
potential harm from the way they carry outtheir activities. Over the next year, we will
be providing the Treasury with technical assistance during the negotiations for the
proposed text.

Since 3 January, our work has involved developing a view of firms’ overall
implementation of MiFID lI's requirements. This is part of our role in seeking to
improve the broad functloning of financial markets to add public value and improve
outcomes for consumers and in those markets. Post-implementation, our supervisory
activity has increasingly focused on ensuring that firms are complying with the new
requirements and assessing if the rules are working as intended. We have committed in
our Business Plan for 2018/19 to continue this work across a number of priority areas.

Asinall our supervision work, where we discover.possible serious misconduct, which
might include an outright failure to comply with new legislation, we consider what

_ measures may be appropriate to address this. We give more detail on how we treat
mlsconduct in our Approach to Enforcement. ' :

Benchmarks | : . ' »

From 1 January 2018, the EU Benchmark Regulation extended our regulation to cover

many more.benchmarks and their administrators, contributors and users. This will help
' to ensure that benchmarks are robust and reliable, and reduce conflicts of interest

in benchmark-setting processes, improving market integrity. Over this year, we have

also started major work to-ensure a smooth and successful transition from LIBOR to

behchmarks that are underpinned by a greater volume of market transactions. This

work will reduce the rellance on LIBOR and the risk of harm of a dlsorderly cessation of

the LIBORrate. :

Market Abuse Regulation (MAR)

" We have worked across the organisation to advance our market integrity objective -
by addressing the constantly evolving threat of market abuse. For example, we have
worked within the primary and secondary markets to address the threat posed by the
various asset classes.

We are working on several supervisory workstreams to assess whether firms have .
appropriate systems and controls to address the risk of market abuse. This includes
managing information and preventing, detecting and reporting market abuse.

" Conscious of the dangers of a tickbox approach to tackling market abuse, we have °
stressed it is important that firms have the right mindset. We have increased the
level of our external engagement with issuer groups to ensure that they have a clear
understanding of the dpplication of MAR and that they are disclosing and handling
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inside information appropriately. Qur increased focus on this area has also produced -
anumber of enforcement interventions in relation to issuers and thelr disclosure

obllgatlons

We recentlyllaunched a-guidance consultation which proposes to add a chapter to our
Financial Crime Guide on insider dealing and market manipulation. We will publish the
outcome in autumn 2018.

A key aspect of this work is to ensure that ‘gatekeepers' to the market are taking

_ responsibility for their role in reporting suspected market abuse and preventing it from”

takingplace in the UK markets.

" For.example, as'part of the approval process for Organised Trading Facilities under

MIFID Il, we made targeted visits to key firms. We checked their market surveillance
arrangements-to ensure they meet their trading venue obligations. Where we found
that these arrangements needed to be stronger, we required these firms to undertake
remedial work to resolve issues and protect the integrity of the markets.

The introduction of MIFID il provided a new and more detailed set of transaction
reports which has strengthened our ability to identify poor behaviour. This is coupled
with the increase in suspicious transaction and order reporting by the industry itself. At
the sarne time, we also make decisions to investigate suspected market abuse earlier,
which means we use our investigatory powers more effectively.

We opened 87 market abuse cases in 2017 compared with 120in 2016. We are

increasingly focusing on the discipline of primary market disclosures. This is illustrated
by 4 of our enforcement outcomes in the last financial year outlined betow.

Improving conduct across the industry

InNovember 2017, we issued-a Consultation Paper with proposals to recognise some
industry codes of conduct for unregulated markets. Our aim here is to encourage the
industry to develop and adopt codes that help firms achieve strong conduct standards,
even if they do not come under our regulation. :

In June 2017, we pubhshed a Policy ¢ Statement responding'to feedback on the -
proposed rules we consulted on following our market study into investment and
corporate banking. This market study analysed a wide range of primary market issues
and the effects of ctoss-selling and cross-subsidisation. We found that contract

*clauses can hinder competition as they restrict a client’s choice when they undertake

future transactions. As a result, we proposed that these restnctlve contractual. clauses
should be prohibited.’ :

7 Policy Statement 17/13 'Investment and corporate banking: prohibition of restrictive contractual clauses, .
www.fca.org.uk/publications/policy-statements/ps 17-13-investment-and-corporate-banking-prohibition-restrictive
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Making primary markets more effective

Poorly functioning primary markets can lead to inefficient allocation of capital. The
quality and timeliness of information provided to potential inve'stors and listing rules
which encourage issuers to meet high standards of transparency and governance are
key parts of ensuring these markets work well.

In October 2017, we published 2 policy statements to tackle these problems. One
introduced changes to improve the range, timeliness and quality of the information
-that firms give investors during the Initial Public Offering (IPOs) process. The other -

clarified aspects of the Listings Regime, including explaining the eligibility criteria.
for premium listed companies more clearly and reforming our approach to reverse
takeovers. ' - o

We also published a Consultation Paper in July 2017 to bring forward a targeted
proposal to reform the, categories of premium listing. We proposed including a new
‘listing category within the premium segment which will be available to commercial
companies controlled by a shareholder that is a Sovereign country. The consultation
closed in October 2017 and we received 36 formal responses. We listened to
participants in the consultation and amended elements of the proposals in light of that
feedback. The final rules were published in June. and took effect on’'l July 2018.

[y
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Investment management

This sector is a key contributor to the UK economy. It is important that we encourage

a competitive sector that works well for the millions of people who rely on it for their

long-terminvestments, including pensions. The cumulative impact 6f regulatory

~ changes has the potential to make a wide-ranging and positive impact on the sector,
driving more competition, and a greater focus on value for investors.

- Key drivers of-harm in this sector include poor'governance, badly managed conflicts of
interest, poor quality and value of products, and a lack of disclosure and transparency
about costs. These issues may mean investors pay too much for products and °
services, or buy products that do not deliver or behave as stated. Cyber crime and
disruptive technology can also potentially harm market integrity by interrupting service ~
provision, and increase the risk of money laundering. The examples below illustrate

how our work this year has advanced our objectives to promote competition and
protect consumers. .

Outcomeindicators

. Inline with our competition objective, our Asset Management Market Study (AMMS)
identified important harms in this sector, some of which involve the quality and value of
products provided. Overall, we estimate that over 75% of UK households are exposed
to the asset management sector, either directly or via their pensions.® We made final
rules on part of our initial set of remedies in April 2018. :

The indicators below are broadly similar.to measures used in the AMMS, but use
different methodologies and data to 'ensure that indicators can be répeated regularly
in the future. As a result, we cannot compare the indicators below with AMMS data. But
. we will use trends in the indicators below in future Annual Reports to assess whether
key harms may be increasing or decreasing in the coming years.

Pruce clustering

‘Price clustering' reflects dufferences in prncmg levels for servncmg Assets Under
Management (AUM) By itself, particular clusters of prices do not demonstrate

that consumers are experiencing a particular harm. However, our AMMS analysis
suggests that, along with other evidence, the pattern of price clustering indicates

weak competition for actively managed products. This is likely to drive sub-optimal
outcomes for consumers, eg prices that do not reflect the value added of the services
delivered. Our data for 2016 showed 3 main clusters accordmg toAUMat: 1.6to 1. 7% ‘
0.8t0 0.9% and less than 0.1%.

Strengthening price competition in asset management

Despite the large number of firms operating in the market, our Asset Management.
Market Study found evidence of sustained, high profits over a number of years. This
finding indicates weak price competition. We also found that investors are not always
clear what the objectives of funds are and fund performance is hot always reported

8- Source: Asset Management Market Study remedies and changes to the handbook - Feedback and final rules to CP17/18,p.3
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against an approprlate benchmark. This makes it hard for investors to reallstlcally
_ assess performankce. :

We have ﬂnalised new rules that strengthen the duty on fund managers to act in the
best interest of their investors, requiring them to assess the value they provide to their
customers on a regular basis. Fo,r'.the'ﬁrst time in the UK, we are also requiring the
Boards of fund managers to have independent members. We chaired a working group -
of industry and investor representatives to consider how to make the objectives of
funds clearer and more useful to investors. As a result, we have issued new draft rules
for conisultation. And where firms are dealing with large, institutional investors ~like |
those managing pensions —we have supported an independent group of investor and
industry representatives to work on better, more consistent disclosure of the costs
and charges investors are paying.

We think that, taken together, these measures will have a bigimpact and help
competition to work better in the interests of the millions of people investing through
this important market.

As part of the market study we also identified concerns about the way the investment
consulting industry operates and have made a market investigation reference to the
Competition and Markets Authority. Doing so demonstrated that we act compatibly
with our strategic objective to ensure markets work well.

We also published on our website a summary of our work on ‘closet trackers'” We

- found a large number of the funds we reviewed were not adequately describing how
investors' money was being managed. We have been working with firms to improve
their disclosures and consider appropriate compensation. We launched the Asset
Management Authorisations Hub to streamline the authorisation process for new
asset managers looking to set up a business in the UK. This is part of our comm|tment
to efficient regulation and enhanced competition. -

v

'Using our competition powers for asset management

In November 2017 we issued a statement of objections to 4 asset management ﬂrms
who we believe might have broken competition law. This was our first case using our.
competition enforcement powers. We alleged that the 4 firms shared information

by disciosing the price they intended to pay, accepting such information, or. both, in
relation to one-or more of 2 IPOs and 1 placing, shortly before the share prices were
set. This allowed them to know the others' plans during the IPO or placing process
wtien they should have been competing for shares. We hope these provisional findings
will send a clear message about how sertously we view the harm that can be caused by
'ﬂrms infringing competition Iaw

g Closet trackers www.fca.org.uk/firms/authorised-and-recognised-funds/closet-trackers

42



)

.

National Audit Office

ol

,

(N

Financial Conduct Authority . Chapter 4
Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 ’ Our sector priorities

.Managing future liquidity stress scenarios

Following the vote for the UK to withdraw from the EU, we reviewed valuation -
adjustments and suspensions of daily dealt property funds. We looked at firms across
the value chainincluding depositaries, platform providers, wealth managers and
financial advisers to see how they deal with liquidity risks. We found that the quality of
liquidity monitoring and management varies across firms, that firms could improve
their planning.for times of market stress and be clearer in their communications to
-customers following significant market events. :

The current regulatory regime for funds provides some protection againstthe
potential for unfair treatment of customers as a result of large fund outflows, fund
suspensions and pricing adjustments. We issued a Discussion Paper onilliquid assets
to open a debate on the broader issues around how firms should manage liquidity. We
are currently assessing the replies, and the findings of this research will help both us
and firms improve our responses to similar future market events.

Custody banks strategy

The UK custody services mdustry safeguards approximately £12 trillion of assets and
provides arange of critical services to investment managers. Assets under custody
are growing but the industry remains highly concentrated with relatively few providers,
which increases the sector's vulnerability to events such as cyber attacks. This makes -
it even more important that investment managers exercise effective oversight to
ensure the continuity and quality of these outsourced services. OQur aim is for the
sector to compete to win and retain business through service level quality, competitive
and transparent pricing and acting appropriately on.behalf of investors.

Blockchain technology N :

Firms have started to use new technology to achieve cost savings and efficiencies,
forinstance through straight-through processing. This has increased the use of
distributed ledger technology to share data efficiently and securely.-As always, take-up
of these new technologies presents both opportunities and risks of harm. We reviewed
firms’ cyber security and technology resilience arrangements. We found theyusea
range of offshore locations and rely on third-party IT vendors. We also found some
evidence that most firms rely on a relatively small number of these providers. This

level of market concentration may increase the likelihood of service interruption for
customers if there is an outage. We have fed back our individual rlsk assessmentsto
firms so that they can act on them. ~ ‘

Extending the 30 Day Rule for client money

A combination of banks' liquidity rules and a Client Assets Sourcebook rule that

prevented a firm from placing client money in bank accounts with unbreakable terms of

longer than 30 days made it mcreasmgly difficult for some investment firms to deposit

client money at banks. , _ , . X
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This year, we made changes to the 30 Day Rule to ensure customers continue to be
appropriately protected by firms holding their money. The final rules enable firms to
hold an appropriate proportion of client money in an unbreakable term deposit of up to
95 days, subject to certain conditions. These conditions include having robust liquidity
risk management and the appropriate level of financial resources in place. Thisisan -

. example of work done this year which advanced our consumer protection objective.

-
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Pensions and retirement income

How, and if, consumers save for retirement has a fundamental impact on financial
wellbeing in later life. Choices about how to take retirement savings are hugely

.significant, yet many consumers do not feel equipped to make these deosnons

conﬂdenﬂy o - ,

We want to ensure that consumers are equipped to make good decisions about how to

- fund their retirement (for example, through appropriate advice or guidance), that fhey

can access good quality, value-for-money retirement products and that they know
how to avoid pension scams and poor deals. Our work promoting these outcomes has
advanced our consumer protection and competition objectives. Further examples °

* below illustrate how work in this sector advanced these objectives. For example, our

work to reduce unswtable pension transfer advnce advanced our objective to protect,
consumers. :

We have covered 2 key areas of work in our Treatment of existing customers chapter:
the introduction of annuity prompts and an update on our Retirement Outcomes
Review.

Outcorhe indicators

'

Poor value products (workplace pensions)
There is no single measure of the harm caused by poor value products in this area but-
we will use the Déepartment for Work and Pensions's (DWP’ s) data on charges, which
are one component of value, to track changes over time. The most recent DWP survey
suggests that the average charge for a contract-based qualifying defined contribution .
(DC) pension scheme was 0.54%. In contrast, that figure is 0.48% for master trust
qualifying DC pension schemes and 0.42% for unbundled trust-based qualifying
schemes. We will monitor these figures to identify trends over time, for example to
identify whether competition is driving better value for consumers, and whether we-
should investigate differences between different parts of the market further. -

Unsuitable purchase or choices in decumulation

Retirement choices or purchases may be unsuitable for several reasons. For

example, consumers may experience harm if they do not make use of a guarantee
or'safeguarded benefit that they are entitled to when they access their pension pot.
So changes in the proportion of pots accessed where the customer surrendered a
guaranteed or safeguarded benefit could suggest anincrease or decrease in this harm.
During April to September 2017, 54% of the pots accessed with a guaranteed annuity
rate were accessed in a way that surrendered the guaranteed or safeguarded benefit.
We will eontinue to monitor this figure to identify emerging trends.

Scams

" Qur Financial Lives 2017 survey showed that in the previous 12 months 8% of UK

adults were approached with an unsolicited request to access a pension before the
age of 55, the chance to get money by unlocking a pension early, or the offer of a"loan’, .

"'saving advance’ or ‘cashback to take advantage of a pension deal’. Any of these could
- potentially be a scam. Nearly 1in 5 (18%) of all UK adults received calls, emails or text

messages claiming to be from the government offering retirement planning advice, -
.or received an offer of a free pénsion review. Far smaller proportions of.consumers
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responded to these offers. The proportions of the UK population responding to them

" were 0.2% and 0.9%, respectively.

These trends indicate thét‘con'sumers may be losing money as a result of unsolicited
approaches which potentially could be considered scams. We will therefore monitor
and report against developing trends in future annual reports.

A spotlight on non-workplace pensions

In February 2018, we launched a Discussion Paper to talk to in'dustry, consumers and
their representatives about the market for non-workplace pensions.

We want to understand whether competition is workiné wellin the market for personal
pensions and whether or not we need to go further to protect consumers. We asked

" for views and evidence about the factors that influence the behaviour of consumers

and providers and whether the way the market currently works ensures fair outcomes

“for consumers. This work advanced our competition objective, and we will continue

with further empirical work to help us better understand the issues.

Reducing unsuitable pension transfer advice

There is potential for considerable consumer harm if unsuitable pension transfer
advice is given to consumers, particularly if they are transferring out of Defined Benefit
(DB) pension schemes. Our work also needs to reflect the current environment,
including increased demand for pension transfer advice. Since the introduction of

the pension freedoms in April 2015, transfer values have increased and we have seen
historically high volumes of transfers out of defined benefit pensions.

This year we issued new rules and guidance aimed at providing advisérs with a
framework to help ensure they provide good quality advice so that consumers make
better informed decisions. These changes include requiring firms that provide transfer
advice to give a personal recommendation, which involves considering an individual's
personal circumstances.-We have also replaced the current transfer value analysis

with a comparison to show the value of the benefits the consumer is giving up in
pound terms, as well as a new appropriate transfer value analysis of their options,
personalised to each customer's needs and objectives. - ‘

We also issued a consultation on further proposals that we consider will, like the new
rules, improve the quality of pension transfer advice. Following this consultation, we
_plan to publish final rules in autumn 2018.

We sought views on whether tointervene onthe charging structures firms use for
pension transfer advice. Our possibie intervention options could include introducing
aban on contingent charging (a fee for advice that is only paid when a transfer goes

_ahead). We plan to set out our next steps in autumn 2018.

Our appr‘oéch to supervision has focused on acting on intelligence about specific firms
and assessing the firms which provide the greatest level of defined benefit transfer- .
advice. This has allowed us to take targeted action where we have found concerns -
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including opening 14 enforcement investigations on pension transfer advice. It has also
given us information about the market, which helped us develop our pollcy for Defined

Benefit to Deﬂned Contrlbutlon pension transfer advnce

In the case of the British Steel Pension Scheme, our work has resulted in 10-firms
ceasing to provide pension transfer advice. We have reminded advisers of our,
expectations and their obligations when dealing with unregulated introducers,

-including holding face to face meetings with advisers in Swansea and Doncaster.

We have also carried out an extensive programme to gather information, VISIted key
advisory firms and met with scheme. members to listen to their views -

"Making sure pension compensation is fair

ltis important that advisers and firms know how to act on complaints about advice to
customers to transfer all or part of the cash value of accrued benefits under a defined
benefit scheme into a personal pension scheme. So we have issued finalised guidance
to ensure firms are clear about this. We have also set out the assumptions firms should
use to calculate appropriate redress where they have given the customer advice which
was negligent or contravened relevant-requirements, where the customer would not-
have made the transfer if they had been advised properly.

Our expectations are clear that the basic objective of redress is to put the customer, '
so far as possible, into the position they would have been in if the non-compliant or
unsuitable advice had not been given or the breach had not occurred. Redress should

also reflect the features of the original defined benefit pension scheme.

‘Ensuring non-advised drawdown cu_stome'r,s are fully informed

The pension freedoms have led to more customers choosing drawdown products
rather than annuities. More than one-third of drawdown customers took this decision
without advice. So we completed a review of sales across a number of firms to
identify whether customers were bemg given the right mformat:on for whatis often a
complicated decision. : :

We found that firms are broadly meeting their obligations to communicate clearly
with customers. Written, oral and online information was generally in line with our

" requirements and gives customers the necessary information to make informed

decisions about their retirement options. But'we did identify some areas for
improvement and have given specific feedback to the relevant firms. Our aim is for
customers to fully understand the implications.of their decision to access thelr pension
savingsin thisway.

Our findings have also informed our Retirement Qutcomes Review.

47"



Chapter 4

Financial Conduct Authority

Our sector priorities ’ . Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

48

Customer information about enhanced annuities

We continued the work on customer information about enhanced annuities th_at we
committed to in our 2014.thematic review. This work took significantly longer than we

.originally anticipated, due to the complexity of developing accurate calculations for

redress.Last year we made these calculations available to firms, who started paying
redress to customers who missed out on better deals. We will monitor firms’ actions in
this area to ensure all affected consumers are compensated.

Evaluating how ﬁArms~ make investment decisions

' Many customers have pensions with lifestyle 'strategies which determine how their

pension pot is invested. 'Lifestyling” historically involves switching from equity-based
funds into fixed interest funds and cash assets as the customer nears retirement
age, to match a typical annuity purchase. In 2017, we carried out analysis to establish
whether firms were adequately reviewing their approach to lifestyling, given changmg
customer behaviour foilowmg pension freedoms.

Qur work found most firms were reviewing their approach. But it also highlighted a few
outlier firms who were not. We asked thesefirms to carry out a further assessment

of their approach and communicate with their customers to.explain how their lifestyle
strategy reflects their retirement options. These firms have now done this. Customers'
behaviour about their pension choices continues to evolve and so we expect firms to
keep this jssue under active review.

Reducing the cost and charges on workplace pension schemes

t

We have been working for some time on redufcing the level of costs and charges

.onworkplace pension schemes. Last December we reported that, following our .

instructions to providers, these costs and charges had been reduced to 1% or less on
around another £4.9bn assets under management since our last reportin December
2016.

We have written to all providers in our joint review with the DWP on industry progress
against the Independent Project Board recommendations. We clearly set out our
expectation that providers will continue to ensure that customers will not face high

costs and charges that are poor value for money. We also clarified that we expect

them'to engage on an ongoing basis with their Independent Governance Committees,
trustees and members, as needed to achieve this.

This is a good outcome for current and future members of workplace pension
schemes. They can now be confident that potential investment returns on their
retirement savings are not being eroded by excessive charges, increasing the likelihood
that their income in retirement will be higher. '
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Better transparency of costs

Previously, workplace-pension trustees have not always had effective oversight
because of difficulties in assessing if charges and costs provided value for money. This
year, we ensured that the. methodology firms use for calculating transaction costs
matches that required for products.under PRIIPs Regulation. This aligns our final rules
with work that firms are already required to do and ensures consistency with firms'
European obligations. It should reduce harm in the long term by giving those who
investin these funds more of the information they need to scrutinise value for money.
We have set out the methOdology for calculating transaction costs in a consistent
way, and.placed obligations on firms:to respond to requests for information about

costs. This helps build the foundations for these schemes’ governance bodies to meet

their obligations to review and consider the value for money of transaction costs and
administration charges. :

Scams

Our specialist teams continue to monitor the markets and analyse the intelligence

‘we receive to quantify and tackle cases of pension mis-selling and fraud. These cases

involve both regulated and unregulated firms. Where an authorised firm is involved, we.
have a range of tools we can use to tackle cases of pension mis-selling and scams. In
2017, weissued 3 alerts, 1 setting out our expectations on pension transfers, 1 on the

risks faced by pension scheme operators from:scams and 1 on the responsibilities of a.
principal firm over their Appointed Representatlves ‘We also reissued the ‘Protect your

Pension Pot'leaflet for consumers.

Our national ScamSmart campaign continues to raise awareness-of investment and
pension fraud among those who are approaching retirement, or have retired (see
Financial crime and anti- money laundering).

Information about pensions guidance

" As required under section 3330 of FSMA (as amended through the Pension Schemes
~ Actin 2015) we have complied with our duties to discharge the general pensions

guidance functions with a view to securing the appropriate degree of protection for
recipients of pensions guidance and to have regard to the statutory objectives and the
regulatory pr|n<:|ples Specifically:

+ We have monitored the provision of the Pension Wise service delivered through the
Department of Work and Pension'’s designated guidance providers.
» We have assessed compliance with the standards using a range of channels. These
include regular engagement with senior and operational staff at the designated
- guidance providers and by analysmg the management lnformatlon we receive from
them.
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Retail banking

Retail banking is central to the lives of virtually every consumer, business and
organisation in the UK, and the way consumers use it is constantly evolving. This
means harm in this market affects consumers profoundly, and involves products
beyond traditional current accounts.

Our work in 2017/18 reflected an environment in which the sector faced major
structural and cultural change because of new regulation, technological and societal
change. Competition was also relatively weak. Potential consumer harm from this
includes: buying unsuitable or mis-sold products, poor customer treatment, consumer
exclusion, products or services with high prices, or low quality when compared with
efficient costs. ~ :

[y D :
Outcome indicators

Weak competition :

We assess how competutron is working in retail bankrng by looking at a number of
indicators, including how many customers swstch current accounts.using the Current
Account Switching Service (CASS)

We recognise thata market with low switching could be working well, with keen
competition between-providers on price and service — customers may stay where
they aré because providers are competing to keep them. However, the Competition
and Markets Authority's Retail Banking Market investigation found low switching

rates alongside evidence of differing prices and service quality between banks, and
significant potential gains from switching for many customers. Given this, we will treat
increased switching between retail banks as one of a number of indicators consistent
with more effective competition over the medium term.

Recent data show that 931,956 customers switched accounts-over 2017 using

the CASS.!® To galige how switching relates to the health of competition, itis also
important to understand consumers' reasons for switching accounts or remaining with
their current provider, such as how easy it is to compare different providers. ‘ ‘

Financial Lives 2017 asked these questions. Of all UK adults who have switched their
day-to-day account' or opened a new account with the same provider in the past 3
years, 56% compared accounts from two or more different providers before doing so.

~ Ofthese, 96% found it easy to compare accounts from different providers.

In December 2017 we announced new rules designed to make it easier for consumers
to compare the services they could receive from drfferent providers. This will help us
monitor switching and its impact over future years

Vulnerable consumers and access to ﬁnanual products
Since September 2016 some of the largest firms have had an obligation to provide
basic bank accounts. The extent to which consumers are able to access these

10 We will use this figure as a benchmark to compare in future years.

it The.account people use for daytoday payments and transactions {excluding Post Office card accounts). For most peoplethisisa
_ current account. For others it can be a savings account {with a bank, building society or NS&J), a credit union savings account or an
emonegy account. ’



2

)

fi:

-Ifaﬁcnai Audit Offics

¢ LAy

(N A0) i

g

Financial Conduct Authority . . Chapter 4
' : < Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 ’ Our sector priorities

accounts therefore provides one indication of access to financial services in its most
fundamental form.

t

Financial Lives 2017 tells us that 3% of UK adults do not have a current account or an
alternative e-money account. Access to these accounts is important —being unable
to access financial services can cause serious harm. It potentially undermines people's
" ability to participate inimportant activities, and to take responsibility for their own
financial wellbeing. While financial institutions reserve the right to reject applications
for certain products and services, it is important that we understand why these

" customers are excluded.

Strategic review of retail banking business models

Our strategic review was launched in May 2017 to improve our understanding of retail
banking business models. We are examining the core differences between emerging
and traditional retaijl banking models and how these may affect competition and
conduct. By increasing our understanding of the market, this piece of diagnostic work
shows that-we acted compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure markets work -
. well, as well as furthering our 3 operational objectives. An important focus of this

work is to understand what impact innovation, the growing use of digital channels and
declining use of branches is having on business models and what the implications are

for consumers.

" The first phase of our work is focusing on readily available firm management.
information. This covers both qualitative aspects of the underlying business and
product lines within the firm, such as strategic plans, and quantitative financial and
non-financial information. We are using this, and data we already have, to establish a
baseline understanding of the business models within retail banking. This will form the
basis from which we can consider future alternative scenarios and undérstand the likely

. impact on different business models, as well as identifying potential sources of harmin

a timely way.

Payment Services Directive 2

The second Payment Services Directive (PSDZ) was implemented in January 2018.
It. introduces a range of Iegtslatlve and regulatory changes, which aim to strengthen
consumer protection and promote competition and innovation in the payments sector.
PSDz2 introduces new regulated activities in the form of account information and
payment initiation services. With a customer's consent, providers of these services are
entitled to access customer data and make payments from the customer's accounts
with other providers. With this access, we expect that providers of these new services
(sometimes dubbed 'open banking') will help foster competition and innovation in retail
banking and othe_'r sectors. Inline with our strategic objective to ensure markets work -
- well, this year, we continued to sit as an observer on the Steering Group of the Open
Banking Implementation Entity, which should provide industry with a standardlsed and
secure way to meet a number ofthe:r requirements under PSD2.

We have collaborated with other authorities and engaged with industry and consumers
to deliver PSD2. For example, we worked with the Treasury to implement the Directive,
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and together we published our expectations for new account information and payment
initiation services in July 2017. Following consultation, we published a Policy Statement,
new rules and an updated Approach Document in September 2017. PSD2 introduced
measures to address concerns that payment institutions’ access to bank account
services was being withdrawn or refused. We worked with the Payment Systems
Regulator to issue joint guidance on these measures. A number of elements of PSD2,
including EU level technical standards and guidelines, are still being put in place. We
consulted in March 2018 on our implementation of EBA Gwdehnes on operational and

‘security risk.

Ring-fencing ‘

Ring-fencing was one of several important reforms the Government brought in to
strengthen the financial system, following the financial crisis that beganin 2007.

It requires each large bank to separate retail banking activities fromthe rest of its
business. This should help to reduce harm, for example, by protecting customers and

"the day-to-day banking services they rely on from unrelated risks elsewhere in the

bqhking group and from shocks affecting the wider financial system. Qur work in this
area has therefore shown that.we have acted compatibly with our strategic objective
to ensure markets work well. Relevant firms need to comply with ringfencing rules by
January 2019. Our work to ensure they do is part of meeting our consumer protection
and market intégrity objectives: ’ :

During 2017/18 we worked with the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) to
monitor and manage potentially negative effects on consumers, market integrity
and competition as a resuit of changes to business models and structures. This has

. included preventing harm from occurring from changes to customers' accounts,
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particularly where firms require new account details. We have reviewed revised
governance arrangerments and operating models, including technology changes,
against our accountability, controls and resilience requirements. This work is
particularly relevant to business transfers-and regulatory transactions, such as
applications for new banking licehces and variation of permissions. We-will continue
this work in 2018/19, as firms complete their implementation of ring-fencing.

'P.ayment Protection Insurance (PPI) Remediation

fn March 2017, we decided toputin piace a deadline for making a new complaint

“about PPI, and in August 2017 started a campaign to encourage consumers who

were potentially mis-sold PPI to take action. It aims to elns'Ure that firms make it
easy for consumers (including vulnerable consumers) to check if they ever had PP|
and complain about PPl and give fair and accurate answers to those checks and |
complaints. We have also focused on the fair handling of the new type of complaint.
about undisclosed commission from PPl to lenders (following the Supreme Court

“decision in a case known as Plevin). This work aims to redress the harm caused to

consumers from mis-sold products.

Qurworkin 2017/18 included:
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. Iaunchlng a high profile communlcatlons campaign in August 2017 using the

~ animatronic héad of Arnold Schwarzenegger, to prompt consumers to-decide if they
.want to complain before the 29 August 2019 deadline —in January 2018 firms pald '
out £415.8m in redress to customers who complained about PPI

.. setting up a dedicated PPl helpline, which by end 2017 had assisted 16;500"callers

(with 850,000 accessing our expanded PPl website ‘pages)

« working with firms to ensure they deliver easily accessible online checking and
complaint submission for consumers, and free telephone lines

« beginningassessment of the accuraey of firms’ responses to consumers’ checking
enquiries, and their treatment ofvulnerable consumers who are trying to.check or
complain :

Following the first round of campaign adve'rtnsmg we were encouraged that consumer
awareness-of the deadline rose 5|gn|ﬂcantly More consurners are checking and
complaining about'PPI, and mare redreéss is being paid. The number of comp|amts
relating to PPl rose by 40% (439,854) to 1.55 million in the second half of 2017, the
highest level in more than 4 years, compared with 1.11 million in the first half of 2017. .

Broadening small business access to the Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS)

Small businesses have complained for some time that that they fall betweenthe,

- legislative cracks when trying to get complaints against financial services firms

resolved. Currently, only individual consumers and the smallest businesses {'micro-
enterprises’) have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service. Other businesses that
cannot resolve their financial services dispute directly with a firm would need to take
the firm to court. Many small businesses behave similarly to individual consumers when
using financial services and can experience harmin similar situations, but do not have
the financial or legal resources to take their cases to court.

In January 2018 we published a Consultation Paper on changes to our rules to allow a
broader range of businesses to refer unresolved complaints against these firms to the
Financial Ombudsman Service, ensuring they can be resolved quickly with minimum
formality. Our proposals, which we are consulting on, would extend access to the

-Ombudsman to all businesses with fewer than 50 employees, annual turnover of under
£6.5m and an anriual balance sheet total of under £5 million.

Authorised Push Payment (APP) fraud

' o : Co
APP scams trick consumers into authorising a transfer of money to an account that
they believe belongs to a legitimate payee but is in fact controlled by a scammer. As

~ well as the often considerable loss and distress to individual consumers, these scams
- also carry arisk of sngmﬂcant harmful side-effects on wider markets, the UK economy
" and wider socvety

Addressing the risk and associated harms of APP scams has been animportant focus
forusin pursumg our market mtegnty objective. In 2017/18 we worked with a number of
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banks to understand their policies and procedures for handling APP claims. In general,
we found that the procedures for handling APP scam cases were often unclear and not
consistently applied. There were also not enough data for us to fully understand the
scale of these scams. Although banks were working to improve their ability to detect
these kind of scams, some banks had made more progress than others. '

We contributed to the Payment Systems Regulator (PSR)'s November 2017 paper on
APP fraud, and support its proposal of a contingent reimbursement model, welcoming
APP Best Practice Standards introduced by UK Finance. In January 2018 we wrote to
bank Chief Executives about APP fraud and the Best Practice Standards, asking firms
to consider how they are'tackling APP fraud within'the context of the Senior Managers
& Certification Regime. We will continue to actively assess how these scams are
developing, and firms' responses, and will take further action if we decide itis needed.
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Retail Iénding

Most UK households use credit products, such as mortgages, loans and credit cards,
on a daily basis. Credit plays an important economic role and can be helpful for the
many consumers who use it without encountering problems. But for the minority
who'do. experience harm because of unaffordable borrowing or missing repayments
the consequences can be serious. Our focus, in line with our consumer protection
objective, is onunderstanding and reducing the harm that firms' poor conduct causes,
particularly when it affects more vulnerable customers or those with little financial
resmence

" The mortgage market is by far the largest retail lending market in terms of value. So

even relatively isolated misconduct in the sector can cause significant harm. Key
potential harm hére include firms selling unaffordable or unsuitable products, and
poor treatment of customers in financial difficulties. We are currently carrying out .
aMortgages Market Study which focuses on consumers' ability to make effectlve
choices in the first charge residential mortgage market. :

While smaller in value, the consumer credlt market serves a greater number of

“customers and includes more vulnerable consumers. Since we took over regulation of
consumer credit firms in 2014, we have worked to drive up standards. We have done

this by refusing authorisation for firms that do not meet our standards, introducing
new rules to protect customers, and taking supervisory and enforcement action
against-firms where they have fallen short of our expectations. )

Outcome indicators

We expect firms to undertake an appropriate assessment of consumers’
creditworthiness, including affordability. This helps minimise the risk of consumers .
taking on unaffordable debt which can lead to financial distress. This may happen if the
customer is unable to repay debt, or can only repay by suffering wider negative effects,
such as having to cut back on essential spending or defau\tmg on other commitments.

. Inextreme cases this can lead to bankruptcy, harm consumers mental health or have

wider social lmpllcatlons

v

Missed payments can have a negative effect on credit scores, and make it more

difficult for consumers to get appropriate credit products. Missed payments and
arrears can also be an indication of an unsuitable product that does not meet the
consumer s needs.

However, we recognise that missed payments can be caused by macroeconomic
changes like employment trends. As such; they will not always indicate unaffordable
or unsuitable lending. Because there are no definitive metrics, it can be difficult to
determine whether a product was unsuitable or unaffordable from the outset, or

‘became so through changes that the lender could not have reasonably foreseen.

Arrears data can provnde a useful lndlcator of consumer outcomes, and can prompt us .

toinvestigate further, either at a ﬂrm level or asector level. T

Unaffordable or unsuitable products: consumer credit
We have analysed data on consumers’' missed payments, and on the dlStl’IbUthﬂ of
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debts they hold, using data from Credit Reference Agencies (CRAs). Figure 4.3 is based '
on CRA data at September 2016, covering a representative sample of 1in 10 credit

files from one of the CRAs. These provide a potential ‘baseline’, together with other
data sources, to assess trends over time and whether harm caused by unaffordable or-
unsuitable credit products is likely to bei mcreasmg or decreasing.

The graph below provides a basehne for this indic_ator of harm. It shows the number of
consumers at September2016 who had missed at least one payment on a consumer
credit product in the previous 12 months.*?

Figure '4.3': Missed payments on consumer credit products as of September 2016

\ ~Number ofconsumers
o (millions)
0 . 2 4 6 . 8

I Il 4 2

Missing 1+ months of payments on 1+ products
Missing 2+ months of payments on 1+ products

Missing 3+ months of paymentson 1+ préducts

. Missing 1+ months of paymen,t's on 2+ products

* Missing 2+ months of payments on 2+ products

us Missing 3+ months of payments on 2+ proaucts N
&
z Missing 1+ months of payments on 3+ products

Missing 2+ months of payments on 3+ products

Missfng 3+ months of payments on 3+ products

Notes

Naticnal Au

Missed payments on consumer credit pro&uc’ts as of September 2016 and rounded to nearest 100.000.

Source: FCA Analysis of CRA data: www fca.org.uk/publication/feedback/fs17-02-technical-annex.pdf -

We know that missed payments may not in themselves indicate unaffordable or
unsuitable lending, and may not lead to financial distress. This may partly depend on
the firm's business model, including how much forbearance it gives to customers

in financial difficulty and whether and to what extent it applies default charges. It

may also depend on the frequency of repayments. Additionally, a consumer may

be making minimum repayménts‘under a revolving credit agreement but may be in
persistent debt, or making minimum repayments which mean they cannot repay other
commitments. . .

Unaffordable or unsuutable products: mortgages

In the mortgage market we look at the number of arrears cases which have payment
-shortfalls shortly after a mortgage has been sold. Where a consumer falls into arrears

within a short period of time (2 to 6 months} this could be an nndncator of an unsuitable

or unaffordable product having been sold.

12 The harm caused by unaffordab!e or unsuitable products is likely to be greater where multiple payments are missed on more than
ane product. .
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Figure 4.4: Incidence of payment shortfalls occurring soon after mortgagé sale
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Source: FCA Product Sales Data

‘These figures rely on the qualuty and timeliness of firms' data submlssmns Flgure 4.4 .
.shows the percentage of mortgages with payment shortfalls in the first 2-6 months’
after being sold in the first half and second half of 2017. We will continue to monitor -
this indicator in future because any sustained increases may indicate that we needto
do more work to assess if the harm of unaffordable or unsuitable mortgage sales is
increasing. : :

Improving access for older mortgage borrowers

Alongside the broader work oninterest-only mortgages (covered in Treatment of

- existing customers), we identified that our existing regulatory approach to retirement
interest-only mortgages was acting as a barrier to firms offering these loans. These
are interest-only loans for older borrowers where the capitalis intended to be repaid,
on death or when moving into long term care, by the home's sale. This barrier could
result in harm to older borrowers as their needs may not be met by the market.

As aresult, we consulted on changmg our regulatory approach to providing retirement
interest-only mortgages. In March 2018, we made final rules that should make it

more straightforward for lenders to provide such mortgages. Encouragingly, our
consultation revealed.considerable lender and consumer interest inhaving access to -
these mortgages. By reviewing our approach and designing a regime that s a better fit
for the risks involved, we hope to encourage lenders’ interestin this market and make it
‘easier for consumers to accessiit.

Making progress with affordability assessments in the Sécbnd-gharge market

We want to ensure that second-charge lenders lend responsibly to reduce the risk

of consumers being sold unaffordable loans. We tested firms on their affordability

- calculations and whether their income and expenditure analysis is robust. We identified .
examples of poor practice within firms' lending processes and areas of firms’ systems -
and controls. We found that some assessments were poorty handled and there was
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alack of transparency about how they reached decisions on lending. We also had
concerns about some firms' arrangements to protect themselves from belng used as
avehicle to perpetrate financial crime.

In March 2018 we issu,eo a 'Dear CEQ' letter to second-charge mortgage lenders to

. highlight our concerns. We asked firms to review their mortgage lending processes and

to confirm, by 1 May 2018, that they are lending responsibly-and that their processes,

- systems and controls ensure this happens. We will cantinue to monitor lending

standards in this sector to ensure that consumers are not sold unaffordable second-
charge mortgages

" Improving how credit is offered

High-cost credlt :
Many users of hlgh cost credit are on low incomes and may find it more difficult to cope
with unexpected changes to their income or expenditure than other borrowers. In part

reflecting the risk of default, borrowing for these consumers is particularly expensive.
" The cost potentially further reduces these customers’ ability to meet their wider financial

commitments and increases the risk of harm from the consequences of defaulting.

Despite this, credit provision can have a socially valuable function. High-cost credit
users typically have low credit scores. Many do not have savings and may need credit .
to make ends meet and avoid wider financial difficulties. Consumers can benefit from
using high-cost credit where repayments are sustainable and firms show appropriate
forbearance if customers have repayment problems. In January 2018 we published

an update ontheissues'we are examining with key stakeholders, including concerns
about the: rent-to-own, home-collected credit and catalogue credit sectors.

Our consultation paper (CP18/12) was published in May 2018, with a package of
proposals to reduce costs to consumers, improve sales practices, protect consumers.
at risk of financial difficulty, ensure repeat borrowing is consumer-led and encourage
market innovation to make alternatives more widely available. We also explained ’
that there is a-case, in principle, for considering the introduction of a price cap [in

this market] on rent-to-own products. We are now gathering and analysing evidence
needed to reach a final conclusion on this question. In‘May, we discussed fundamental
reform to the pricing structure of overdrafts and proposed new rules to help
consumers engage with and understand them better (CP18/13). . '

¥

Alternatlves to hlgh -cost credit

 Anessential part of our overall package is the work we are doing to foster the growth

of alternatives to high-cost credit. Greater availability and awareness of these
alternatives would reduce the number of people turning to high-cost credit services. It
would also provide options for consumers who may no longer be able to access high-
cost credit services after any possible interventions we make. Greater avarlablhty of
alternatives would therefore help consumers geta better outcome.

We are working with a number of public agencies to develop more effective approaches
to these problems. In some cases we can also act directly, for example by encouraging
referrals to alternative sources of credit. We have consulted on guidance, in CP 18/12,to -
give registered social landlords confidence over how to refer their tenants to alternatives - -
like credit unions and Community Development Finance Institutions.
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This year we also reviewed a sample of both fee-charging and free-to-customer debt
management providers. We have given more information on this in the Consumer
vulnerability and access to financial services chapter.

‘Addressing risks from staff incentives in consumer credit firms

How staff are incentivised, rewarded and monitored can influence the risks of them
mis-selling. We published finalised guidance and introduced new rules on staff

- incentives, remuneration and performance management in'consumer credit firms.
These will come into effect on 1 October 2018. We also consulted on new guidance

and rules following our thematic review of consumer credit firms that found practices '+

that were high risk and likely to encourage high-pressure sales or collections. Our .
approach was designed to help consumeer credit firms identify these risks, and to
explain to them our expectations of how they should manage and control them.

Assessing creditworthiness in consumer credit

Itis irhportant that firms undertake appropriate assessments of affordability (for the
borrower) and not just the credit risk that the consumer will be unable to repay. Failure
to do so canlead to consumer harm.

In July 2017, we published a Consultation Paper on proposed changes to our rules

and guidance on assessing creditworthiness, including affordability, to clarify our
expectations of firms. We expect to publish a Policy Statement during the summer.

Ensuring that firms calculate payment shortfalls accurately

We have issued finalised guidance for firms so that they understand how to remedy
situations where consumers may have been overcharged through automatically
capitalising payment shortfalls on their mortgage. We listened to the feedback we
received from stakeholders from our 2016/17 consultation. Our expectations of firms

and the relevant products where we expect the guidance to apply should now be clear.

Securlng redress for consumers

As part of our approach to regulatlon we will act to help ensure that firms pay
appropriate redress to affected customers ifthey have fajled to meet our standards.
Inthe past year we have helped secure almost £200m in redress for customers

of consumer credit firms. These included firms that failed to carry out adequate.
creditworthiness assessments, and failed to disclose the full price of add-on products.

Improving complalnts handling in consumer credit ﬁrms

We have written to consumer credit firrs ldentlfymg issues in complamts handling.
These problems include not providing the required information‘about the right to
contact the Financial Ombudsman Service, not providing satisfactory final responses
to complaints, and not carrying out sufficient investigation into the root causes of
complaints. Qur letter should remind all firms of our expectations about complaints, -
including the need to carry out reviews of their complaints policies and procedures.
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Assessing motor finance

This ye‘ar we published an update on our work on motor finance to explain our findings
so far. We found that most of the growth in motor finance has been to consumers with
better credit ratings, and that arrears and default rates are generally low. .

The lenders we reviewed appeared to be adequately managing the nsk to their busmess
from a potential fall in car prices. However, we have found séme areas of concern, such
asincreasing arrears and default rates for customers with the lowést credit scores

and some poor practices in the way firms provide information to customers. We also
found that some commission structures could lead to higher motor finance costs if not
properly managed by lenders and brokers. We are therefore focusing on these areas for
the remainder of the review, which is due to be published by the end of 2018,

N
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‘General insurance and protection

Generalinsurance and.protection products allow both individuals and businesses to
protect themselves against uncertainty, enabling a wide range of economic activity
that might otherwise be seen as too risky. It hasa central role in industries such as.-

" construction, agriculture, manufacturing, leisure and professional services. So it is vital
that this market, including the wholesale market underpinning it, works well and keeps
adapting to meet new needs and changing circumstances.

In line with our objectives to protect consumers and the integrity of financial markets,
our priorities in this sector are fairness, access and value for retail customers, and an
effectively functioning wholesale market. Within this sector, the key drivers of harms
include suitability of products, renewal pricing, mis-selling (including through outbound.
calls), low value products, operational resilience and cyber-crime.

Outcorne indicators

Digital.comparison tools and competition

Digital Comparison Tools (DCTs) including price comparison websutes can create
significant benefits — they can lower search, switching and transaction costs, increase
consumer engagement and reduce acquisition costs for suppliers.

A lack of trust in'DCTs could reduce the health of competition if it means that
consumers are less prepared to use all the DCTs available to them. This could make
consumers more likely to buy products that do not meet their needs or pay more for
products than they need to.

A number of drivers of harm are relevant but, as the CMA rdentnfled trust inDCTsis -
one key Fa.ctor.13 In Financial Lives 2017, 45% of UK adults with one or more general
.insurance or protection products said they trusted price comparison websites to get
them the best deal while 20% disagreed. We will use future surveys to monitor this
figure and to.track emerglng trends.

Treatment of clalmants :

We have identified poor treatment of clalmants as animportant harm in this sector.
An example of this is when a claimant has to wait a long time for their clalm tobe
processed, or firms make inappropriate decisions. We have done previous thematic
work in this area and our ongoing regulatory activity continues to highlight claims
experience. A number of metrics may be relevant to this harm. For example, trends in
the number of complaints upheld by the Financial Ombudsman Service may reflect
whether poor treatment is lncreasmg or decreasing. :

We will monitor changes inthe nurnber.of complaints upheld by the Ombudsm_an over

time as an indicator of harm. As not all consumers complain when poorly treated, it

is important to examine trends in upheld complaints over time rather than absclute |

numbers. We also need to view this information in the contéxt of other data, and

understand the reasons why consumers do not complaln as well as trends in the
number of referred complaints. :

13 The CMA Market Study on DCTs can be found here:
https:/assets.publishing.service. govuk/rnedval S9c93546e527da77468120d6/drg|tal comparison- tools-market- study-ﬁnal report pdf
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tume/were too busy.

Financial Lives 2017 identified that, 52% of UK adults who s&id they had experienced a
problem with their insurance did not complain. Of these, 28% thought their issue was
too trivial or it wasn't worth it. 17% thought it too difficult to complain, 45% thought
complaining would have no effect and'nothing would happen, and 25% dldn thave

A

We will monitor trends in these numbers, along with other data, to assess whether the
causes of claimants receiving poor treatment are likely to be increasing or decreasing.

lmplementing the Insurance Distribution Directive

We have published 3 Policy Statements with our near-final rules to implement the
Insurance Distribution Directive (IDD). The IDD is a new EU legal framework for
insurance distribution which replaces the Insurance Mediation Diréctive. It aims to

’ strengthen protection for consumers when buying insurance and support competltlon

betweeh insurance distributors by creating a level playlng ﬂe(d

The IDD regulates the activities of all distributors of insurance products, including

_.insurance products that have investment elements. It states what information
distributors should give thelr customers and imposes conduct of business and
transparency rules.

lthas been agreed at European level to delay the IDD from its original application date

of 23 February 2018. Member States are now required to transpose the directive by
1 July, 2018, and firms will be required to comply with the new: reqwrements from 1.
October 2018.

Access to travel insurance for cancer sufferers

We issued a Call for Input to seek views, ideally supported by examples and evidence,
of the challenges firms face in providing travel insurance for consumers who have, or
have had, cancer, and the reasoning for pricing differences in quoted premiums. We are
considering the responses and will be commenting further during 2018/19.

The Callfor Input represented the first stage in our broader engagement toimprove

* our understanding of the issues for vulnerable consumers accessing different financial

markets. While the paper focused on travel insurance for people who have, or have had,
cancer, the findings will broadly apply to other pre-existing medical conditions, and also
to other protection products. '

Increasing valuetransparency

Publishing data on general insurance value measures increases the range of information
available about general insurance products. This will help increase market focus on
suitability and value, as well as the headline price. In March '2018 we published the second
set of data from our value measures pilot to compare claims data across 4 general
insurance products. These products were home insurance (combined buildings and
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contents), home emergency insurance, personal accident insurance sold as an add-on
. to motor or home insurance and key cover sold as an add-on to motor insurance. We
expect this information to increase transparency and encourage firms to improve the’
value of their products. We are evaluating the impact ofthe pilot so far. We will then

decide whether we need a third pilot publication for the year to 31 August 2018, This pilot -

will allow us to develop and refine value measures before any potential consultatlon on
rules requmng firms to publish these data at regular intervals.

. Increasing transparency at renewal

The disclosure of renewal prices in general insurance is an important feature of
increasing transparency and engagement at renewal and preventing the potential
harm to consumers when prices are too high or quality too low.

New rules came into effect in April 2017 requiring firms to disclose particular
information within renewal notices. The rules require disclosure of the previous year's
premium and for firms to provide a statement encouraging consumers'to check their
cover and shop around. The rules apply to all general insurance products provided to
retail customers (exc'lddjng SMEs) with a duration of greater than 10 months.

This year, we reviewed how firms had implemented these rules. While we found
examples of good practice, we were concerned that firms were under-prepared to .
accurately implement the renewal transparency rules. As a result, we have taken
action with individual firms where we have identified issues and published a number of
market-wide commumcahons to remind firms of our broader expectatlons

Firms' pricing practices

In 2016 we issued a Call for Input Feedback Statement on big data in retail general
insurance. This'year we undertook diagnostic work to look at firms' pricing practices.
Our aim was to improve our understanding.of the systems and data that firms
use to decide the final price to consumers and firms' governance and oversight
arrangements. We 3lso looked at the types of systems and third party data firms use to
. decide the final price to consumers. We will be building on this work in 2018/19 to look
at whether we need to intervene further to ensure future insurance pricing practuces
work well for consumers. :

‘Wholesale Insurance Broker Market Study

Acting compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure markets work well, and to -
advance our competition objective, we launched our Wholesale Insurance Broker
Market Study in November 2017 to consider how well competition is working in this -
sector. We want to ensure that the sector is working well and fosters innovation and
competitionin.the interests of its diverse range of clients. Our study includes looking.
at how brokers compete in practice and whether they use their bargaining power to
get clients-d good deal, how they manage conflicts of interest, and how broker conduct
affects competition. Our work on this projectis ongoing.
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Retail investments

Consumers who decide to take advice on investments need to know that it is suitable
for their needs, consistent with their approach to risk and that they are not being
overcharged. This is increasingly important since the freedoms were introduced, as
many consumers now face increasingly complex financial choices. Our strategy for
supervising the quality of retail invéstment advice is twofold. First, we aim to improve

_ standards across the market and periodically assess whether this has happened.

Second, we focus on specific areas of advice where levels of suitability can be |ower

. These include high risk investments and pen5|on transfers.

Outcome indicators

Unsuitable or mappropnate products

Customers may receive unsuitable advice which can result in them buying unsuitable
or inappropriate products. In line with our objectives to ensure markets work well

and to protect consumersin May 2017 we published the results of our review of the
suitability of pension and investment.advice in the financial advisory: sector. The results

- showed that thereis suitable advice in 93. 1% of cases. However, customers still receive

unsuitable advice in 4.3% of cases and unclear advice in 2.5% of cases.

In 2019 we intend to re-assess the suitability of advice. Comparing the results of that
réview to the results published in May 2017 will help us |dent|fy potentlal tréndsin
numbers of customers who are at risk of this harm.

Consumers paying too much for a service and/or receiving more services than
they need :
Consumers are harmed if they pay too much for advice, given the service they -
receive. This harm may arise if competition in the advice market is poor. For example
consumers may struggle to accurately assess if they are getting value for money in
terms of the price or quality of the services they are offered partlcular|y for complex
products.

/7
Soit is important that consumers receive clear information on prices. Evidence from
Financial Lives 2017 suggests that 3% of UK adults with retail investments experienced
a problem with complex fees or charges in the previous 12 months and 1% experienced
a problem with an investment product costing more than expected We will mon[tor

how this figure changes to see whether it implies that harm is reducing.

Operational issues with platforms

If consumers are unable to access the platform they have invested through then they
will not be receiving the service they reasonably expect and are paying for. Recent
complaints data tell us that firms received 15,834 complaints about their platform
service, caused by general administrative or customer service problems. We will
monitor trends in the number ofcomplalnts to identify how many custémers could be
harmed this way.
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Action on Contracts for Difference (CFDs) and binary options

These pfoducts are complex and often unsuitable for retail customers. Through:
2017/18 we have sought to ensure that firms only séll CFDs— and binary options, which
entered our regime from 3 January 2018 —to an appropriate target market.

CFDs

We released a statement in June 2017 which conﬂrmed that CFD firms were still

not meeting ourexpéctations on making appropriate assessments for non- -advised
services. Our release set out the shortcomings we had identified and confirmed

there were still key areas of concern following our February 2016 'Dear CEQ' letter. In
November 2017, in line with our objective to protect consumers, we issued 2 consumer
warnings to alert consumers to the investment risks of both binary options and CFDs
where cryptocurrencies are the underlying investment.

In January 2018 we released a further ‘Dear CEO’ letter to CFD firms. This highlighted
failings which might cause significant consumer harm when these firms sell CFDs on both
an advisory or discretionary basis. Firms were reminded to consider these issues, and told -
that we expect them to have regard to the applicable rules and guidance in the letter.

Bmary options . - :

Since 3 January 2018, firms involved in bmary optlons tradingin the UK mustbe
authorised by us. Firms that are not authorised by us and continue with binary options
activities will be acting in breach of section 19 of FSMA, which is a criminal offence.

" .. We have published a list of 91 firms without FCA authorisation that we understand

are offering binary options trading to UK consumers. Many of these firms claim to be
based in the UK but we are examining each of them to determine whether they are
genumely operating from within the UK. If they are, we will consider taklng enforcement
action through the courts to stop their |I|egal activity.

Product mteryentnon measures - )

In 2017/18 we have continued to contribute to the European Securities and Markets
Authority (ESMA) Task Force set up in 2015 to focus on consumer harm frorm both
CFDs andbinary optlons We support the agreed temporary product intervention

" measures ESMA‘announced on 27 March 2018

« prohibiting the marketing, distribution or sale of binary options to retail clients

+ restricting the marketing, distribution or sale to retail clients of CFDs, including
spread bets and rolling spot forex :

The restrictions to CFDs aim to reduce the risks from these products. The restrictions
are: leverage limits (between 30:1 and 2:1); a 50% margin close out rule applied on a
per account basis, negative balance protection, limiting retail clients' liability to the
funds in their CFD trading aceount, a prohibition on firms offering monetary and non-'
monetary benefits, and a standardised risk warning, including firm-specific figures on
the percentage of client accounts that have lost money trading CFDs. ~

Inlight of the ESMA intervention, we announced a delay on publishing our final rules for
national measures in summer 2017. We now expect to consult on whether to apply the
ESMA measures on a permanent basis to firms offer:ng CFDs and binary op’uons to retail
clients.
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Making advice more accessible

This year, we published new Perimeter Guidance on what cohstitutes a personal
' recommendation. This means we have now implemented all of the recommendations
' made to.us as part of the Financial Advice and Markets Rewew (FAMR) apart from the
_review due to take placein 2019. :

Our guidance is.intended to give firms greater confidence that they can, among other
things, inform a customer that they have not increased their pension contributions
over along period of time, warn them of any negative consequences of a transaction”
they want to make and offer products designed to meet a particular investment
objective without necessarily making a personal recommendation.

Automat'ed advi;:e

Consumers may seek advice on how suitable products are in a range of different .
ways. Making a range of products avajlable can provide better consumer choice and
@ .so improve competition. The automated investment management services market
& remains in‘its infancy, with models typically being developed to provide advice and
O services on less complex investment business. We wanted to understand these new
& methods of delivering advice and assess if consumers are being well served by them.
Acting compatibly with our strategic objective to ensure markets work well, over
the past year, we carried out 2 reviews into automated investment management
_services. We assessed 7 online dlscretlonary investment management propositions
~ . and 3 online investment advice services. We found that the cost for automated
( investment management services and.advice has reduced significantly compared
with more traditional, typically face-to-face, channels. We used our findings in our
communications with industry. We will continue to support firms, for example, through
our Innovate programme, and also carry out ongoing assessments of developing -
markets like automated investment advice. We expect existing firms and new entrants -
into this market to consider our findings to ensure they deliver good‘outcomes for
consumers. ' : -

_Nationai A

High-risk investment

We know consumers suffer harm when firms recommend they buy unsuitable
products. This includes high risk investments that are not appropriate for consumers
with lower risk appetites and those without the financial capability to cope with a
significant reduction in their capital. In line with our consumer protection objective,
our supervision in 2017 included multi-firm work to ensure we better understand the

~ level of high risk investments recommended to retail consumers. We requested details
on the high risk investmerit activity of 152 firms and analysed their responsés. This
work also assessed what product disclosures firms provided to consumers before
investment. We will continue this work in 2018 and use the results to shape our future
supervision activity for these types of investments. .
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Engaging with advisers

-As part of our supérvision work we engage with advisers to encourage good practice in
the advice and services they offer to retail consumers and ensure we understand how
the market is working. ‘ :

As in previous years, we ran a series of 'Live and Local’ events across the country. '

" These events give local firms and practitioners access to supervisory workshops, firm
surgeries, roundtables and Chairman's lunches. These events are well attended and
allowed us to speak dlrectly to over 1,250 financial advisers. This year our interactive
supervisory workshops focused on the outcomes of our Assessing Suitability. Revnew
providing headline ﬂndlngs and sharing examples of good and bad practrce

We also supported the Personal Finance Society quarterly regional conferences again
this year. While previous years' sessions largely addressed suitability and disclosure, this
year we presented forward-looking sessions on the implementation of MIFID I, IDD and
PRIIPs for financial advisory firms, These sessions allowed us to discuss some ofthe key
requirements from this Ieglslatlon with over 3,350 ﬁnancral ad\nsers .

Uncovering the impact of platforms on charges

Welaunched our investment platforms market study in July 2017 to assess how
-platforms compete and the impact they have on the overall charges investors pay for
their retail investment products. We committed to do this in the final report of the
Asset Management Market Study, which highlighted a number of potent|al competltlon
issues in the platforms sector. :

This year we have gather’ed evidence from platform firms and other firms which
compete for retail investments as well as financial advisers and consumers who use
platforms. We will publish our interim reportin Summer 2018, setting out any problems
we see in the market and any relevant action we intend to take. Where we see issues in
the market that we can tackle, we will take appropnate action.

Packaged Retail and Insurance?based Investment Products (PRIIPs)

.PRIIPs took effect on 1 January 2018, with the aim of encouraging efficient EU markets
by helping investors better understand and compare the key features, risk, rewards and
costs of different PRIIPs. Firms must provide this information in a short and consumer-
friendly Key Information Document (KID). The PRIIPs Regulatory Technical Standards
sets out how firms should calculate and present this information.

In May 2017 we published PS17/6 - setting out amended rules and guidance inthe FCA
Handbook that reflect the application of the PRIIPs Regulation and introduction of the KID.

Some firms have told us that the ‘performance scenario’ information required in the

- KID may appear too optimistic for a minority of PRIIPs and so be potentially'misleading.
We have publically stated that firms can provide additional explanatory materials, to -
put the calculation in context and to set out their concerns for investors to consider.
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5 ‘Working with our partners

We are-an integral part of the UK's wider financial regulation framework. An intrinsic
_part of our work involves joined-up working with a range of different partners.,

These range from international regulaters and agencies with whom we tackle global

regulatory concerns, to close collaboration and liaison with'a range of UK bodies,

covering areas such as consumer awareness, prudentlal regu!atlon and forming policy

on emerging risks to our objectlves :

The Bank of England Prudential Regulatlon Authorlty (PRA), and Payment Systems
Regulator (PSR) have a Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) with the FCA dated
March 2015. It sets out how the authorities will cooperate with one another in relation
to payment systems in the UK. The MoU is reviewed annually, and the latest review
concluded that cooperation and coordination under the MoU is working well.

I . .
& Payment Systems Regulator
) _ : —
%f The PSR became fully operational on 1 April 2015 and s an independent subsidiary
s T . of the FCA. The first regulator of its kind in the world, its:purpose is to make payment
A Z‘E systems work well for the people and organisations that use them. This is supported by
? £ its objectives of promoting competition, innovation and service-users' interests.
=4 . ng !
S Z

The FCA and PSR are the competent authorities for monitoring and enforcing different
parts of the Payment Services Regulations 2017. Both the FCA and PSR are responsible

for monitoring compliance with Regulation 105 (access to payment account services). We -
have worked closely with the PSR to develop our approach to these regulations and we
coordinated publication of our policy statements to implement our own relevant rules. -

_InNovember 2017, we contributed to the PSR's paper on authorised push-payment
scams following the Whlch? super-complaint about safeguards in the market for push

_ payments.

More information about the activity of the PSR over the last year can. be found.in |ts
own Annual Report.

Prudential Regulation Authority -

*. Much of our co-ordination with the PRA happens daily through our joint working,
supplemented by regular scheduled meetings at senior level. Our Chief Executive is

- amember of the Prudential Regulatlon Committee, and the PRACEQis a member of
the FCA board.

We have a Memorandum of Understanding with the PRA which includes arrangements
for how we carry out our responsibilities and how we measure our performance ..
-through detailed quarterly reporting. It also underlines our aim of working in an
independent but co-ordinated way. : '
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The PRA identifies certain firms as being important to the stability of the UK financial
system, and it is a statutory requirement for us to hold an annual meeting with
these firms' external auditors. The purpose of those meetings is to gain a deeper
understanding of issues at these firms, and the themes and trends arising from the
external auditor's work. We scheduled and carried out 30 of these meetings during
2017/18.

The PRA has the power of veto where it considers that-action we are taking may
_threaten financial.stability or cause the failure of a PRA-authorised personin a way that
would adversely affect financial stability. This power has not been exercised this year.

The regulators have co-ordinated effectively on policy issues such as the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime, remuneration and ring-fencing of banks. This year
we have worked closely with the PRA to ensure that additional information is collected
as part of regulatory reporting under MiFID ll and made the relevant changes to the
forms used by MiFID investment firms. We also continue to work together on matters
relatmg toEU Wrthdrawal

The regulatorswork closely together to respond effectively to specific incidents
through the Authorities' Response Framework. This ensures a co-ordinated response
by the FCA, Bank of England and the Treasury to any event that causes major

. disruption to the financial sector and/or to the authorities.

Both regulators continue to review the shared FSA _IT legacy systems to ensure both

organisations have systems which meet their individual needs while supporting a-
‘collaborative approach to sharing information

Financial Policy Committee (FPC)

The FPC is the UK's responsible body for identifying, monitoring and mitigating )
financial stability risk. Our Chief Executive is a member of the committee and we work
closely with the Bank of England on areas of interest to the FPC. In 2017/18, this work
tocused primarily on consumer credit, EU Withdrawal, developments in automated
electronic trading in financial markets, FinTech and cyber risks.

Oversight Committee

The FCA Board has several committees to which it delegates certain function/powers.
One of these is the Oversight Committee. This is responsible for providing support
and advice to the Board on its relationship with the Money Advice Service (MAS) and
its obligations under FSMA in respect of MAS. The Committee has the ability to extend
its scope to carry out other assignments as specifically mandated by the Board, for
example, to review the Plan and Budget of the Financial Ombudsman Service or the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme from time to time'if required.
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Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS)

Consumers who are dissatisfied with regulated firms' response to their complaints
can complain to the Ombudsman. We work closely with the Ombudsman Service to
understand the problems that consumers are facing. We use both their complaints
data and the data that we collect from firms to help us assess the scale of possible
current and future problems in the market.

Financial Services'Compensafion Scheme (FSCS)

We work with the FSCS, the independent body which handles claims for compensation -
- from consumers when regulated firms become insolvent.

This year we finalised rules to extend coverage of the FSCS, to increase the protection. ‘
it provides to consumers and to amend the way that the cost is allocated to ensure the
scheme is funded fairly and sustaxnably

The Money Advice Service ([MAS)

We work with MAS, an independent organisation responsible for providing free,

impartial financial guidance across the UK, and for funding and co-ordinating the

provision of free debt advice.

Following a Government consultation in 2016 it was agreed that the Money Advice |
Service, Pension Wise and the Pensions Advisory Service would join together to form

a new Single Financial Guidance Body (SFGB) which would be better able to respond to -
the different financial guidance needs of consumers.

The Government anticipates that the Single Finance Guidance Body will be launched no
later than the end of 2018. We continue to work with MAS, the Department for Work and

" Pensions, the Pensions Advisory Service and the Treasury to provide support throughout -

the transition process to ensure that the new model is implemented effectively.

In addition, we are working with the Financial Ombudsman Service, FSCS and MAS to
share information and insight more effectlvely across organisations.

Competition and Markets Authority,(CMA)

The CMA works to promote competition for the benefit of consumers, both inside

“and outside the UK. Its aimis to make markets work well for consumers, businesses

and the economy. The CMA has competition law powers which apply across the

whole economy. Since 1 April 2015, we have had concurrent competition powers in
relation to the provision of financial services. This means we have the power to enforce
prohibitions on anti-competitive behaviour, additional powers to conduct market

- studies into how competition is workmg in markets and powers to refer markets to the

CMA for in-depth investigation.
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This year, we made our first market investigation reference to the CMA on investment
consultancy and fiduciary management services, following the Asset Managerment
Market Study, as highlighted in our work on the Investment management sector.

The Pensions Regulator (TPR)
We continue to work closely with TPR. For example, in March 2018, we published a call for

input on our strategic approach to the pensions and retirement income sector. This will
set out how the FCAand TPR willwork together to tackle key risks in the next 5-10 years.

" Information Cbmmissi'oner's Office (ICO)

This year, we have continued to work with the ICO. For example, in February 2018, the
FCA and ICO published a joint update on the EU General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR). Another example of how we are working together is innovation, where the ICO
is providing tailored input to the FCA's Innovation Hub.

International partners

Over the past year, our participation in European and global bodies and activities"has

remained a core part of our work. Whatever the eventual terms on which the UK leaves

the EU, the relationships between, and the work we undertake with, regulators and

. bodies bothin the UK and internationally will remain a crucial part of ensuring markets
work wellin the UK. ) '

We continue to closely engage with many other international organisations, including the:

+ - International Organisation of Securities Commissions

» Financial Stability Board

+ International Association of Insurance Supervisors

» Financial Action Task Force

+ Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development

» International Financial Consumer Protection Network

» European Banking Authority .

» European Securities and Markets Authority

e European Insurance and Occubational Pensions Authority

» Eurdpean Systemic Risk Board
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In addntlon to our ongoing engagement with a range ofmternatnonal policy forums, we

continued to work c|ose|y with many other regulators on a one-to-one basis.

Sfatutory panels

~ We are required to consult on the impact of our work with 4 statutory panels. These
. panels represent the interests of consumers, practitioners, smaller regulated firms and

markets. We also consult the Llstlng Authority Adwsory Panel.

These panels play animportant roIe in both advising and challenging us. They bring.

a depth of experience, support and expertise in identifying risks to the market and
consumers. We consider their views when developing our policies and when deciding
and implementing other regulatory interventions. Each of the statutory panels
pubhshes its own annual report. The Panels are:

The Fina'ncial Services Consumer Panel

. .The Practitioner Panel

« The Smaller Business Practitioner Panel
¢ The Markets Practitioner Panel

« The Listing Authority Advisory Panel (non-'statutory)

Consumer organisations

. We actively seek insights from consumers through a véfiety of sources including

consumer bodies and the Financial Services Consumer Panel. To enable us to meet
our consumer protection objective, we undertake extensive research to build our
knowledge of consumers and their needs.

We continue to work closely with a range of consurner organisations across the UK
to ensure our regulatlon reflects real-life consumer experlences Our consumer |

_organisation network includes:

72

. Age UK ' \

 AdviceUK - | |

* “Alzheimer's Society

° Citizene Advice (England and.WaIes, Scotland, and Northern lreland)
. Christiens Against Poverty (CAP)

« The Consumer Council for Northern Ireland

» Money Advice Scotland
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» Money Ad\(iee Trust |

. Money and Mental'Health Policy Institufe :

. MoneySavingExper’e . o ' 4
. National Aseeciation of Student Money Adyi-sers' (NASMA) A
-+ Scope . '

. Shelter

+ StepChange

-

e The Moﬁey Charity -
e | ‘To'ynbee'Hau |

o Which? |

We ehgage with a growing range of other groups who work di\;ectly With consumers,

to help us spot emerging issues. We.also convene and attend forums across the UK to
gaina better picture of grassroots consumer issues. :

Working with our comimunities

Our community engagement programme encourages our people to volunteer with
their chosen registered charity or.comimunity group. We encourage volunteering by
allocating paid time off for employees to be active in the community. Last year 1,134-
people across our Edinburgh and London offices volunteered a total of 13,549 hours
This represents 32:6% of employees agalnst our target of 30%.

Charitable donations

Our Charity Committee supported Richard House Children's Hosp|ce Alzhelmer s
Society, Alzheimer's Scotland and Friends of Braidburn throughout 2017. All donations
-come from staff fundraising efforts. Excluding gift aid they raised: .

"« . Alzhéimer's Scotland - £1,693.26

. Alzheimer's Society — £17,443.18

» Friends of Braidbum School - £229.55

». Richard House Children’s Hosplce ElS 42567

Through Payroll Giving in 2017, our employees donated 6215 685 to various chantles
‘anincrease of £57,693 from 2016. .

Andrew Bailey S§ § (B '
Chief Executive : : -
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6 Group operational overview

To deliver our objectives as effectively as possible we: -

+ encourage diversity
* investinour peoplé, infrastructure and systems
e USe our resources in an economic, effective and efficient manner.

This review focuses on the financial performance of the Group in 2017/18. In particular, it covers:

- 1. results for the year

2. analysis of income and operational costs

(‘3. overall financial position at 31 March 2018
4. principal risks and uncertainties

 National Audit Gfice

Section 1 -Results fo_r‘tﬁe year

The Group generated a £86.1m surplus for 2017/18 (see Table 1) primarily resulting from improvements
in the funding position of the defined benefit pension scheme due to positive investment returns on
assets combined with contributions to the scheme. We also recovered more than we spent on scope
change activities {largely reflecting the continued recovery of Consumer Credit $et up costs) and
underspent against fees collected for Ongoing Regulatory Activities (ORA).

This surplus has resulted in a significant improvement in the Group's net deficit position to £87.3m (see -
Table 4).

Tablel - S : ( _
S . o e - R 2018 ¢ - 2617, .
. Group Surplus/{Loss) . i ) ) - - .- €m| - C€m
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on Pensjon Scheme : 329 {65.3)
Pension contributionincome tékento_Balance Sheet ) [ 30.1 © 297
Pension interest charge » (49| (4.8)

" Total Defined Benefit Pénsion Scheme B = i 58.1 : (40.4)
FCA over recovery of ORA ’ ) 17.3 237
PSR under recovery of ORA . . _ e "~ (3.0 (0.6)
Net recovery of Scope Change ' - 137 8.1
Total Group surplus/{loss) ' . - 86.1 {9.2)
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- Section 2 - Analysis of I.ncpme and operational costs

Income
"Chart 1~ The Income breakdown 2017/18

B Ongoing Regulatory Activity Fees
£508.9m (84.8%)

i4 Scope Change recoveries
£28.1m(4.7%)

B Otherfincome

£19.7m (3.3%]}
Total Group

income . W Special Project Fees
£€600.3m £19.9m (3.3%)

B Application fees
£13.4m{2.2%)

& PSR Feeincome
£7.8m (1.3%)

B EU Withdrawal
© £2.5m (0.4%)

Fees: We do not receive funding from the UK government. We are funded by raising fees from the firms
we regulate. FSMA gives us the powers to raise fees to cover our budgeted Ongoing Regulatory Activity
(ORA). This represents the net costs of our core operating activities after offsetting Other Income.

The income we get from fees includes application fees, other regulatory income (including fees to
support EU Withdrawal activities) and scope change (set up costs of new responsibilities) recoveries.
Under certain circumstances, such as when Parliament introduces new legislation, there may be changes
to the scope of our regulated activities which can include new responsibilities. Major work resulting from
this scope change is reported separately from ORA, so it is individually identifiable from a cost and fee
perspective. We include these activities as part of the cost of ORA only when this scope change work
becomes part of our business as usual.

Other Income: This includes income from certain publications and training services we provide,
recovering the costs of Skilled Persons to carry out s166 reviews, interest.on bank deposits,'and income
for providing, Ievymg and collecting fees for other regulatory bodies:

Operational costs

Chart 2 - How we spend our money

"W Staff Payroll Costs {net of capitalised costs)
£321.6m (59%)

. IT Costs
£75.9m (14%)

Professional Fees
£45.6m (8%)

Total.Group L M Accommodation and Office Services
Operating Costs £39.2m1{7%)

£547.2m R .
¥ Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

£37.2m{7%)
B Training, Recruitment and Wellbeing
£11.8m (2%)
. B PSR Costs
£8.9m (2%) )
71 Traveland Other non-staff costs .
£6.9m (1%)
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2.1Investingin our people :

We aim to attract, develop and keep the best talent, as the quality of our people is key to our ability to
meet our objectives. The following areas reflect key people related activities with a mixture of strategic
and operational importance. :

Table 2
Average staff numbers ' S : . 2018 ' - 2017
Supervision ' 1,342 1,332
Enforcement and market oversight 643 - 670
Strategy and competition ' ' . 522 435,
Operations and central services C 989 o 926
' FCA full-time equivalent employees ' o . ' "il 3,896 '3.3_53
Payment Systems Regulator o 65 . ' 58
Gibhpfull-ti‘me eduivalentemployees ’ . ) e 356j o o 1’:'4—21
. Group temporary and contract staff . ©.178 214
Total Group T o . ) _ L 3739 i L. 3,635

o Attracting and keeping talent: :
& We recruited 43 Graduates and 20 Summer Interns. This year, we received 4,718 graduate applications, a
O 45% increase compared to 2016/17 Applications came from 338 different universities.”

R

— <‘[ We increased our apprenticeship programme from 10 to 17. We received 824 applications for 10 different .
A w € apprenticeship programmes. We are meeting the Government's annual apprenticeship duty target to
o O train 2.3% of our headcount through apprenticeships. A

Natic

We have promoted internally wherever possible, making effective use of our existing talent. Where we
have not found the necessary skill sets internally we have been successfulin attracting people to join the
organisation. During the year we made 1,102 appointments (1,074 FCA, 28 PSR), through a combination
of 574 internal moves (567 FCA, 7 PSR) and 528 external appointments (507 FCA, 21 PSR). External
turnoverhas increased slightly by 0.5% this year and ended the year at 11.4%.

Listening to our staff .
Our annual employee survey helps us to understand our people's views on working here, what we are
doing right and where we can improve. Acting on this feedback both builds a better workplace and makes

us a more effective regulator.

In the 2017/18 employee survey, 68% of our staff said they were positively engaged in working at the FCA
(up 1% from 2017). Our employees consistently tell us through this annual survey that what they value
most about the FCA as a workplace is: interesting and meanmgfu| work, our collegiate ethos and a focus
on wellbeing.

Our highest scoring categories were diversity at 82% (down 1% on 2017), corporate social responsibility
at 76% (down 1% on 2017) and job security at 75% (up 5% on 2017). Our top priority areas identified for
the coming year are leadership and management, career and pay structure, and how we communicate
the actions we take as a result of staff surveys. A

We recognise the value of staff input and feedback. We believe that effective communication between
staff and management is vital to ensure the successful development of the FCA for the benefit of staff

* and regulated organisations. We have established a Staff Consultative Committee (SCC) for discussion
and consultation on a wide range of matters and we also communicate with staff through a number of
other means, such as weekly team cascades, town half meetings and intranet blogs and articles.
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Staff development
Giving our staff access to the right development opportunities isan essential part of what we offer as an

employer. The FCA Academy offers staff high quality structured learning. Ih 2017/18 we have:

« Started the fourth year of our MSc in Financial Regulation 18 students completed their MSc this year
alongside 26 (25 FCA, 1 PSR) students intheir third year, 23 (20 FCA, 3'PSR) students in their second
year and 24 students (23 FCA, 1 PSR} in'their first year

« Continued to develop the FCA curriculum and internal Academy programme. We delivered a total of
5,673 training days across the year. 58% of employees have attended at least one training event this year.

+ Arranged 42 secondments to the FCA {40 FCA, 2 PSR) and 68 from the FCA {66 FCA, 2 PSR) to partner -
organisations. These include authorised firms, the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA),
' U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the Treasury, the Department for Exiting the European Union
and consumer bodies. " - , .

.

Staff wellbeing :

We have a comprehensive range ofwellbeing services. This is supported by the Pro-active Health
Gateway, an on line interactive tool available to all staff. A third of staff are currently registered on the
Gateway, 83% of whom use it regularly. This helps us to identify health risks and increase mental health
awareness, enabling our people to get targeted support to manage their wellbeing effectively.

During 2017/18 an average of 7.1 days per year (2017: 6 5 days) was lost per person due to sickness absence:
Theincrease is partly as a result of putting in place more robust sickness absence monitoring and reporting.

Commitment todiversity and inclusion :
The work of the FCA affects the daily lives of virtually everyone in the UK, as well as the. millions who rely
on UK markets. It is theréfore vital that our people reflect the soaety that we serve and that we bring

diverse attitudes and opinions to ourJudgements

As part of our commitment to diversity and inclusion, in June 2016 we signed the Government's Women
in Finance Charter. We have committed to achieving the following targets for Génder and Black, Asian
and Minority Ethnic (BAME) diversity at the FCA's senior levels:

. 45% of our Senior Leadership Team (SLT) to identify as female by 2020, and 50% by 2025 (currently
39% of the SLT identifies as female) :

« 8% of our SLT toidentify as BAME by 2020, and 13% by 2025 (currently 4.3% of SLT identifies as BAME)

‘We want to ensure that we can track and measure our work in this area. We have createdva Positive
Action Framework' to guide our work. Priority areas offocus contlnue to be Ieadership role modelling,
recruitment and work allocation -

In October 2017 we published information about our gender pay gap. Our mean gender pay gapis 19. 3% o
and median 20.9%, in favour of males based on a snapshot of earnings taken on 31 March 2017.

‘ We area signatory to the Disability Confidence Scheme whichis a recognition given by Job Centre Plus
_to employers based in Great Britain who have agreed to take action to meet five commitments régarding
the employment, retention, training and career development of disabled employees. This guarantees an
interview for Disability Confident applicants that meet the minimum criteria for a role and our recruiters
work collaboratively with a number of specialist suppliers and agencies to ensure our commitment to
inclusivity is implemented through our recruitment processes. In addition, our specialist Occupational

Health provider works closely with us to provide advice and guidance to support employee shealthinthe -

workplace and ensure reasonable adjustments are made to facilitate work.
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2.2 Investing in our technology and environment :

We are investing heavily in-operational improvements to support our internal systems and.effective
working. Most notably, we have commissioned a virtual datacentre in the Cloud. This will enable us to
produce better quality data analytics, increase innovation and provide a more flexible, better valué for
money service than traditional physical datacentres. Our investments, together with an increased focus
on supplier management, have allowed us to reduce our ongoing IT running costs in 2017/18.

In April 2018 we received the keys to our new building in Stratford Olympic Park. Our'state of the art building
will enhance ways of working to ensure that we are efficient and effective in how we regulate going forward.
The new building has also achieved Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) Excellent rating as part of our drive to improve our overall sustainability goals.

2.3 Professional fees : .

We use professional fees for activities we cannot fulfil internally, for example for s166 Skilled Person
reports and to run major publicity campaigns such as ScamSmart. The increase in expenditure on
Professional Fees in 2017/18 reflects the introduction of the PPl campaign during the year, which is
funded by the industry. It also reflects an increased use of consultants to fill skills shortages, particularly
to deliver specialist change and strengthen cyber security.

& Section 3 - Overall Financial Position

% The Group accumulated deficit has decreased by £86.1m (50%), from £173.4m to £87.3m at .31 March

o <~ 2018. This has been driven by:

° reduction in the retirement benefit obligation as a result of positive.investment returns, increased
contributions and falling inflation, slightly offset by falling bond yields; and

 (vag),
National A1

+ improvement inthe FCA net asset position due to increases in Ongoing Regulatory Activity (ORA)
reserves and a net recovery of scope change costs.

The pension liabilities of £119.4m will not crystallise for many years. We explain the approach-to
managing and funding the pension deficit in note 13 to the financial statements.

Table 3
Consumer __— - . . ‘

L . : . Credit! MIFID? | SM&CR® © ' Other® - Total
Scope Change ) £m | €m| . €m €m . £m
At1April2016 - 59.4| - 8.3 ' . ©gal 76.1
2017 costs - : 6.1 0.8 “29 BEE:
2017 recoveries " (7.7) o - - (10.2) (17.9)
At 31 March 2017 - 517 | 144 08| 11|  68.0
2018 costs | - 10.4 2.7 . 1.3 14.4
2018 recoveries 4 , (14.8) (12.3) - (1.0) : (28.1)
At31March2018 - . 369). 125 - . ¢ 35| - 14| . 543

1 Consumer Credit recoveries additional £8.6m to set against the deficit.
2 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive. Fees recovered include £3.1m from Sundry Income.
3 Senior Managers & Certification Regime

4 This relates to EU Benchmarks (€1.3m), Claims Management (EQ.9m), Parhamentary Commission on Bankmg Standards
(£0.6m credit) and Mortgage Credit Directive (£0.2m credit).
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The ORA Reserves of £84.0m are driven by historical underspends, including £16.4m underspend in
2017/18. This was due to lower than budgeted external enforcement case costs, reduced staff costs as a
result of attrition and slower than anticipated recruitment across the organisation, as well as savings in IT
and project spend. ORA reserves will be used to fund'dual running costs for the move to Stratford and an
element of costs relating to work on EU Withdrawal.

The Scope Change deficit of £54.3mis due to the FCA funding scope change costs before recovering
those costs from the relevant firms. The majority of this relate to the setting up of the FCA's Consumer
Credit function which will be recovered over a period of up to 10 years (Table 3).. : ,

Table 4

TNAEVE AL

AtlApnI 2016 E .'-ee“nueavz).

Over recovery against budget

Additional fees ALY g" VN

(#I-etk AN el

ﬁm'r

Net Scope Change recoveries

Pension movement - - WY“%Q? (40.4) | ¥ -

{AY31March 2017 L4 3% v?* | $66.7; 1 i HEN177.5) 7% AESS ﬁ’{(m 2) j
"Over recovery against budget 164 | - (3.0) *"TQ*‘?”{WS’M
Additional fees 09 - -«;;ma%a 110"_9': ¢ - <

Net Scope Change recoveries - - T:,, ; - ’%g_t‘,j;ﬁ (1373
Pension movement - 58.1} ! - | R Tss
“At 31 March 2018 BEERIAEL SHE11978)] ,M.ﬁ&(ss 7). #5i2a)| BpERer3)]

£&m . ) ) . ' . ,
150 1
100 1 ’ -

50 1

(50) 1
(100) 1

(15Q)

(200} 1

(250) 1

(300)

e

31 March 2015 . 31March 2018 31March 2017 31 March 2018

W ORA Reserves =33 Scope Change meaPension Deficit

e=m PSR —e—~Consolidated Accurnulated Deficit

.

Penalties collected on behalf of the Exchequer
We collected penalties of £70.4m (2017: £189.2m), ofwhlch £19. Sm (2017 £148. 7m) were paid to the
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_Exchequer, No penalties were issued for the PSR.

Sectlon 4- Prmcupal rlsks and uncertainties

For both the FCA and the PSR, the most lmportant risk is the failure to meet their respective statutory
objectives. Delivery of our statutory objectives relies not only on our ability to influence the culture
and conduct.of the industry we regulate but also on our own internal operational environment and
performance.

FCARisk of Harm: This is the risk to FCA's strategic objectlve to ensure that relevant markets funct|on
well, as well as the FCA's three operational objectives:

* Protect con.sumers —tosecure an appropﬁate "degree of protection for consumers
+ Integrity ~ to protect and enhance the integrity of the UK financial system

« Promote competition —to promote effective competitioh in consumers' interests
(\
& % The FCA's key external risks and issues are set-out in more detailin the FCA's Business Plan 2018/19.
’>  The FCA'is focused on taking a strategrc approach to risk, placmg emphasis on sector and market wide
= analysvs This puts the FCAin a strong position to prioritise its resources and efforts to mitigate or

' : prevent those risks of harm
[153

o

(“The FCA's business plan sets out the mostimportantissues in each of the sectors as well as seven
= 2 cross- sector priorities as fol|ows

1. Firms’ culture and governance —finalising rules for the extension of the Senior Managers and
Certification Regime to all FSMA firms, establishing a public register and focusmg onfirms’
remuneration arrangements

2. Financial crime and anti-money iaundering ~ seekmg to make the UK ﬁnancual system a hostile
environment for criminal mor\ey

3. Cyber security, resilience and outsourcing —addressing the industry's opérational resilience.
4. Innovation, big data, technology and competition ~looking to sustain a regulatory environment
where consumers and firms can maximise the opportunities of competition, innovation and big data

while reducing or mitigating the associated harm. : -

5. Treatment of existing customers — pursuing further improvements in competition and the
standards of treatment for existing customers. :

6. - Long-term savings, pensions and intergenerational differences - delivering a package of remedies,
- collecting and acting on data, understanding the levels of consumer undersavmg for retnrement and

pubhshmg a feedback statement on competitionin non- workplace pensqons

7. High-cost credtt more work is needed in some parts ofthe marketto i lmprove consumer
protectlon : :

EU wuthdrawal is also a key priority for the FCA, W|th asig mﬂcant proportlon of our resources already
focused on the forthcomlng exlt
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PSR Risk of harm: This is thé risk to achieving PSR’s statutory objectives:

to ensure that payment systems are operated and developed in a way that considers and
promotes the interests of all the businesses and consumers that use them

to promote effective competition in the markets for payment systems and services —
between operators, PSPs and infrastructure providers

to promote the development of and innovation in payment systems, in partlcular the
infrastructure used to operate those systems

The most material risks.and trends that could pose arisk to the PSR's objectives in the c,omi-hg

years are set out below (more detail can be found our Annual plan and budget 2018/19): .

1.

4.

5.

1.

N

Demographic trends and longevity

Technology and innovation

'

UK withdrawal from the European Union

Smart data, digitisation and data analytics

Cyber security and resilience

FCA and PSR: Key environmental and operational risks

A Environmental risks: which include risks associated with the operating environment for the
"FCA and the PSR —in particular, political or legislative change. While it is set out in statute

that the FCA and PSR are operationally independent organisations, they remain subject

to changes in legislation and scope by the UK Government that can uitimately affect the
. size, activities and complexity of both organisations. The terms of the UK's exit from the EU

remain subject to negotiation and may impact the scope and s_cale of regulated activities.

Execution risk: this relates to the execution of our regulatory strategy and arises when

we fail to deliver our business actlvntles as intended. When execution risks materialise

this usually means that the FCA has failed to achieve a reduction/prevention in harm that
would otherwise have been possible. Managing execution risk enables us to be an effective
regulator which is key to delivering value for money. :

Internal opera,tiona'l risks: like any orgénisation, the FCA and PSR face significant

" operational risks which may result in financialloss, disruption or both. For the FCA and PSR

these risks are summarised below:

». People risks: including risks associated with the capacity of our staff to deliver our
business plan and the changing capability needs of the organisation such as cyber
security and data analytics expertise. We continue to mitigate these risks as part of our
People Strategy. ' ' : :

» Process Risk: including risks from inefficient, inadequate or faited internal processes '
including identifying, monitoring and managing pctential risks in order to minimize the
. negative impact they may have on an organisation. Managing process risks to ensure we
are efficient is key to delivering value for money.
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"« Governance risks: including failings of not setting the right direction in optimising risks and
resources, and monitoring performance and compliance to achieve the organisation's objectives.
The introduction of the Senior Manager & Certification Regime (SM&CR) has strengthened
governance, controls and decision making. '

« Systems risks: including the availability, resilience, recoverability and security of core IT systems.
Cyber risk continues to be a major focus for both organisations, with a sxgnnﬁcant increase in
investment, as we respond to the evolving threat level.

4. Public confidence risk: which includes risks which could constrain the FCA's and PSR’s ability to -
deliver against objectives, due to diminished levels of public trust, a reduced ability to influence
key stakeholders and/or a reduction in our credibility and standing as effective regulators. This
‘could result from inappropriate judgements, decisions and actions taken {or inaction) which
may be perceived by stakeholders as inappropriate; inconsistent or inaccurate messages being
communicated externally; and not clearly defining the FCA's and PSR's objectives and remit. The
MlSSlon supports usin addr_essmg each of these risks.

As we have set out in the Strategic Report, value for money is a key area of focus for both organisations
and we wnll continue to embed our approach to it. :

Gomg concern andkey financial risks »
The directors have considered the FCA's Business Plan 2018/19 and the key financial risks and
uncertainties in assessing the FCA and PSR as a going concern as set out. below:

udit Office

1. Liquidity risk: can be assessed‘by looking at the foll,owihg four key areas:

a. The FCA's current liquidity position reflects the fact that it has been funding (i} cumulative scope
change costs for consumer credit (€36.9m) which are being recovered at circa £6.2m per annum;
and (i) capital expenditure, including Stratford fit out costs, which is recovered over thée useful
economic lives of the assets rather than when the expenditure is incurred. The carryingamount
of assets as yet unrecovered through feesis £152.4mat 31 March 2018.

b. The next triennial valuation of the FCA Pension Planis due on 31 March 2019 and wnll confirmif the
. current £29m deficit funding remalns adequate

© ¢. The FCA's strong fee covenants are underpmned by the statutory powers granted to it to raise
fees to fund its and the PSR's regulatory activities. Of the firms on which the FCA currently levies
its fees, the top 100 are responsible for 53.4% of those fees (2017: 54.9%). .

d. The, FCAA is currently well placed from a liquidity perspective, with cash deposits of £241.4mat 31
"March 2018 and an available overdraft facility of £50m to meet the cost requirements for the next
18 months.

2.  Credit risk: falls into three main categories:

a. The collection of fees from the financial services industry: the FCA has a strong record in terms of
" collecting fees with bad debt expenence averaglng less than'0.2% of fees receivable over the last
three years.

b. The FCA will continue to closely monitor the potential impact of EU Withdrawal. EU Withdrawal -

will not impact the 2018/19 fees, even if firms move their operations outside the UK during
2018/19. The impact on 2019/20 fees will therefore depend on whether firms move part of their
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operations outside the UK which reduces the tariff data they report for the calendar year ending
31 December 2018 . :

c. The placement of those fees as deposits with various counter parties: the FCA only invests with
financial institutions which, among other things, meet its minimum credit rating as assigned by
credit rating'agencies. The FCA also spreads its deposrts across a number of counter parties to
avoid the concentration of credit risk.

4. Significant Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimate Uncertainty that have been
considered by the directors are the estimated intangible assets useful lives (as set out in Note 7 to
the Financial Statements) and-the assumphons underpmnmg the pension. deficit (as set out in Note
13 to the Financial Statements). -

Having regard to the abové itis the directors’ o'pinioh that the FCA is well placed to manage any possible

- future funding requirements’ pertammg toits regulatory actnvrty and has sufficient resources to contmue
" its business for the foreseeable future. :

The directors therefore conclude that using the going concern basis is appropriate in preparing its
financial statements as there are no material uncertainties related to events or cond|t|ons that may cast
significant doubt about the FCAs ability to contlhue asa gomg concern.

By Order of the Board

@\m Prv%.'

) Pearce

Secretary

- Z7dune 2018
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7 Dlrectors report and corporate
governance statement

. H e '
Directors' report
The directors present their report for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Details of the directors during the year can be found in table 1 of the Corporate Governance Statement.
The directors use the Strategic Report and Corborate Governance Statement to explain how they have
performed their duty to promote the success of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) under section 172
of the Companies Act 2006. The Payments Systems Regulator (PSR) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the

- FCA. More information about the PSR's activities over the last year can be found inits own Annual Report.

The FCA has no branches or sub5|d|ar|es outsude the UK

(_)f.ﬁ o

L, D|rectors respon5|b|||t|es for the Annual Report.and Accounts
& The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the ﬂnanaal statements in
‘Baccordance with applicable law and regula’uons

: .o .
’ ;}Company law requires th.e directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that -

law the directors have chosen to prepare thefinancial statements for the FCA (the Parent Company)
and the Group (including its subsidiary) accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as
adopted by the European Union. The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the’ profit or loss of the coffpany for that period.

In preparing these financial statements_, the direCtorts are required to:
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent. -

e state whether'applicable'Internationlal Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
. Union, have been followed and any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements '

* preparethe ﬁnanoal statements on the going concern baS|s unlessitis mappropnate to presume that
the company will continue in busmess

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that show, with reasonable-
accuracy, the company's financial position and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

As far as the directors are aware:

« thereis no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware
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+ the directors have taken all the steps they ought to make themselves aware of anyrelevant audit
information and establish that the auditor is aware of that information

The directors are responsible for maintaining and ensuring the integrity of the corporate and financial .
information on the company’s website. UK legislation which applies to preparing and d:strlbutlng financial
statements may differ from leglslatlon in other jurisdictions.

The Directors confurm that the Annual Report and Accounts as awhole, is falr balanced and
understandable.

Qualifying indemnity provisions

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Companles Act 2006
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and remain in force at the date
of this report. .

Political Donations

The group did not give any money for pohtlcal purposesin the UK, the rest of the EU, nor did it make any
political donations to political organisations, or to any independent election candidates, or incur any
political expenditure during the year. :

Auditor
The Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) requires the Company's accounts to be examined,
certified and reported on by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Accordingly the Comptroller and

Auditor General was auditor throughout the year. -

’

By Order of the Board on 27 June 2018.

S Pearce - ' ‘

. Secretary
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governance statement

Corporate governance statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Introduction
This section of the report explains the Board's composition and governance structure. It also explains

_ the Board's role, its performance, ongoing professional development and succession planning.

We are an independent public body, funded entirely by fees from the firms that we regulate. We are
accountable to the Treasury, which is responsible for the UK's financial system, and to Parliament.
The Financial Services'and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) defines our work and purpose and requires us to

- meet and consult with various stakeholders. We work with consumer groups, trade associations and

professional bodies, our statutory paneis domestic regulators EU legislators and a wide range of other
stakeholders. ’

We are open and accountable to the public through‘our'Annual Report and our Annual Public Meeting.
We report annually to the Treasury on how far we have met our regulatory objectives and are also subject
to detailed scrutiny by the Treasury Committee.

- FSMA requires us to have regard'to generally acceoted principles of good corporate governance. Our

Board is committed to meeting high standards of corporate governance and this report sets out how
Jveare governed in line with the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code). The Board
‘vconSIders that we comply with the Code as far asis appropriate
G
ZThe Role of the Board, Board committees and executive committees
ZThe Board is the FCA's governing body. It sets our strategic aims and ensures that we have the necessary

raﬂnanccal and human resources to allow us to meet our statutory objectives.
O
i
=

" 2TheBoard's role includes:

a. Decuding which matters it should make decisions on, including exercising our Iegislative functions and
other matters as set out i inthe Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board

b. Making strategic'decisions about our future operation.
c. Overseeing the executive management of our day-to-day business.

~d. Setting appropriate poI|C|es to manage risks to our operations and the achievement of our regulatory
. objectives. ‘

e. Seeking regular assurance that our system of internal control is effective in managing risks.
f. Maintaining a sound system of financial control. .
g. Taking specific decisions that are not included in the Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board, which
‘the Board or executive management consider are novel, contentious or so 5|gn|ﬁcant that they should
take them.
h. Maintaining high-level relationships with other organisations and authorities. These include -
Government, the Financial Services Compensation Scheme, the Financial Ombudsman Service, the
Money Advice Service, the Bank of England, the Prudential Regulation Authority, and the Consumer,

Practitioner, Smaller Business Practitioner, Markets Practitioner and Listing Authority Advisory Panels.

i Establishing and maintaining the accountability for decnsnons made by committees of the Board and
executive management.
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The Board is supported by its principal committees, shown in Chart 1.
Membérship of these committees is‘given in Table 3.
Our website gives more details on our governance arrangements as detailed in our ‘Corgorate

governance of the Financial Conduct Authority’ document We provide deta|ls of the committees’
activities later in this report. :

Our executive committees also play an |mportant role in our overall corporate governance. In January.
2018, we introduced a new executrve governance structure designed to streamhne the decision-making

process.

The Exécutive Committee (ExCo) is chaired by the Chief Executive and takes decisions on internal A

operational issues. A new Executive Regulation and Policy Committee (ERPC), also chaired by the Chief
~ Executive, now sits alongside ExCo and takes decisions on significant regulatory-and policy issues.

Below these two cornrnittées, there are several sub-committees, ioc'luding the: . '

+ Executive Diversity Committee - which leads our diversity and inclusion agenda

« Executive Operations Committee - which monitors our economic and efficient use of resources,
-operational risk management, people strategy and culture and operational resilience .

.. 4Polxcy Development Committee (Policy Steering Committee until December 2017) - which mamtams
oversight of our policy initiatives '

.« Executive Regulatory Issues Committee (discontinued from January 2018 and replaced by ERPC)
‘ wl’nch took decisions on regulatory issues, such as firm, sector or product specificissues

Our website gi'ves more details of our executive structure.
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Chart 1 summarises our governance fr_amey\)ork. ' : : C

‘Chart1 ; .

Payment Systems
Regulator

Executive Regulation &
_Policy Committee

Executive Operatlor;s b Executwe Dnversnty
Committée . FRZ * Committee

Policy Development  B4. Market's Regulatory

Committee } Committee
: <Senior Managers and Certification. -Regime . - - T
é he Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR), which camé'into force in March 2016,

Zdoes not formally apply to the- FCA But, as best practice we have set out a formal descrlptlon of the
2 core responsrbllltles of our Board and Executive Committee members and staff carrying out Senior
Management func’uons Our websute has more details on how we apply the SM&CR to oursélves.

. L .. R - ’ . . ~

Members of our Board
FSMA sets out the requirements for themembership of our Board. The Board is currently made up of:

. the Chair and the Cnie'f‘Executive, who are each appointed‘by u’a’e Tréas,ufy
o the Bank of England Deputy Governor for prudéntial regulation

 twonon:éxecutive directors appointed jointly by the Secretary of State and the Treasury K

*. one executive direc’tOr and five non-exchti\}e directors appointed by the Treasury

All non-executive appointments are made in accordance with the Governance Code. |ssued by the Ofﬂce
of the Comm|SS|oner for Public Appomtments

EERN
' R S . t
4

. . N RO . . i . N
, . . . . .
) .
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Table 1
: . , ) S P Exp|ry of current term/date
‘Name - - Ly * Original appointment date . . membershlp ceased )
Andrew Bailey 1/07/16 30/06/21
Executive Director— Chief Executive h
Catherine Bradley . 2/08/14 - . 1/08/20?
Non-Executive Director : . :
Amelia Fletcher 1/04/13 ' 31/03/19.
Non-Executive Director ' ' .
Bradley Fried ) ‘ 1/04/16 ' 31/03/19?
Non-Executive Director . o
.{ohn Griffith-Jones = | 1/04/13 ] 31/03/18
Non-Executive Director — Chairman ’ .
Baroness Hogg : . 1/04/16 ' 31/03/19

Non-Executive Director - Senior
Independent Director ’

Ruth Kelly | 1/04/16 31/03/19

. Non-Executive Director . ' '
JanePlatt . | 1/04/13 30/03/19
Non-Executive Director

Nick Stace ' 1/04/17 ' 31/03/20
Non-Executive Director ' ’ .
Sam Woods 1/07/16 Not applicable

Bank of England Deputy Governor
for Prudential Regulation

Christopher Woolard . 1/08/15 31/07/213

Executive Director ~ Director of
Strategy & Competition

John Griffith-Jones and Andrew Bailey were appomted as Chair and Chnef Executive respectively, each
for a term of five years. All other directors were mltually appointed for terms of three years. Catherine
Bradley was reappointed for a further term of three years with effect from 1 August 2017

Nick Stace was appointed as a non-executive director (NED) with effect from 1 April 2017. John Griffith-
Jones' tenure as Chairman ended on 31 March 2018. John was succeeded by Charles Randell who took
office from 1 April 2018.

A majority of Board members are NEDs and bring extensive and varied experience to the Board and
Committees. All NEDs are considered independent.

The Board wants to ensure it has a diverse membership. We pay particular attention to the recruitment

process to ensure it has a variety of members with the appropriate balance of relevant skills and

experienice. Our female membership is above the 33% target figure for the boards ofUK FTSE 350
companies as proposed by the Hampton-Alexander review. .

1 Reappointed for an additional three-year term from 1 August 2017. ,
2 Bradley stood down from the Board on 30 June 2018 :
3 Reappointed for an additional three-year term from 1 August 2018.
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. The executive members of the Board have continuous employment contracts with the FCA, subject to
the following notice periods (as set out below in table 2):

a:

*
1

Fat¥rel

Nationai

Table 2

Executive 'D'i‘r_ector'

Andrew Bailey

6 months

" | Notice period

Christopher Woolard

6 months

Table 3 provides details of committee membership during the year.

Table 3

o . External RISk & Remuneratton Nominations - Ov‘ér'sith
Audit Committee Strategy Commlttee ACommlttee = Committee ] Commlttee
Ruth Kelly‘(Chair) _ | Jane Platt (Chair) Baroness Hogg (Cha|r) John Griffith-Jones -John Griffith- Jones
' (Chair) (Chair) :
Amelia Fletcher Catherine Bradiey Catherine Bradley

Catherine Bradiey

Amelia Fletcher

Bradley Fried Ruth Kelly Bradley Fried Amelia Fletcher Baroness Hogg
Jane Platt Nick Stace John Griffith-Jones ' Bradley Fried Christopher Woolard
: Ruth Kelly Nick Stace
Baroness Hogg
Jane Platt
Nick Stace

Board meetings and activities of the Board

There is a clear division of responsibility between the running of the Board and the executive running of
the organisation. The.Chair leads the Board and ensures it is effective. The Chief Executive is responsible |
for implementing the strategy agreed by the Board, the leadership of the organlsatlon and managing it
within the authorities delegated by the Board.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it, and meets regularly to discharge its duties
effectively. It held eleven scheduled meetings during the year, which included a two-day strategy

. meeting. It also held one additional meeting to deal with specific matters which required attention
between the scheduled meetings. : :

The Board committees also met frequently during the yeér.

_ Table 4 provides details of all the Board and committee meetings and attendance.
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" Table 4
ﬁ?ﬁ“ﬁ' g} N »'{ %
Scheduled;ﬂ
“‘:é: Egg;”ds Ll%' ‘
; Stings v, Meetings . [ Commieas
Andrew 1/1
Bailey . . .
Catherine 11/11 111 4/4 1/1 B 3/a - 1777,
Bradley ' ' o
Amelia 11/11° 1/1 N || 5/5. T35 3/4
Fletcher . . . .
Bradley Fried | 10/11 1/1 o134 0/1 : 5/5 "l a/a )
John o111 11 ) - . _|4/5 3/4 7/7
Griffith- ' - : o ,
Jones ‘ : : . ] ' . . \
Baroness 11/11 i R p - /5 e (7
" Hogg ) :
RuthKelly [10/11 = |on a4 o 5/5- a/4
Jane Platt 11/11 -1 1/1 2/4 1/1 .. 5/5 . 4/4
Nick Stace 11/11 /1 ’ 3/5 3/4 ’ 5/7
SamWoods |8/11 1/1 - .
Christopher | 11/11 171 . ' ‘ 77
Woolard ) S ’

Ouring the year, the NEDs met prlvately both with and WIthout the Chair and without members ofthe
executive present. :

The Chair and Company Secretary ensure that the Board's agendas reflect our priorities. They review
papers before they are circulated to members to ensure that information is accurate and clear. Papers for
Board and committee meetlngs are normally circulated one Week before meetings.

Committee chairs report to the Board after each committee’meeting.

l. o ‘ R )
Board members-provide rigorous challenge on strategy, performance, responsibility and accountability
to hold the executive'to account and ensure ihat the Board’s decisions are robust. '

The Board'addressed many issues during the year. The principal areas of activity mcluded approving
organlsatlonal budgets and business plans, including those of the Payment Systems Regulator, Financial. -
Ombudsman Service, Money Advice Service and the Financial Services Compensation Scheme;
monitoring major policy.initiatives; reviewing the FCA's governance framework; reviewing management
performance including that of the Payment Systems Regulator, Financial Ombudsman Service, Money
Advice Service and the Financial Services Compensatlon Scheme; approving the annual report and
accounts for the year endmg 31 March 2018

More deta|| ofthe Board's act|V|t|es ‘during the year can be found in the minutes of Board meetlngs Wthh
we publish on our website. ‘ 1

Company Secretary and independent advice

" Each director can use the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who advises the Board on all
corporate governance matters-and ensures the Board follows appropriate brocedures. The Company

I
{
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Secretary is also responsible for providing access to external professional advice for directors, if needed. .

In general under FSMA, the FCA has the benefit of an exemption from liability in damages for anything
done or omitted in relation to the exercise or purported exercise of its statutory functions, provided that
such acts or omissions are in good faith. This is supplemented with indemnities the FCA gives for the
protection of individual employees, including dlrectors Accordingly, we do not currently buy Directors
and Officers Liability Insurance.

Succession

The Board considers that all ofthe NEDs bring strong independent overS|ght and continue to
demonstrate independence: However, we recognise the recommended term within the Code and take
into account the need for suitable succession.

Succession planning remains a key agenda item for the Board. It uses its Nominations Committee to
monitor the Board members' skills and exper:ence to |dent|fy where gaps exist to share with the Treasury
on future appointments. )

FBoard induction and training
I
E *ﬂOn}omlng the Board, directors are given background information descrlbmg the FCA and our activities.
. oThey are given an induction pack which includes information on our governance arrangements, the
~+ 2Board's role and responsibilities, its committées and ofﬂcers and other relevant information. We also
arrange structured meetmgs with a range of key people across the FCA to ensure directors have a
thorough induction. :

Members of the Board also receive ongoing professional development and briefings on relevant issues.
During the year the Chair met with the non-executive directors to discuss their training needs and review
their performance. ' '

The Board p?ogramme includes regular briefings from management and informal meetings which
increase the NEDs' understanding of the business and the sector. '

Board effectiveness review

Reviews of Board effectiveness are conducted annually, with regular external reviews in accordance
with best corporate governance practice.In June 2017 the Board commissioned Independent Audit
to undertake a review of its effectiveness. The review; available from our website, tookplace over the
summer and autumn and the Board considered the findings at its meeting in De_cember<2017.

The review highlighted many Board strengths and set out various things to consider (termed "things t:Q
think about”). These were discussed within the following broad themes:

« - aligning activities into key strategic themes by the executive

e increased engagement with different areas of the organisation
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« exploring different ways of engaging with external stakeholders
+ balancing its agendainterms ofinternal and external matters

’

« further refinement of the risk management framework, nncludrng the Board committees with
responsibilities for risk : . )

. varying and clarifying the format of different Board sessions, formal and informal

The Board welcomed the report and ack:epted all of these broad themes as being areas for potential
further improvement. '

Conflicts of interests

All directors are required to declare relevant interests. Where any potential conflict of interest.arose
during the year, the Board took appropriate steps to manage it. The Company Secretary maintains a
register of interests.

Board Committees

The terms of reference for each committee are detailed in our Corporate governance ofthe Flnancral
‘ Conduct Authority' document published on our website.

We give information on each cornmlttee s membership in Table 3 and on our website and provrde details
of members' attendance at meetings in Table 4. : . :

Audit Committee\

-. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and providing assurance to the Board on matters
including the effectiveness of our internal controls, our operational risk management framework and

‘mitigation Strategies, the integrity of the financial statements and the statements that relate to financial
controls and operational risk*in the annual report and accounts and for oversight of the external audit - -
process.

" During the year the Committee's principal areas of activity included: approving Internal Audit’s three-year
_plan and considering divisional reports, considering the outcomes from the-annual risk and control self-

" assessments and joint organisational internal control assessments, reviewing the NAO's audit strategy
and the annual report and accounts for the year ending.31 March 2018 and, reviewing the Committee’s
terms of reference. ) ‘ . :

- The Committee also oversaw the FCA's relationship with the external auditor. Informat|on on fees'paid to
the auditor is given on page 120.

~ The Board's statement below gives more information on internal controls. The Committee has assured
itself that the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been prepared with integrity. -

a Further information on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the FCA can be found in the Group operatlonal overview

(Chapter 6).
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The Committee met on four occasions during the year, scheduled to coincide with the risk reporting
and external audit cycles. it also held one additional meeting to deal with spec«ﬁc matters which required
attention between the scheduled meetings.

- The Committee consists entirely of non-executive directo‘r's.

The Chlef Operating Officer attended all meetings of the Committee, as did the Dnrector of Risk &
Comphance Oversight, the Director of Internal Audit, the Dlrector of Finance and representatives from
the National Audit Office (NAO).

The Executive Director of Market Oversight, the Executuve Director oflnterhatlonal ‘the Chlef
Information Security Officer and the Director of HR all attended atleast-one session.

The Chair of the Board and the Chief Executlve also attended meetlngs by mwta’uon and re(evant
members of staff are also invited to attend for certain items.

The Committee held private sessions with the Director of Internal Audit, the Director of Risk and
Compliance Oversight and the external auditors during the year without management present. The
committée also held private sessions on its own without management present when needed.

e

it Offic

Zinternal controls
ol

< , .
®The internal control framework is an important part of our governance arrangements. It is designed to

‘ °provude reasonable but not absolute assurance about the effectiveness of the control environment, to

Smanage rather than eliminate risks to our statutory objectives.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control framework.is broadly appropriate for the business and was
‘assured that a sound risk management framework and internal controls have been maintained during
the year. However, the Board recognises that the risks facing the organisation evolve. Throughout the
year, the Board observed the results of the assessments performed by the three lines of defence which
concluded that the design of the organisation’s internak controls is largely adequate with controls fargely
operating effectively with some improvements required.

Operational risks are overseen by the Audit- Committee and external regulatory risks by the External
Risk and Strategy Cormmittee. The Board's policy on internal controls and risk management includes
- established processes and procedures for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks.

The Audit Committee reported at least quarterly to the Board on internal controls and operational
risk management. The Audit Committee received regular reports from managers on financial and
operational controls and the risk management system. It also received and reviewed reports from the
Director of Internal Audit which included executive summaries of finalised reviews and summaries of
work undertaken, findings and actions by management. ‘ ' ’

Key features of the interhal control framework included the following:
» Riskreporting that highlighted the key eperational and external risks faced. This supported discussion
on the best course of action to mitigate the key risks and helped senior managers make decnsuons on

priorities and resource allocation.

. Executlve Committee and the Executlve Operations Comm|ttee regularly reviewed these reports and
their views were reported to the Audit Commlttee

94



(MO )

_ National Audit Office

Financial Conduct Authority | . Chapter? '

Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 - " Directors report and corporate
- governance statement

« Areview of the framework of controls to mitigate the key operational and éxternal risks faced.

« TheInternal Audit Division provided independent assurance about the effectiveness of risk

management and controls to the FCA Board and management.

« The Audit 'Univerae, which contained all the FCA's activities, systems and projects that contribute to
managing our risks. Internal Audit assessed each unit within the Universe to support the prioritisation
of its risk based reviews. Internal Audit periodically reviewed the Audit Universe and priorities,
con5|derzng factors |nclud|ng risk and how business critical and significant-they were.

.. CIear reportrng lines and delegated authorrtres which were revuewed on aregular basis.

» Clear segregation between the FCA's regulatory function and the internal treasury function to av0|d
either endorsing or criticising any financial institution through investment activities. -

o Ensuring approprlate Qolicres and procedures were included in the staff handbook.-

« Directors and senior managers regularly commumcated their commitment to mamtammg an

appropriate control culture across the FCA to all staff.

External Risk and Strategy Committee

The External Risk and Strategy Committee has responsibility for the review and oversight of the external -

risks® to the FCA achieving its statutory objectives, the executive's appetite for such risks and the

suitability of the scope and.coverage of the mitigation used to reduce the potential impact of such risks.

The Committee is also responsible for the effective operation of the Regulatory Decisions Committee
(RDC).

During the year the Committee championed the development of the organisational and risk
management framework. It-also received regular reports from the Risk and Compliance Oversight

and Internal Audit divisions and oversaw the development of sector views and the enterprise wise

risk assessment. Recognising the value of consumer and firm insight, it continued to foster a closer
relationship with the Statutory Panels. Based on all these inputs, a number of risk areas were selected for-
examination as part of the Committee's work to seek-assurance that major external risks were identified
and had mitigation strategies in place. Towards the end of the year, its terms of reference were reviewed.

The Committee received regular reports on the operation of the RDC fromits Chair.

vThe Committee met on five occasions during the year, scheduled to coincide with the risk reportlng

cycle.

The Committee consists entirely of non-éxecutive directors. The Chief Operating Officer attended

all meetings of the Committee, as did the Director of Risk & Compliance Oversight and the Director of
Internal Audit. The Chief Operating Ofﬁcer of the Payment Services Regulator was a regular attendee by
invitation.

The Chalr and Chlef Executive aiso attended meetings of the Commlttee by invitation with other expert

members of staff invited to attend relevant items.

"5 Further information on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the FCA can be found in the Group operational overview (Chapter 6).
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Private sessions with the Director of Risk-& Compliance Oversight, W|thout management present, were
held at all Committee meetings during the year. The Committee also held private sessions onits own,
wnthout management present as reqwred

~ Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring there is a formal and transparent framework
for executive remuneration and for agreeing the remuneration packages of the Chief Executive and
persons who fall within the scope of the Senior Managers Redime.

During the year the Committee’s principal areas of activity included: approving the annual budget for
pay and incentivé awards; approving the remuneration of the executive board members and senior
executives, including members of associated bodies (such as the Money Advice Service, the Financial
Ombudsman Service and the Consumer Panel) and; reviewing its terms of reference.

To help with this, the Committee received information‘on, and assessment of, their individual

performance. Performance was measured against the achievement of the collective objectives by

reference to the Business Plan, the obJectnves relating to the directors’ 1nd|vndua| areas of respon5|b|hty
‘-and assessment of their Ieadershup abilities.

-{.‘éThe Committee met on five occasions during the year.

FAu

& The Remuneration Committee consists solely of non-executive directors.

ion

1
pid
<.

Ey

-

Nominations Committee

" The Nominations Committee is responsible for making recommendations for maintaining an approprlate
balance of Skl”S on the Board to ensure we maintain our abxllty to meet our statutory objectives.

During the year the Committee's princip‘al areas of activity included: considering the performance
objectives of the Chief Executive and persons who fall within the scope of the Senior Managers Régime,
‘considering succession planning for senior managers and reviewing its terms of reference.

The Committee met on four occasions during the year.

The Committee consists solely of non-executive directors.

Oversight Committee

The Oversight Committee provides suppert and advice to the Board onits relationship and obligations
in respect of the Money Advice Service (MAS), the Financial Ombudsman Serwce (FOS) and the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS).

Dur’ir\g the year the Committee’s principal areas of activity included: assuring itself of the capabilities

and performance of these organisations; ensurlng that the FCA maintained gpodand e-ffectlve workifg
_relationships with these organisations to ensure matters of mutual interest were xdentlﬁed discussed..

and acted on; providing review and challenge of the basis of preparation, and underlying assumptions, of
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‘each organisation’s annual budget and business plan and; reviewing the its terms of reference.

The Committee met on seven occasions during the reporting period, with key individuals from each

organisationin attendance, ‘ , 4 : .

Regulatory Decisions Committee

The Regulatory Decisions Committee (RDC) makes the final decisicns on behalf of the FCA en certain
regulatory matters.

The External Risk & Strategy Committee received quarterly reports from the RDC Chair, who also
attended the meetings to discuss significant matters in those reports.

TheRDCis mdependent of the division of the FCA that has conducted an lnvestygatlon or consudered an
application for authorisation.

.The Committee’'s members represent the public interest and are appointed to use their experience and
expertise in financial services to decide how we should use particular authorisation, supervisory and
enforcement powers. These include the power to stop firms or individuals providing regulated financial
services and levying fines for breaches of our rules and legal requirements.

" The RDC becomes involved after therelevant division of the FCA 'ha's concluded that it is appropriate '

for us to use particular powers against a firm or individual. The division submits its proposal and the
supporting evidence to the RDC. The RDC will review the evidence and, in most cases, seek the views of
the relevant firm or individual before comlng toa deC|S|on

RDC members are selec_ted for their experience of making independent evidence-based decisions,
working in senior and expert positions in financial services, or their knowledge and understanding of
consumers and other users of financial services. This range of skills and experience is intended to help
achieve fairness and consistency across sectors and cases and enhance the obJectrwty and balance of
the FCAs decision- maktng

The RDC's separate annual revrew of its activities for the year endlng 2018 canbe found in Append:x 20f .
this report. : .

Competition Decisions Committee

The Competition Decisions Conimittee (CDC) is a committee of the Board comprising three persons
appointed from the CDC Panel. The CDC acts as the decision-makerin Competition Act, 1998
investigations on behalf of the FCA. This includes decisions on whether there has been a competition law

-infringement, whether to impose a financial penalty for an infringement and any directions to be given.

The CDC Panel was established in 2015 and is currently hearing its first case.
by order of the Board
KSaron flosas—

Simon Pearce, 27June 2018 i
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Remuneration report

Remuneration Principles

The FCA's remuneration principles are to attract and retain high calibre individuals and to reward them
for achieving clear objectives that are focused on results and behaviours. Pay and incentives are based
on performance and are moderated across the organisation.

The total remuneration package, which is common to all FCA employees, is:’

basic pensionable salary - -

eligibility to be considered for performance-related pay

additional flexible beneﬁts

'« anon-contributory defined contribution pension scheme

CRemuneration focus fer 2017/18

‘EThere were no changes to the remuneration: strategy this year. We continued to focus on rewarding

Fthose who:
WiE2 . B« demonstrate successful and consistent delivery against objectives
= S make a significant overall contribution to the FCA's goals
~ ™ . . .

o demonstrate the values and behaviours that the FCA expec{s and requires

2017/18 Remuneration review

All salary increases and incentive awards for staffln 2017/18 were a matter for management judgement
"against our common set of performance standards. The aim has been to ensure that members of staff
at all levels received appropriate recognition for their performance. We made a budget of 2% available
for salary increases, supplemented by an additional 0.5% to address anomalies. This year 77% of all our
employees received a pay award.

We set the budget for incentive awards at 14.2% of salaries. The distribution of awards is shown in table
5. : : : ,
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Table 5 -

FCA .
%Jnus,géfi:jgrj;a’@é’réceiV'ed‘ I ' P‘ergér;té_g"é: bfwd'rkt:bré_e:_WﬁB recéivé:r’i;‘_i;érmus} IR r; )
0% ' - 9% ’

0.1% - 5% : 0%

5.1%-9.9% 9%

10% - 14.9% 40%

15%-19.9% - . 7% ' -
20% - 24.9% 21% '

'25% - 29.9% ‘ 3%

30% - 35% 1%

The Remuneration Committee took advice from the Director of Human Resources and other relevant
staff when considering executive remuneration. :

Basic pensionable salary

During the year, salaries of executive boardmembers-and-seniorexecutives were reviewed in line with
the policy. When making decisions on base salary, the Remuneration Committee took into account the
importance of remuneration packages being sufficient to retain staffwhlle awarding any salary increases
responsibly to ensure careful use of our resources.

Performance related pay

During the period under review, from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018, the executwe board members and
senior executives were eligible to be considered for a performance related award up to a maximum of
35% of average base salary applying during the previous year. Non-executive directors were not eligible
to be considered for an award.

Other benefits

A sum was available for the Chair and executive board members which could be spentagainst a range of
benefits. This sumisincluded in 'other benefits'in the remuneration table.

Pensions

The FCA Pension Plan (the Plan) has two sections, both of which are non-contributory; a defined benefits
section (closed to new entrants and any future accruals) and a defined contribution section. John

‘Griffith-Jones and Andrew Bailey are not members of the Plan; both were entitled to receive a non-

pensionable supplement instead. Christopher Woolard is a member of the Plan. The sums paid to the
Chair and each of the executive directors are shown in the remuneration table. :

Further information about the Planis set outin Note 13 to the Firnancial Statements.
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Directors’' remuneration {audited)

Table 6 below sets out the remuneration paid or payable to any person that served as a Director during
the years ending 31 March 2018 and 2017. The remuneration figures shown are for the period served as

" Directors. ’
Table 6
Total FCA
.. -] . | Remuneration | L
) Performance- |- Other | (excluding_ - | Total FCA:
Basic salary refated pay - benefits - pension} - Pension ‘Remuneration
2018 2017 [ <2018 2017 |- 2018 2017 | ~2018 2017 | -2018° 2017| 2018 2017
[ £'000° £'000| E'000 E'000| £000 £000| £000 €000| .£000 £000]| £000 €000
Chair . ‘ ' ‘ .
John Griffith-Jones ¥ 170 170 - i 37 .03 L 173 173 20 20 - 193 193

Executive Directors

Andrew Bailey 2° 440 330 75 65 34 241 . 549  419] . 40 30{ 589 449
Christopher Woolard®3 | > 300, 300| . 48 50]...'31 29| -.379° 379} 30. 30| ~409. 409
:_::
O .
ey s .
2 \ Group N
Z . FeePaid ‘| FCAFeePaid
. "?g _Non-Executivé Directors® . 2018 2017} .2018 2017
[} ol , _;';‘ N
= £°000. E'000| £000 £'000
>4 Y ) B DR

Bradley Fried® ‘ C 43, 42

...35 35
Amelia Fletcher® - ' _ : N 42| . 35 35°
Baroness Hogg® 65, 65| 65 65
Jane Platt” - .45 45]|° 45 45
Catherine Bradley : ' '35 35| 35 35
Ruth Kelly® ' : a5 45| 45 45
Sam Woods® ' ' , Loa o -
Nick Stace 1 . 35 Nh 35 -
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Notes
Chair

1.

3.

John Griffith-Jones is not a member of the FCA Pension Plan and received a non- pensuonable cash
supplement in lieu of pension contributions. This amount is included under ‘Pension'in the table
above John's tenure as Chair ended on 31 March 2018.

"Executive directors of the FCA
2.

Andrew Bailey was appointed Chief Executive of the FCA on 1 July 2016 and therefore his
remuneration for the year 16/17 only covers the subsequent nine month period. Andrew's full-year
salary remained unchanged at £440,000 per annum. Andrew was awarded a performance bonus of
£65,000 for 2017, of which £26,000 (40%) was paid in March 2017. The remaining £39,000 (60%)
was held in deferment and was paid with the approval of the Remuneration Committee in March
2018. Andrew was awarded a performance bonus of £75,000 for 2018, of which £30,000 (40%) was
paid in May 2018. The remaining £45,000 (60%) has been held in deferment and will be paid with'

the approval of the Remuneration Committee in March 2019. Andrew received a non-pensionable
supplementinlieu of pensnon contributions. This amount is included under ‘Pension’ in the table
above. :

Chnstopher Woolard is a member of the FCA Pensioni Plan. Chrlstopher elected to have £10,000
of the employer perision contribution paid into the Pension Plan and the remaining ‘employer
contribution of £20,000 paid as a non-pensionable cash supplement. The total amount is mcluded
under PenSIon in the table above.

Non- executive directors ofthe FCA

4.

6.

®

In accordance with FSMA, the Treasury is responsible for determining the remuneration of non-

~ executive directors. The fee for non-executive directors remains unchanged at £35,000 per annum.

An additional fee of £10,000 per annum is payable to any non-executive director who has been
appointed to chair a committee of the Board. Anadditional fee of £20,000 is payable to the Chair of
FCA Pension Plan Trustee Limited, the trustee of the FCA Pension Plan.

‘From 1 M’ay 2016 Amielia Fletcher and Bradley Fried received a separate fee of £7,500 for their role on

the PSR Board. John Griffith-Jones, Andrew Bailey and Christopher Woolard received no separate fee
for their respective roles on the PSR Board. : :

Baroness Hogg continued to serve as Chair of the Remuneratlon Committee and Chair of FCA
Pension Plan Trustee Limited during the year.

Jane Platt continued to serve as Chair of the External Risk & Strategy Committee during the year.
Ruth Kelly cohtinued to serve as Chair of the Audit Committee during the year.

Sam Woods was appointed as the Deputy GoVemor of the Bank of England for prudential regulation
on 1 July 2017 and therefore became a non-executive of the FCA in accordance with FSMA. Sam

- does not receive a fee from the FCA for this role.

10. Nick Stace was appointed as non-executive director on 1 April 2017. 1
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Fair pay disclosure (audited)

. § _ Grgt_j_p o o FCA_(il?’af_‘eh-t Company)
Co2018) - 2017 . 3018 2017
- €548974 | €536.553 | €548,974| £536553

Remuneration ratio

Highest Paid Director's Total Remuneration
Median Remuneration of Total Workforce .

| “ees,905| €64984 |- €65737| €64785
Ratio (to Total Workforce) R 1 83| . .84 8.3
Number of employees paid in excess of highest paid Director N NI N © . Nl

The Accoﬁnts Direction from the Treasury, in accordance with Schedule 1ZA, paragraph 14(1) of FSMA
requires the FCA to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director and
the median remuneration of the organisation’s total workforce for 2018 and 2017.

The remuneration ratio represents the difference between the Highest—paid director and the median
full-time equivalent, annualised remuneration of the total workforce at the reporting period end date
“(excluding the highest-paid director) expressed as a multiple. Definitions are below:

C)Remunération is total remuneration and includes salary, performance-related pay and benefits, whether

aﬁgmonetary or in-kind. It does not in¢lude severance payments or employer pension contributions.
£ . : o :
';_”""

& Total Workforce includes employees, temporary staff, contractors and other short-term resource.

% The median pay calculations reflect the FCA as a stand-alone e
* Zconsolidated position including the PSR (‘Group’),

t10

ntity (FCA Parent Company’) and the

3

. N

The Chief Executive of the FCA was the highest-paid director for 2018 and 2017.

Excluding the highest-paiddirector, remuner

ationranged from £20,356 to £510,794 (2017: £19,250 to
£440,000). ‘ :

In 2018 (2017, nil) no employees.received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director.
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The Board of the ECA

Charles Randell Andrew Bailey ' Catherine Bradley
Chair Chief Executive "Non-executive Director

(Appointed with effect from 1 April 2018)

Bradley Fried ’ Baroness Sarah Hogg
Non-executive Director * Non-executive Director

Ruth Kelly Jane Platt CBE - : Nick Stace
Non-executive Director : Non-executive Director Non-executive Director

Sam Woods Christopher Woolard Simon Pearce
Non-executive Director . . Executive Director Company Secretary
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Compa'nyNumper01§20623

THE CERT|FICATE AND REPORT OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE
« HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT

L\.

Opmron on financial statements

Z 'have audited the financial statements of the Financial Conduct Authority for the year ended 31 March
r" 2018 which compnse the group and parent Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement
c of Financial Position, Statement of Changes-in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes,
Zincluding the s»gnrﬂcant accountlng policies. The financial reporting framewcrk that has been applied -
“intheir preparation is applicable law, the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, and International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. | have also audited the informationin
the Dlrectors Remuneratlon Report that i is descnbed as having been audlted

fin my opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company s affairs as at 31 March’
2018 and of the group's surplus for the year then ended; and’

 » havebeen proper!y prepared in accordance with International Financial Reportlng Standards as adopted
by European Union; and’

. have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and HM Treasury directions |ssued
under the Financial Services and Markets Act. 2000

Opinion on regularity

In my opiniori, in all material respects the income and expenditure recorded in the financial statements
"have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recorded in the -
financial statements conform to the authorities which govern them. ‘

Basis of opinions

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK) and

Practice Note 10 ‘Audit.of Financial Statements of Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom', My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section.of my certificate. Those standards require me and my staff to comply
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with the Financial Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 2016. | am independent of the Financial

Conduct Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit and the -

financial statements in the UK. My staff and | have fulfilléd our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion. :

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

~ As explained morefully in the statement- of Directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for:

« the preparation ofthe financial statements and for being satisfied that they glve atrue and faur view.

« suchinternal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation ofﬁnancual
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

« assessing the group's and the parent company's ability’to continue as a going concern, disclosing, if
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to I|qu¢date the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with

. applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK).

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material -
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance'with ISAs (UK), | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may -
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ . obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances,-but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group's and the Financial Conduct Authority’s internal control. -

+ evaluate the appropriateness of accountnng policies used and’ the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management :

+ conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
-and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the the group's and the Financial Conduct Authority's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
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obtained up to the date of my auditor s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 5
+ evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
_disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
« obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the co.nsolidated financial statements.
| am responsible for the direction, supervision'and performance of the group audit. | remain solely
responsible for my audit opinion. .
| communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned“sc'ope"
. and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigriificant defrcuencnes ininternal '
control that lidentify during my audit. ‘ o

e

In addition, | amrequired to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the income
and expenditure reported in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

gv_ Other Information

?3 The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information’
B included in the annual report, other than the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report
—~ Zas having been audited, the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. My opinion onthe
' finanC|a| statements does not cover the other information and | do.not express any form of assurance
o ‘~ & conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to
é/' £read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other |nformation fam requnred toreport that fact I have nothing to report in this
regard.

Opinioh on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In my opinion:

+ the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and the accounts directions issued by HM Treasury under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000;

-~

« inlight of the.knowledge and understanding of the group-and the company and ts environment

obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic
" ‘Report or the Directors’ Report; and ' :

. the information givenin the Strategic and Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and those reports have been
prepared in accordance With applicable legal requarements

Matters on which I report by exception

| have nothing to report in respect of the follownng matters where the Companies Act 2006 requrres me
to report to you if, in my opinion : :

.-+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Financial Conduct Authority, or returns
adequate for my audit have not been received from branches not visited by my staff; or
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the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration réport tobe éUdited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or '

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
I have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit; or

a corporate gbverném'ce statement has not been prepared by the parent compéhy.

Report . S - : ' _ : ‘
| have no observations to make on these fihancial statements. :

Sir Amyas C E Morse _ o Date:l%July 2018

Comptroller and Auditor General
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March

Group Paren't.Comp_any
“Total Total Total Total
. 2018 |. - 2017! 2018 -2017!
Notes £m £m £m £€m
Income . S e
Feeincome al|” 580.6 5557 L5728 545.5
Otherincome 197 192|021 208
Totalincome "2 600.3 574.9 .. 594.4 566.3:
Operating costs RE . s
Staff costs 7(334.3) | (329.0) ' (327.1) (321.9)
Administrative and general (218.3) {194.7) (216.6) (192.6)
costs e Lo
Staff costs capitalised during 5 55 49 " R 55 49
the year R ’
Total operating costs " (547.1) (518.8) (538.2) - (509.6)
Surplus for the year ] 53.2 56.1 '56.2: 56.7
Net actuarial gains/ (losses) 13 - _ 1329 (65.3) 32.9 {65.3)
for the yearinrespect of the ) ! g
«(_,: defined benefit pension scheme . . ]
%Total comprehensive surplus/ 86.1 (9.2) i ‘ 8‘9.1A (8.6)
:= (loss) for the year g
The 2017 figures have been restated as reflected in notes 4 and 6. The total comprehensive loss for 2017 has not changed.
tatement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March
‘ Eh ' AccumUlaied Deficit )
Ggoup: A Parent Qompa_ﬁy
] ) £m-, ) £m
At1Aprii2016 (164.2) (170.2)
" Total comprehensive loss for the year (9.2) (8.6
At 31 March 2017 (173.4) (178.8)
]'otai cocr!\pre'l'iensiv:je"'sd(p_lu; i’or'trje yeér 86.1 89.1
At31March2018 . . o L (87.3) (89.7)

\\\Q NG RN oL é)crx!j(:;
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Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment - 3% aga504y
‘ ' HEeSE
Current assets ‘ﬁ{fﬁww
Trade and other receivables ‘ 227
Cash and cash equivalents 183.1
A 205.8
Total assets 310.3
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (306.7)
Short-term provisions ' -
' (306.7)
Totalassetsless\current . 3.6
 liabilities .
Non-current liabilities )
Trade and other payables : (2.4).
Long-term provisions o (2.5) 13 . (2.5)
3 (4.9) (4.9)
Net liabilities excludihg T 4.1 [P (1.3)
retirement benefit obligation . g
Retirement benefit obligation (177.5) |3 (177.5)
-Net liabilities including (173:4) | (178.8)
retirement benefit obligations - )
(173.4) | (178.8) .

Financial Conduct Authority = ¢

Statement of financial position asat 31 March -
Company Number: 01920623 ' . : .

TR e ans
SRR
SR L33 e i
Total | e e e Tot
Ao PRI g
e
g; £ T 1)

;a5 Parent Com
E BT T

BN N S

4 TN M e PR b R e T
s .,WM’;-::!:% T
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Non-current assets

Accumulated deficit _

The financial stat;ements were appr’ovéd by the Board on 27 Ju;'ue 2018, and signe‘d on 11 July 2018
onits behalf by: ) : , ,

Charles Rgndell o .Andrew Bailey
Chair : , Chief Executive

\

, . . .
The Company is exempt from the requirement of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as stipulated
in Schedule 1ZA, s.15(4) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. ’

'RECEIVED 11 JUL 208 ..
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RIRST
315274'
o

S ":": f‘iﬂ.ﬁﬁ\,

TAN syl wakt o

~;' ‘Parent Compa'ny 3

T
T

Investing activities

Interest received on bank 0.5
AN deposits *
Expenditure onintangible . (21.9)
software development :
Purchases of property, plant and HR70.2) (13.3) (13.3)
equipment ﬂm -
Net cash usedininvesting (34.7)
_ activities
Netincrease/ (decrease)in . (41.7)
cash and cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents at "5*6'; 3 224.8
the start of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at 183.1
the end of the year
R . , '
1 .
+
. ’ \ .
) N
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Notes to .theAﬁnanciaI statements

1. General information .

The Financial Conduct Authority Limited (FCA}is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under

“the’ Companies Act 2006 and is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital. The directors of

- the company are the members and have agreed to contribute £1 each to the assets of the companyin

National Audit Office

the event of it being wound up. The nature of the FCA's operations is set out in the Financial Overview.

' These accounts have been prepared on a consolidated basis to include the PaYment Systems Regulator

Limited (PSR), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the FCA.

Under the FCA's Accounts Direction from Her Majesty's Treasury (the Treasury) in accordance with

Schedule 1ZA, paragraph 14(1) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA), we are required to
disclose additional information this year regarding sickness absence (no comparative data requrred) and
have included thlS inthe' Our resources' section of the Annual Report.

The registered office for both the FCA and PSRis 12 Endeavour Square, London, E20 1JN.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling (re'unded to £0.1m) because that is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which both the FCA and PSR operate.

2. Core accounting policies

.a) Basis of preparation -

Theconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical
cost convention in accordance with: International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
‘European Union; the Treasury's Accounts Direction issued under the Financial Services and Markets Act -
2000; and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. We

discuss the reason why the going concern basis is appropriate in the Financial Overview.

The principal significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
set out below. We have included the policies with the relevant notes where possible. These policies have .
been consisten-tlyapplied to both accounting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Under s.454 of the Compames Act 2006, on a voluntary basis, the dlrectors can amend these financial
statements if they subsequently prove to be defective. '

'b) Sagmﬂcant;udgements

The préparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual
results could differ from estimates. Information about these judgements and estimates is contained i inthe
relevant accounting pohcues and notes to the accounts. The key areas of estimation uncertainty are:

« Pension deficit (note 13) — the quantification of the pension deficit is based upon assumptions made
by the directors relating to the dlscount rate, retail pr|ce inflation (RPI) future pension increase and
life expectancy .

» Intangible assets usefullives (note 7) -'asset lives are reviewed on an annual basis and, where
necessary adjusted to reflect the remaining expected asset life. Changes to asset lives arise as a
result of changesin technology or business need.

c) Group finaricial statements

- The PSRis a private company, limited by shares (a single share with a £1 nominal value) andisa wholly
-~ ‘owned subsrdlary of the FCA. o
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d) Changesin accounting policy :

The group has early adopted the following new standards: IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments The nature and the effect of the changes are further -
explained below:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts witH Customers

IFRS 15 estabtishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaces the existing standard, IAS18 Revenue, for the perlod beginning on or after 1
January 2018. : . ) v

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised.
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to Wthh the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The standard requires an entity to identify the contract(s) with a customer and the performance
obligation related to the contract. It further requires for the transaction price to be determined and
allocated to the performance obligations in the contract. Finally, revenue can only be recognised when
(or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Management assessed the implication of adopting IFRS 15 directly, however given the nature of the
FCA's and the PSR's activities and that IFRS 15 relates to commercial organisations it was not considered
appropriate. Accordingly management haye applied |AS 8 (10) to use its judgement in developing and
applying an accounting policy that provides information that is relevant and reliable. '

I doing so management has broadened the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulation.
'A‘contract’ in this circumstance would be the underlying statutory framework set out in FSMA for the
FCA and FSBRA for the PSR. This enables the group to raise fees to recover the costs of carrying out
their statutory functions. . ‘ .

The standard also introduces the concept of identifying performance obligations which are promisesin a

_ contract to transfer goods or services that are distinct. The performanée obligation for the FCA and the

PSR is granting a firm the ability to operate and remain authorised during the course of the year. FSMA
and'FSBRA provide the enforceability of the performance obligation. '

The transaction price is the amount of consideration that an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer. The transaction price has been déetermined to
be as set out in the Fees Schedule of the FCA handbook. The group's revenue streams are categorised

as either fee income or other income.

Fee income includes the annual periodic fees; special project fees; and applications fees. FSMA enables.
the FCA to raise fees and FSBRA enables the FCA to raise fees on behalf of the PSR to recover the costs
of carrying out their statutory function.

"+ Annual periodic fees are levied and measured at fair value when recognised.

» Special project fees (SPFs) are charged to recover exceptienal supervisory costs where a firm

undertakes certain restructuring transaction such as raising additional capital, a significant change
to a firm’s business model SPFs are. recogmsed at point of charging a correspondmg fee to the
respective firm. : .
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« Application fees are recognised 'at the point of when the firm is authorised.

Other income satisfies the core principles and conditions set out to recognise revenue. Other income
includes: -

« Skilled person reports income: The FCA canitself appoint a Skilled Person and settle the professuonal
fees directly with the supplier. These fees are then recovered by charging a corresponding fee to the
respectlve firm. There is no separate performance obligation to a firm for this report, rather.the cost
recovery,results in an adjustment to the transaction price. The income is not a separate revenue
stream but rather an adjustment to the transaction price.

+ Services provided to other regulatory bodies: The FCA acts as a collection agent for the other
regulatory bodies namely: the Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA); the Financial.Services
Compensation Scheme (FSCS); the Financial Ombudsman Service (the ombudsman service); the
Money Advice Service (MAS); the Financial Reporting Council (FRGC); Pension Guidance Service (PGS)
and the Payment System Regulator (PSR). The FCA does not recognise any income collected on behalf
of other regulated bodies except the fees it charges each of the bodies as stated in the Service Level
Agreements (SLAs). The performance obligation is the provision of an integrated business support as
stipulated in the SLA. '

Publication and training services: The cost of events is not included in firms' fees so the- FCA charges-
any firm that takes partin workshops, round-tables, conferences, seminars and other events. The
performance obligation is the provnsnon of anevent to a firm and it is at this pomt that income is
recognlsed

.

In summary, based on management‘s'assessment the transition from IAS 18 to IFRS 15 has not had
a material impact on the Group s fmancnal statements and comparatives for 2017 financial year do not
require restatement.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The new standard is based on the concept that financial assets should be classified and measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit and loss as they arise, unless restrictive criteria
are met for classifying and measuring the asset at either amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. The FCA's own financial instruments (Trade Receivables), whose classuﬂcatlons
are not affected by the adopt|on of IFRS 9, are held at amortised cost.

The group has applied the smplrﬂed approach toimpairment of financial assets by providing for
expected credit losses on trade receivables as described by IFRS 9. This requires the use of lifetime
expected credit loss provision for all trade receivables. These provisions are based on an assessment

. of risk of default and expected timing of collection, and an allowance for loss is made for potentially
~ impaired receivables during the year in which they are identified based on a periodic review of all
" outstanding amounts. Allowance losses are recorded within administrative costs in'the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

Due to the nature of its ﬂnancnal instruments, the transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 has not had a material
impact on the Group's financial statements and comparatives for 2017 ﬂnanc:al year do not require
restatement -

- IFRS 16 Leases (has been issued but is not yet effective)

IFRS 16 introduces a single lesseée accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and

" liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months unless the underlying asset is of low -

value. A lessee recognises a Right Of Use (ROU) asset in the same way as other non-financial assets (for

example property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities in the way of other financial liabilities.
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“As a consequence, a lessee recognises depreciation of the ROU asset and-interest on the lease liability,

and also classes cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with IAS 7.

IFRS 16 is mandatory for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019 but earlier
application.is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or
before the initial application of IFRS 16. -

Given the significance of the effect of this standard on the accounting for the FCA's new building at -
Stratford, the group will adopt IFRS 16 with effect from 1 April 2018 and will account for a ROU asset and
corresponding liability of circa £275m. The lease liability has been measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using interest rate of 2. 46% based on a 20 year loan from the Public
Works Loan Board as the most appropriate rate. -

e) Impalrment ofintangibles and property, plant and equnpment

Each year the FCA reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that its assets have suffered any impairment in value. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estlmated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate.

& The recovérable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. If the

e
beavs
<

s

i Audi

recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the cafrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount An |mpa|rment is immediately recognised as an expense.

n; f) Taxatlon

. (‘

.:Z

As a UK incorporated company, the FCA is subject to the provisions of the UK Taxes Acts, the same
corporation tax rules as any other UK incorporated company.

- On the basis of the relevant tax legislation and established case law, the results of the FCA's regulatory

activities (on which it does not seek to make a profit} are not subject to corporation tax because the
FCA's regulatory activity does not constitute a 'trade’ for corporation tax purposes.

The FCAinvests heavily in its own fixed assets, mainly IT software, and accounts for these as intangible
fixed assets. It thus has significant levels of amortisation charges. The FCA has applied the intangible
fixed asset tax rules to these assets and as a result tax relief is available for the amortisation.

This amortisation is currently being utilised to offset any corporation tax due on investment income,
resulting in nil corporation tax being payable by the FCA at this time.

The application of the corporation tax regime for intangible assets has also led to an unrecognised
deferred tax asset (unrecognised in the FCA's balance sheet) in refation to unused tax losses carried

forward as it is not sufficiently certain that the FCA will actually have taxable income to set against these

lossesin future As at 31 March 2018 this deferred tax asset equated to £40.7m (2017: €35.3m).

The FCAis partially exempt for VAT purposes because a significant part of the revenue relates to
regulatory activities which are outside the scope of VAT

The corporation tax treatment of the PSR's activities is the same as for the FCA., for the same reasons

and agreed with Her Majesty’s Revénue and Customs. As the FCA wholly owns the PSR, the FCAandthe
PSR are part of the same group for corporation tax and VAT purposes
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3. thes to the cash flow statement

Chapter 8
Financial statements

I AN  Firent Commpany” %, 1

[ A Y R LI 3
T L - £€mM
Surplus for the year from operatior;s 56.6

Adjustmenté for:
Interest received on bank deposits {0.5)
Amortisation of other intangible 28.6
assets
Loss ondisposal ofintangible assets 0.4
Depreciation of property, plant and 11.6
equipment
increase/ (decrease) in provisions 0.1)
Difference between pension costs 4.3
and normal contributions -
Payments made against unfunded 0.6
pension liability
Additional cash contributions to {29.7)
reduce pension scheme deficit
Operating cash flows before 71.8
movements in working capital

‘ Decrease inreceivables 11.7
Increase/ (decrease)in payables {90.5)
Net cash used by operations . (7.0)
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FSMA enables the FCA to raise fees and the Financial Services (Banking Reform) Act 2013
enables the FCA toraise fees on behalf of the PSR, to recover the costs of carrying out their

statutory functions.

Feeincome inéludes tﬁe annual periodic fees receivable under FSMA for the financial year and is

recognised in the year and measured at fair value in accordance with note 2d.

Group Parent Company.
. Total | . Total Total “Total
2018 2017* 2018 20172
£m €m “Em ~€m
Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees! 515,.8 513.1 ~'508.0 5029
Additional Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees 09 5.5 09 5.5
EUWithdrawal fees 2.5, . ' R 25 -
'Scope change costs recovered - Consumer .'_14.8 ! 77 148 77
credit (CC) _ ‘ o SR
Scope change costs recovered - non CC o 13.3 10.2 13.3 1102
" Application fees and other regulatory income? 134 11.0| .- 13.4 11.0
Special project fees 19.9 82| .. 199 8.2
& T .
&z Total 580.6 555.7 572.8 545.5
&
i‘él Of the £508.0m {2017: £502.9m) Ongoing Regulatory Activity fees £46.7m (2017: £46.4m) related to penalties collected in the previous year for the
2 sum of enforcement costs and returned to fee payers through reduced fees. See note 11 on Penalties.
_:2 The 2017 figures have been restated, Application fees and other regulatory income now includes late reporting fees of £1.6m (2017: £1.6m} previously
r(g reported under other income.
g
o
“Otherincome is recognised when services are provided and is analysed below:
‘ "~ Group 4 Parenit Company
Total | Total  Total . Total
\ 2018 2017? 20181 © - . 20177
€m £m €m : €£m
Skilled person reports (s.166) income' 4.2 6.5 .42 6.5
Services provided to other regulatory 109 9.8 12.9 11.5
bodies ) ) :
Publications and training services 0.4 06 04 0.6
Interest received on bank deposits 0.6 0.6 .06 05
Other sundry income? 3.6 1.7 35 1.7
Total otherincome 19.7 19.2 21.6 20.8

1 Thisincome is a recharge of the costs of the 5.166 reports to the firmin question. Overali this has a net zeroimpact on the statement of comprehensive
income for the FCA as the these charges are included in administrative costs.

2 The 2017 figures have been restated, Other sundry income excludes late reporting fees (this is now reported under fee Income)
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Total staff costs

benefits

} Employer's nat’iona] insurance 28.0
costs '
Apprenticeship levy -
Employer’'s defined contribution ' -22.4
pension costs
Paymen_ts made against Q.6
unfunded pension liability
Netinterest on defined benefit 43
pension scheme '
Permanent staff costs 297.5
Temporary 29
Secondees 1.5
Contractors 20.0 )
Short-term resource costs 24.4

321.9

N

Of wh@ch the %ollowing was capitalised during the year.

Staff Costs

49

.

117




Chapter8 Financiai Conduct Authority
Financial statements Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

Staff numbers comprise:

The average number of full-time equivalent employees (including executive directors and fixed- .
term contractors) during th presented by division below:

N » gpN - PRy

. - ¢ A,
_____ [ -4y

Supervision - Retai

| & Authorisation

Supervision - Investment, Wholesale and
Specialist '

o Enforcement and Market Oversight

Strétegy and Competition
Sub-total. !

. Operations.

Other central services
PSR
Total

£65; . 58 |
S R 3,561 | 3,421 |
JAlale

fauy O

e

¢ As at 31 March.2018, there were 3,6}/?(2017:-3,482) full-time equivalent employees of which.

5 3,559 (2017: 3,422) were FCA and 73 (2017: 60) were PSR.
48] s :

k\.\l\- !
The average number of s

-85,

t lf)FF e

\ugi

A
H

hort-term resources utilised

-

1

T

Nationai

64 |5

Secondees 24 \E
Contractors 126 | &,
Total

: TETsA 214 TR
AJL $19C : ' ' A i8S

As at 31 March 2018, there were (2017: 182} short-term resources of which 199 (2017: 171)

.were FCA and 9’12017: 11) were PSR. '

A > IR )
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Exit packages

Redundancy and other departure costs incurred in accordance with the redundancy policy are set out
below. A compulsory redundancy is any departure resulting from a restructure or other change leading to
arole ceasing to exist. Other departures are those mutually agreed with the individual concerned. Long-
term ill health settlements are credited backto ‘Ehe FCA by ourinsurers. :

ANy
32 é‘ tleméfﬁ“tA 5[
L a&wwf“
- 3 - 3
1] 2 " - 3
. ©2 2 . - 4
+ >50-100 - ’ 1 1 2
>100 - 150 - o 1 2
>150-200 ) - - -
>200 - - 1 1
Total . - 3 9 3 15
number - .
Gross €0.1m £0.3m €0.4m ( £0.8m
costs'

1 The exit package costs is gross of any insurance received, 20 18: £0.1m (2017: £0.4m).

National Audit Office

6. Administrativé and general costs

The admmlstratlve costs for the year endmg 31 March comprlse the followmg

s et )
R

N

;o R TR 2 4 :
41«:..,:':"5‘:?37’,.‘(«,.% ? S e "‘. ,, f?%ﬁrm
IT running costs® A 57.77 : 59.9
7.2
- - 28.4
) "6.5
- 375
28.6
11.2
3.5
11.6

IT project scoping costs!

Professional fees

Professional fees: s166° N

Accommodation and office services

Amortisation of intangible assets

Recruitment, training and wellbeing

Travel

Depreciation of property. plant and

equipment ’

Loss ondisposal of intangible assets 7 7 04

Other nonstaff costs i (0.1) (0.3)
Total 194.7 192.6

—

1T costs are now spilt between running and project scoping costs

These professional fees are the costs of the s166 {'skilled person’) reports recharged to the firmin question. Overall thns has a net zeroimpact on the statement of
Comprehensive income for the FCA as the recharges for these costs are recognised in other income.

The 2017 figures have been restated, travel, training and recruitment has been spilt between "Travel and ‘Recruitment, training and we(lbelng It also now excludes
capltahsable fabour costs ; this is now disclosed in note 5 and shown separately in the Statement of Comprehensive income

~N

w

;o .
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Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General was appointed as auditor on 1 April 2013 under FSMA. The auditor's
total remuneration for audit services is set out below:

Group ' . ‘ Parent Company
. . , . Total | - Total. " Total . Total
- - . Sl : 2018 | - 20175 ., 2018 2017

" : £000 - €000 - gooo| £'000
Fees payable to the National Audit Office for 105 . 98 |, .. ., 88 76
the audit of the financial statements L ' - ’

LR Lol E D

The National Audit Office has not provided any non-audit related services to FCA groupin 2018 (2017: €nil)

7. Intangible assets

In accordance with IAS 38: Intangible Assets, costs associated with the development of software for
internal use are capitalised only where:

i. the FCA can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the software

. the FCA has adequate technical, financial and other resources available to it as well as the intent to
complete its'development : ’

||| the FCA has the ability to use it'upon completlon

o iw the asset can be separately identified, it is probable that the asset will generate future economlc

s benefits, and the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

©O0nly costs that are directly attrlbutable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use 4
are included in its measurement. These costs include all directly attributable costs necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operatingin a manner intended by management. All
additions are initially capitalised as work in progress during the development stage. When the asset

is brought into use (immediately once completed) itis then transferred from work in progress to the
appropriate asset category. '

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives. Asset lives are reviewed on an annual
basis and, where necessary adjusted to reflect the remaining expected asset life. Changes to asset lives
arise as a result of changes in technology or business need. Where the full asset life cannot be determined
with reasonable certainty the net book value is amortised over the minimum time that would be required
to implement a replacement asset. The minimum time to replace is also reassessed on an annual basis.
Amortisation reported as an administration expensein the statement of comprehensive income.

When software is not an integral part of the related hardware, it is treated as an intangible asset.
Where no intangible asset can be recognised, research and developrent expenditure is expensed when incurred:

Internal software development costs of £28.3m (2017: £21.9m) have been capitalised as additions during
the year. Internally developed software is designed to help the FCA carry out its various statutory functions,
such as holding details relating to regulated firms. These functions are particular to the FCA, so this internally
developed software generally has no external market value. Management judgement has been appliedin
quantifying the benefit expected to accrue to the FCA over the useful life.of the relevant assets. Those
expected benefits relate to the fact that such software allows the FCA to carry out its functions more
efficiently than by using alternative approaches (for example, manual processing). If the benefits expected
do not accrue to the FCA {for example, if some aspect of its approach to discharging its statutory functions
changes, perhaps due to the impact oﬂmplementlng a European directive), then the carryingamount of the
asset would require adjustment.
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The PSR does not hold intangible assets.

Cost - ;
At 1 April 2016 '
‘Additions ’

Transfers

Reclassification

Disposal
At 31 March'2017

- §At31 March 2018 ;j»;“gw s

Amortisation

2500 -l 147.5

At 1 April 2016

*Charge for year 14 ) - 286
Disposal " (1.8) - . 25.2)
At 31 March 2017 . 24.6 - - 150.9
ﬁ’CﬂE‘FEE?é“F?'é"S'F.«,- R e i ot 276 1‘2’%‘” AR08 ‘"“:igﬁ :

o

a(Li2) | e

Net carrying value P
At31 March 2017 . : . 55.8 . 75.7
AT Mareh 20183 2t S A AR | R LR aSTsa s T 153 | 76 ;@m 752

\ . . P '

Of the net carrying amount of internally generated software of £54.8m and other software of E1.1m:

i. £21.9mrelates to INTACT, a case management tool for authorrsrng firms and mdnvrduals and firms
{three years useful life remammg)

ii. El 1.1mrelates to Gabr|e| a system for submittmg regulatory data online (three years useful life .
remaining)

- -

iii. £6.9m relates to Business Intelligence, a reporting tool that allows business users to create and run
reports ( one year useful life remalnlng) .
Q

Ofthe net carrying amount of work in progress ofElé.Sm:

i. £7.7mrelates to INTACT systems enhancements, adding extra components to the existing system:

ii. £4.4mrelates to atechnology-refreshin advance of move to Stratford.

i. £2.0m relates to 'The Amalgamated Regulatory Data Information System' (TARDIS) replacement This
is the master registry for authorised ﬁrms permissions, individuals and collective investment schemes

within'the FCA. . '
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8. Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic lives. The principal useful economic lives used for this purpose are:

Leasehold improvements Leaseterm
Furniture and equipment Tenyears
Computer equipment (excluding software) Up to fiveyears
Leasehold Computer Furniture and ‘Workin
improvements equipment equipmen? progress Total
Em £€m . £m £m £m
. Cost
At 1April 2016 23.8 48.0( - 15.0 5.2 92.0
Additions - 0.2 ) - 13.1 133
Transfers 1.8 31 01 (5.0 -
Reclassification 01 - - 1.3 1.4
Disposal - - " {0.1) - (0.1)
At 31 March 2017 25.7 51.3 15.0 14.6 106.6
Additions - . - S R - 7007 70.0,
Transfers - c03{ - - (0.3) E
Disposal .. S - S - D = ok
At 31 March 2018 T 250 516 C 150 843 ©T 1766
Depreciation
At 1 April 2016 17.5 38.9 ’ 9.9 . 66.3
Charge for year 4.0 5.9 1.7 - 11.6
Disposal - - (0.1) - {0.1)
At 31 March 2017 21.5 44.8 | 115 - 77.8
Charge for year 3.3 3.2 : 1.9 - 8.4
Disposal - -1 - - T
At 31 March 2018 24.8 " 48.0 .13.4 - 86.2
Net book value’
At 31 March 2017 4.2 6.5 3.5 14.6 28.8
At 31 March 2018 0.9 36| - 1.6 84.3 90.4

Of the carrying amount of £84.3m in work in progress, £74.5m relates to the costs incurred relating to

the new Stratford building (see notes 14 and 15}, and £8.0mto a technology refresh of the End User

Computing solution.

The PSR doés not hold property, plant and equipment.
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9. Current assets .
Tradereceivables are recognised initially at fair value. Appropriate allowances for estimatedirrecoverable
amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when there is ObJeCtlve evidence that an.
assetisimpaired. .

s

Cash andcashequivalents comprise cash and short-term fixed-rate bank deposits with a maturity date of 12 !
months or less and are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes invalue. The carrying amount of these assets
approximates to their fair value. Of the £250.9m (2017: £196.4m), £6.8m (2017: £5.1m) related to fees collected on
behalf of other financial reguiatory organisations (disclosed in trade creditors; note 10}. . .

The FCAcurrently has a £50m (2017: £150m) unsecured overdraft facility with Lloyds Banking Group (LBG)
available until further notice and rewewed per|od|cally by LBG. The PSR does not have or need its own credit
facilities currently.

lntragrou‘p receivableisbasedona provision of services agreement betwegnthe FCAand PSR which sets out the
services supphed and the respective costs of those services. The costsare based on charges the FCAincursand
have been eliminated in the consolidated ﬁgures

Y
22

.
A

0
,Jf‘ S
k.,,,,‘.;_'?;‘

i o

ot ,
S

3.6 |1

Fees receivable

Net penalties receivable ) 11 |EE8E 1.4
Other debtors 1.4

- Prepayments and accrued 15.6 :
income :

SEaeET :

Intragroup receivable —PSR

Trade and other receivables 5 ’ﬂwﬁ@i@_ﬁ TR 2_ §] 22.7
TR
| AR
Cash deposits | EEERRA RG0S, 1769’
Cash at bank ’ ,iﬁﬁ.éiﬁ: . 6.2
Cash and cash equivalents b “;‘2’;;1%3250 CR ~ 183.1 .
Total current assets . S TN 2706, 205’8

The average credit perlod is 36 days (2017: 37 days)

The directors consider that the carryung amount of trade and other receivables approxnmates to their fair
value. : :

’
'

All of the fees and other recelvables have been rewewed for indications oﬁmpalrment ThIS provision has

R R s T 3 g a3t

. :’:gv"’:}"%" TR 7 g
MLy X aren ompany T} ;
TRITE p y..:}“ .ﬁ 13‘

& q
. ‘t‘g \y

'7 ')‘
"‘A“i“?‘..l’-

»&'L £3

& 4,,%31

.u‘..;.

At 1 April 0.8
Increase/ (decrease) in prov15|on for fees (0.2)

. receivable *
0.6 u,,,ﬁ.j}} T i 0.6

Totalat31 March - . R
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In addition, somé of the unimpaired fees receivable are past due as at 31 March. The age of fee
receivables past due, but notimpaired, is as follows:

Group ' _Parent Company
Total : " Total Total | - Total
2018 2017 L . 2018 2017
- €Em ) £m ’ ) €m | - £m
Not more than three months - o2 02f. "% o2 0.2
Between three and nine months v e Te s 0 os| ‘.. .01 . 0.5
Total unimpaired fees receivable N R .,V 0.3 0.7 (... ~‘ . '6,3, 0.7

The FCA policy is to review receivables systematically for recoverability when they are more than three
months past due. ' '

10. Current and non-current liabilities

Currentliabilities

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Asuechit Office

Group . " Parent Company

Total Total Total . Total
2018 ) 2017 . 2018 L 2017
. Notes | - €m £m £m ‘ €m
Trade creditors and accruals . 1342 . 76.7 E __;1__3_3__1—} . 75.6
Other taxation and social : ) 12.6 114 . 126 T11.4

security - RO | ST
Net penalties payable mf- . ssg 506 .. ‘. 559 506
Fees received in advance _ . 184.5 175.2 1793 , 169.1
Trade and other payables ) .. 387.2 ‘ 3139 T 380.9 306.7
Short-term provisions L 36 -1 "36 -
Total current liabilities C 7 3908 313.9| . - 3845 306.7

1 The FCAissued a request for payment to Capita £66m. This payment is a redress payment for formerinvestors in the Connaught Income Fund, Series 1. At 31 March
2018, £51.2m of the monies had been collected. A further £10.2m has been collected subsequent to year end. Once the actual redress figures have been calculated
the monies will be distributed to investors and any remaining balance returned to Capita.

Trade creditors and accruals principally co.mprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. The average credit period'taken.for trade payables is 23 days (2017: 27 days).

As at 31 March, the group and FCA (parent company) current liabilities have contractual maturities which
are summarised below:

Within 6 months 6 to 12 months
2018 2017 2018 | 2017
€m . Em | £€m . £m
Trade creditors and accruals . : : L 132.4 74.6 1.8 2.1
Feesreceivedin advance ’ . 1845, 1736 - .- " 16
Other liabilities . ' : e 719 61.8 .02 0.2
Total current liabilities .- 388.8 3100 20| . 3.9

Other liabilities maturing within 6 months include £1.2m (2017: £1.0m) for the PSR.
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Non-current liabilities ' : : . \

" Asat 31 March the Group and FCA (the parent company) non- current liabilities measured at amortlsed
cost, have contractual maturities that are summarised below:

Lease accrual

. Long-term provisions for dilapidations

. Totalnon-current liabilities

The Lease for TIQrequires that the buildingis returned to the Landlord at the end of the lease term with any
building alterations and additions removed. This obligation will therefore crystallise in 2038. The provision

- is based on a desktop survey completed by professional advrsors andwillbe reassessed onaregular basrs
throughthelease term. :

«

11. Penalties ' ' B

Penalties issued and not yet collected as at 31 March are included in both current assets and current
liabilities and are subject to an assessment of recoverability.

A liability to the FCA fee payers arises when a penalty is received. This liability is Jimited to the sum of the

enforcement costs for that year agreed with the Exchequer and these retained penalties are returned to

the fee payers through reduced fees in the following year. Once total penalties collected during the year
-exceed this amount, a liability to the Exchequer arises. .

Recognition of enforcement expenses: all costs incurred to the end of the year are included in the
financial statements but no provision is made for the costs of completing current work unless there is a ,
present obligation. ' : -

NMational Audit Office

. Inthe course of enforcement activities, indemnities may be given to certain provisional liquidators and
trustees. Provisions are made in the accounts for costs incurred by such liquidators and trustees based
"on the amounts estimated to be recoverable under such lndemnmes

Penaltves recelvable atl Apnl

Penalties issued during the year

Write-offs during the year

Penalties collected during the year

Penalties receivable at 31 March

Allowance for bad debts

Net penalties receivable at 31 March

.
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Allowance for bad debts

Penalties receivable were also reviewed for impairment and an allowance made as set out below. These

allowances reduce the amounts receivable.

Total"

] Tota!_
2018 2017
€m | Em
At 1 April "109 10.7
(Decrease)/ increase in allowance for bad debts 2.2) 0.2
Totalat 31 March 87 10.9
Penalties collected during the year .
' : » Total Total
2018 2017
€m £€m
Retained penalties to be returnéd to fee payers '46.7 46.4
Penalties paid to Exchequer during the year © 195 148.7
Penalties payable to Exchequer T74 3.2
Payable to Exchequer from previous years (3.2) (9.1)
(_g Penalties collected during the year - 70.4 189.2
:e:%
7”;{ Net p\enalties payable
<. Total Total
: ‘(g 20_18 2017
,.g o -Notes | . . €m . €Em,
: ZQ Retained penalties to be returned to fee payers o 467 -46.4
Penalties under/ {over)-released to fee payers "0.4 ~{0.4)
Penalties payable to Exchequer . 7.4 3.2
Net penalties receivable . W 14
Net penalties payaEle ' 10 e 559 50.6

The PSR did not issue any penalties during the year ended 31 March 2018.

12. Losses and Special Pa-yments

The Accounts Direction from the Treasury requires a statement showing losses and special payments
by value and by type where they exceed £300,000 for the year to 31 March 2018 only (no comparative

figures required).

There are no losses and special payments to report for 2017/18.

.13, Retirement benefit obligation

The FCA operates a tax-approved occupational pension scheme, the FCA Pension Plan (the Plan), which s
opento all employees of the group. The Planis a UK approved defined benefit pension scheme and as such is
subject to UK pensions legislation and regulations. The Plan was established on 1 April 1998 and operates on
both a defined contribution basis (the Money Purchase Section) and a defined benefit basis (the Final Salary
Section), whichiis closed to new members and to future accruals. The disclosures have been prepared for the
purposes of reporting under IAS19, rev 2011 on the understanding that there is no impact from IFRIC14 or any
requirement to recognise an additional liability in respect of any minimum funding requirements.

The governance of the Plan is primarily the respdnsibility of the Trustee of the Plan. However, FCAis
consulted on key areas such as investment strategy. The Plan is exposed to several key areas of risk.
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These primarily relate to interest rate and inflation risk, longevity risk, and asset return risk. In addition,
there may be changes in the Plan provisions or applicable law that could impact the Plan’s fundirig. The
FCAis exposed to these risks to the extent that if the deficit in the Plan worsens due to these factors,
additional deficit contributions may be required.

The Money Purchase Section forms part of a wider flexible benefits: programme where members can, within

_ hmlts select the amount of their overall benefits allowance that is directed towards their pen3|on plan.

Payments-to the Money Purchase Section of the Plan arerecognisedin the statement of comprehensive
income, as they fall due. Pre-paid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cost
refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

‘The total expense recognised in}the statement of comprehensive income of £24.3m (2017: £22.8m)

represents contributions payable to the Plan by the FCA at rates specified in the rules of the Plan.

The Final Salary Section has no active members and the benefits of the deferred members are )
calculated based on their final pensionable salary, calculated at the date they ceased accruing benefits.

The net liabilities of the Final Salary Section of the Plan are calculated by deducting the fair value of the

the statement of financial position.,

The obligation of the Final Salary Section of the Plan represents the present value of future benefits
owed to employees in respect of their service in prior periods. The discount rate used to calculate
the present value of those liabilities is the balance sheet date market rate of high quality corporate
bonds having maturity dates.approximating to the average term of those liabilities. The calculation is
performedby a qua[rﬂed actuary using the projected-unit credit method at each reporting date.

Actuarial gains and losses arising in the Final Salary Section of the Plan (for example, the difference
between actual and expected return on assets, effects of changes in assumptions and experience losses
due to changes in membershrp) are fully recognised in other comprehensnve incomeinthe perlod in which
they are lncurred

Past service cost (mc|ud|ng unvested past service cost)is recognnsed immediately in the proflt orloss.

The most recent Scheme Specific Valuation (SSV) of the Plan was carried out as at 31 March 2016 by the
Scheme Actuary. The results of this valuation have been taken into accourit for the purpose of the JAS 19
retirement benefit as at 31 March 2016, in order to allow for.any changes in assumptlons and movements
in liabilities over the perlod

The key assumptions concerning the future uncertalnty at the reporting date, which have a S|gn|ﬂcant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are:

+ pension deficit - the quantiﬁca‘tion of the pension deﬁcit is based upon assumptions made by th'e
directors relating to the discount rate, retail price inflation (RPI), future pension increases and In’e '
expectancy

~ annualincrease in RPI, or 5.0% a year if lower, although some of the pension rights transferred in from
the FCA's predecessor organnsations receive different levels of pension increases.
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The major assumptlons and dates used for the purpose of actuarial assumptions were as follows:

At31March- "~ _ : _ o ' 2018 R 2017
Discountrate - - _. T 240%| 2.45%
Retail price inflation (RPI) : : L 3.25% © o 3.35%
Future ﬁensionincreases . ' . . ',: . 3:00%. 3.05%
. Plan membership census dates . Lo ;.31“'/,03/2016', 31/03/2016

The discount rate is used to calculate the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO). The DBQ is the present
value of the cash flows of expected future payments required to settle the obligation to provide benefits
resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods. The discount rate was chosen with

* reference to the duration of the Plan's liabilities (around 20 years) and takes into account the market
yields for high quality corporate bonds of appropriate durations.

In assessing the value of funded obligations, the mortality assumptions for the Plan are based on current
mortélity tables and allow for future improvements in life expectancy. The mortality assumptions for
2018 are based on CLUB VITA tables and reflect an update to the CMI mortality improvements from the
mortahty assumptions from 2017.

.. | he table below illustrates the assumed life expectancies in years of members when they retire:

C . . . .

& ' : ) : ) 2018 - 2018 2017 2017
S ' . - C Males | . Females Males Females
't? Retiring today aged 60 (years) - .'..2‘7-:7j o 29.1 - 2738 29.4 .
< Retiririgin 15 years aged 60 (years) - 288 7 303 29.0 30.8

/o\’ % The results of the pension valuation are sensitive to changes in all of the assumptions referred to above.
~:Z(/ ¢ The table below provides an estimate of the sensitivity of the present value of pension obligations, and
the cost of serwcmg those obhgaﬁons to small movements in those assumptions.
‘ ‘ Increasg/ {(decrease)in pensmn
. . obligation at
. ) -l ’ 31March 2018
Assumption S‘ensitivity : ) ) £m ,A %
Present value of funded obligation Assumptions as above —nochange 8587 -
Discount rate . 10bpsincrease to 2.50% - , 65| - (19%
Discount rate 10 bps decrease to 2.30% - ‘ ‘ 1-17,02 .. 2.0%
(nflation 10 bps increase to 3.35% 128 . 15%
Longevity Life expectancy for a60yearoldincreasesby 1year | . 243 . 29%

The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position are:

2018 2017 © 2016 2015 2014

£€m £m |- £m . €Em €m

Fair value of Plan assets ’ 742.7 7125| 590.1 585.3 48722

Less: Present value of funded obligations . (858.7) |- (886.6) (724.2) (727.9) " (610.9)

Deficitin the Plan " {116.0) T 174 (134.1) " (142.6) (123.7)

Unfunded pension liabilities o (Gay 4| . (30 (3.0) (2.7)
Net liability o C o (119.4) (177.5) . (137.1) (145.6) (126.4).
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Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan
are as follows: ) : : .

‘Other net finance costs

Actuarial gain of £32.9m (2017: £65.3m loss) is recognised in the period in which it occurs as part of other
comprehensive income. Cumulative actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income are as - .
follows: ‘ ‘ '

s vt

Losses at 1 April

Net actuarial gains / {losses) recognised in the yea'r
At 31 March

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

SELR T Al S AT S DY T 1, TR A g S gt ] sy
IR AR SRR I ey JrEra
%y Ny D e T N W N e i A e 5 A | X
) = oy A R ¢ R
o~ & e.“nﬁ-%%yﬁ‘?-ukj;'»ggﬂ T j. b

Benefits paid

Interest cost on Plan liabilities e SRR eTS) ©(24.7)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) ) SPRANERAEST (1551}
Closing obligation . ' . : BEYI3(85817); (886.6) .

Actuarial gains/ (losses):

a3 “5': T
S R k:
Experience gains/ (losses) arising on the Plan liabilities.

Gains/ (losses) arising from change in discount rate

Gains/ (losses) arising from change in assumptions linked to price inflation

Gains/ (losses) arising from change in demographic assumptions \

Total actuarial gains/ {losses)

".,f
fi p <. L 2
Lavd % . . SAE

Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains

* Contributions by the empidyer .
Benefits paid . RLER 3
- Closing fair value of Plan assets ~ * , . : 7 BRARNRIRT45.7; . 7125
: )
\
) )
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The FCA had entered into contracts at 31 March 2018 for futU;e capital expenditure totalling £13.5m (2017: b o
" Eril) relatlng to furniture and fittings for The International Quarter (T1Q} and £4.5m (2017: £5.8m} relating to
-intangible assets. These total commitments of £18.0m are not provided for in the financial statements.
There were no capital commitments for the PSR.
15. Operating lease arrangements
At the reporting date the FCA had outstandmg commutments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
: L 2018 - 2017"
£m . £€m
Within one year 255 0% (LS g
In the second to fifth years inclusive ¢ 2; 9 3.8 38
Greater than five years 953} 2945 J33.3- 20378
Total Judl .4 3389 3(3.( 3895
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The fair value of the Plan assets and asset allocation at 31 March were as follows

Assetallocatlron ' o Asset allocation -
2018 Fair value 2018 2017 Fair value 2017
% | £m % ’ £€m
Equity securities 198 147.0 513 365.5
Debt securities 4031 . 2993, 306 218.0
Real estate/property vog2| " 610 7.0 499
" Buy-in asset! - 88: 654, 9.4 " 67.0
Other 229 11700 . 17 121
Closing fair value of Plan assets R :100 : 742.7 100, 712.5

1 InSeptember 2016, the Trustee of the Plan completed the purchase of an insurance contract to cover the pension payments for a tranche of the Plan’s pensioner
members. Under this policy the insurer makes pension payments to the Plan that match the payments due to the members covered and is an asset of the Plan

Theré are no deferred tax implications of the above deficit. .

The disclosures are only in respect of the FCA's portion of the liability/asset. The Plan assets do not
include any of the FCA's own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used
by the FCA. The FCA is the principal employer of the Plan and retains ultimate responsibility for payment
of any debt due in event of a wind-up. FOS is an associated employer and would be liable for payment

. of a debt should they ceased to participate, calculated in line with section 75 debtprovisions. Our

understanding is that surplus can, ultimately, be return to the principal and associated employers.on

> wind-up, but there is currently no agreement in place that sets out how this would be achieved.

As the Plan closed to future benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2010 no accrual funding
contributions were paid after that date. A Recovery Plan was put in place following the SSV as at 31
March 2016 and required an annual deficit contribution of £30.0m (£29.0m for the FCA and £1.0m for the
Financial Ombudsman Service) to be paid over 10 years from 1 April 2017 with the aim of removing the

Plan deficit.

In order to mitigate the risks of significantly increased future annual pension deficit funding
contributions, and to support the agreed long term funding objective, a number of measures were
agreed following the completion of the 2016 valuation. The level of interest rate and inflation hedge has
been was increased to 50% (previously 21%) and a revised trigger mechanism has been implemented to
identify opportunity to further increase the Plan’s exposure to matching assets, with the aim to achieving
an allocation by 2030 of around 80:20 matching assets to return seeking assets.
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On 20 May 2015 the FCA signed an Agreement for Lease with Lendlease to move to The lnternatlonal .
Quarter (TIQ) in Stratford in 2018. The bwldmg has been completed and the lease commenced on 31
March 2018 while the lease instruments were signed on 12 April 2018 and are for atwenty year term. The
initial rent free period ends.in September 2021. The interest rate used to discount the lease for IFRS 16
purposes is expected to be that quoted by the Public Works Loan Board on an annuity basis for loans

" with a duration of nineteen and a half to twenty years (2.46%).

The group will adopt IFRS 16 with effect from 1 April 2018 and account for TIQ on a Right of Use basis.
The PSR occupies the FCA's building and has no lease commitments of its own.

Lease expenses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are £13.4m (2017": £13.5m) and
sublease income recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incomeis £0.2m (2017: £0.2m).

16. Related party transactions
Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnelis set out below in aggregate for each of the categories
specified in|AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Key management personnelinclude the chairman,
executive board members and directors that report directly to the CEO and COO. This includes senior

W
e .
g management acting in the role of director for more than 3 months. Of this group, 16 (2017:16) personnel
= receivedremuneration of £100k or more for the year.
3 - | oy
> < Group . Parent Company
= B . : :
= g 2018 2017 . . 2018 2017
Q" 3 : , . €m L Em. . £m : £m
Z- 2 Short-termbenefits o 50, 53| ... 45 - 4.8
Post-employment benefits O='4' ‘ 04| .7 . 04 04
" Total RS s7 . 49 5.2
Y AN e WAV I CRNG MC T Di “’M.L +C f : g
Oth : ionshi \\..Qu\m b +LA N 2,L\7 S.d Teha Loy \u"hx.w ’L EP(JQ\C‘\ (o ?olv
'\:E(% . t er relations ips (‘LQ\“{\5 _‘\\LJ-J, oA bhru\k_-l\ Van Y \\,\n;. _‘N__') Witk Co\lg LL(\ L\S \)K‘ L\';) NG

L ( el \5\(\\_\&( 4o b on @ v\\ EAGH hens - TR vt A e e et ﬁ—t\‘* S
Two non-executive menfb&rs of the board, Baroness Sarah Hogg and Bradley Fried also held ORI IEEN
directorships with FCA-regulated firms during the financial year, Baroness Sarah Hogg was a Chairman/ -\jﬁ -
Director of John Lewis Partnership Pic, part of John Lewis grouBQ‘Bradley Fried was an executive director

of Grovepoint Capital LLP which is authorised and regulated by the FCA, Their remuneration from the

group and FCA is disclosed in'the remuneration table.

There were no other transactions with key management personnelin either year.

Significant transactions with other financial services regulatory organisations

The FCA enters into transactions with a number of other financial services regulatory organisations. The
nature of the FCA's relationship with these erganisations is set out in FSMA. The FCA considers all of the
below organisations to be related parties.

The FCAis required under various statutes to ensure that each of the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS), the Financial Ombudsman Service (the ombudsman service) and the Money Advice
Service (MAS) can carry out their functions. The FCA has the right to appoint and remove the directors of
these'organisations, with the approval of HM Treasury. However, the appointed directors have to exercise
independent judgement in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements defines control as ‘the ability to use power to vary returns'. On the basis of this, the FCA
does not control these entities and hence is not requnred to prepare consolidated financial statements

i
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a) The Financial Services Compensation Scheme Limited (FSCS)

Duringthe year, the FCA provided an agency service to FSCS to collect tariff data, issue levy invoices and
collect levy monies on its behalf. The charge for the service in 2018 was £0.3m (2017: £0.3m). The net
amount of fees collected that remalned to be paid over by the FCA to FSCS at 31 March 2018 was £2.6m
(2017: £0.9m).

b} _The,Fmanc»al Ombudsman Service Limited {the ombudsman service)

During the year, the FCA provided an agency service to the ombudsman service to collect tariff data,
issue levy invoices and collect levy monies on its behalf. The charge for the service in 2018 was £0.1m
(2017: £0.1m). The net amount of fees collected that remained to be paid over by the FCA to the
ombudsman service at 31 March 2018 was £0.5m (2017 £1. 1m). :

The FCAis a guarantor to a lease agreement for the FOS's’premi-ses in.Exchange Tower, Harbour

‘Exchange, London, E14. The lease is for a 15 year term commencing 1 September 2014.The FCA does

not guarantee the short term leases in Exchange Tower.

The ombudsman service is also a participating employer in the FCA Pension Plan described in note 13
and makes contributions at the same overall rate as the FCA.

c) Money Advice Service (MAS)

During the year, the FCA provided an agency service to MAS to collect tariff data, issue Ievy invoices and
collect levy monies on its behalf. The charge for the service in 2018 was £0.1m (2017: £0.1m). The net
amount of fees collected that remained to be pard over by the FCA to MAS at 31 March 2018 was £0.4m,
(2017: £0.6m).

d) The Prudentiai Regulation Authority (PRA)

In April-2013, the FCA entered into an agreement W|th the PRA to provide services under a Provision of
Service Agreement {PSA). This includes issuing invoices and collection of levy monies, the provision of:
information systems, enforcement and intelligence services, contact centre and data migration. The
annual charge for these services in 2018 was £8.5m (2017: £8.4m). '

The net amount of fees collected that remained to be paid over by the FCA to the PRA at 31 March 2018
was £3.5m (2017: £2.4m). :

-e) The Offlce of the Complaints Commsssnoner (OCC)

Following legislative changes which took effect on 1 April 2013, the OCC deals with complaints against’
the FCA, PRA and the Bank of England in respect of its oversight over therécognised clearing houses and
payment schemes. It has been agreed that the FCA will contmue to fund the OCC until 31 March 2019.

The FCA funds the activities of the OCC through the periodic fees it raises. During 2017/18, the FCA
transferred £0.4m (2017: £0.5m) to the OCC to cover running costs, which have been expensedinthe
FCA group financial statements At 31 March 2018, the balance owrng to the FCA from'the OCC was
£0.1m (2017: £0.1m).

‘By virtue of certain prdvisions contained in FSM_A, the FCA (together with the Bank of England and HM

Treasury) has the right to appoint the Complaints Commissioner, who is both'a member and a director of

_the company and as such has the ability to control the OCC. However the OCC activities are immaterial h

compared to those of the FCA and have been accounted for at fair value through the statement of
comprehensive income. : '
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f) Her Majesty's Treasury (the Treasury)

In'April 2017, the FCA entered into an agreement to provide an agency service to the treasury to collect
tariff data, issue levy invoices and collect levy monies onits behalf. The charge for the service in 2018
was £0.2m. The net amount of fées collected that remained to be paid over by the FCA to HMT at 31
March 2018 was EO im.

g) Pensions Guidance Service (PGS) -

InYuly 2016, the FCA entered into an agreement to prowde an agency service to PGS to collect tariff
data, issue levy invoices and collect levy monies on its behalf. The charge for the service in 2018 was
£0.1m (2017: £0.1m). The net amount of fees collected that remanned to be paid over by the FCA to-PGS

-at 31 March 2018 was £0.1m, (2017: £0. lm)

17..Events after the reporting period .
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- During 2017/18, the following skilled persons firms were appointed to undertake s.166 reviews:
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Appendix 1 |
Skilled persons report

Section 166 of FSMA (s166) gives the FCA the power to obtain anindependent view of aspects of a firm’s
activities that cause us concern or where we require further analysis. Appointment of the skilled person
firm(s) can eitherbe by the requlated firm, or (under the Financial Services Act 2012), directly by the FCA.
In each.case, the FCA sets the scope of the review and the costs are borne by the regulated firm.

Key activities

In 2017/18, we used the“s.166 power in29 cases! of which 3 .vvére contracted directly by the FCA.

The aggregate cost incurred by regulated firms for s166 work undertaken in this financial year mcludlng
any reviews that remain in progress since April 2013, was £83. 3m

\l

he reviews examlned anumber of regulatory issues, including:

CE e
g

o

%
L8

past\business,arjd quality of advice

P Au

adequacy of systems and controls, including the effectiveness of control functions

10016

<

corporate governance and senior management arrangements

financial crime ‘ : /

« clientmoney and client asset arrangements.
« risk management, including. prudential risk

« complaint handling

« BDOLLP

¢+ Bovill Limited

. . Deleitte LLP
« Duff&Phelps

o’ | Eversheds LLP

e .Grant Thornton UKLLP
1 This inc!udes'revie;vs where a Requirement Notice has been issued but work has not yet started and so no costs have beenincurred.

2 . Costs quoted are net of VAT except where reviews are directly appointed, where costs are reported as gross. One review constitutes a significant propartion of
the total costs quoted. The Financial Statements (Note 6) give information about costs related to directly appointed s166 reviews. \
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. Mé%arsLLP | ‘ e
. Moore Stephens LLP S b
. ‘())ereus'btd. | - R o - v )
e ‘Pricewaterhou‘se,Coopers LLP . . |
« RSM Risk-Assurance Services LLP

e _ The'Consultjng Consortium Limited

1

National Audit Office

' The table above relates to reviews ‘where the FCA exercised rts powers under 5166 for 2017/18 For PRA
and Bank of England mformatron please refer to their. publrcatlons , o

3

. . ‘( . ‘; . . .
. 1. Lots is a term used to describe. the different subject areas inwhich a skrlled person review can be
carried out. The Panelwas updated in Apnl 2018 to rnclude 4 additional fots coverrng penetratron
testlng and threat |nteII|gence o,

I \ . . . “ s ‘ ;

2. The updated costs in re|at|on to the 15 reviews of |nterest Rate Hedging Products first stated in the
2013/14 Annual Report, some of which are-still on- gomg now stands at 6416 1m. These costs are as
at.31 March 2018. : '

-7 Notes . .

.

.

ye

'3, For 2016/17 one skllled person review commrssmned durrng that period was omltted from both
quarterly and annual reporting. Therefore, the total number of reviews commssroned was 50.but the -
addutlonal review did noti incur costsin the ﬁnanc1a| year. : - '
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Appendix 2
Regulatory Decisions Commuttee Annual Rewew for the
year to 31 March 2018

Introduction from Tim Parkes, Chalr of the Regulatory Decmons
Commuttee

Welcome to the third annual review published by the Regulatory Decisions
Committee (RDC) of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). As in prior years, we
look back at what the RDC has done and look forward bneﬂy to some of the thmgs
we might expect to see over the next 12 months.

cAs you will see from the overview section of this report, it has been another busy year for the RDC;
c;08 cases were opened and 510 cases concluded in the period, compared to 445 and 431 in the
T;prewous year. The cases which we have dealt with over the last year have come predominantly from the

g FCA's Enforcement and Market Oversight Division (EMO). They ranged from complex cases involving

raHeganns ofvery serious misconduct to cases where firms or individuals had failed to submit returns. or
,pay fees due to the Authority. We also dealt with a number of contested cases which came to us from the
:FCA s Authorisations and Supervision Divisions.

The RDC always aims to make fair and appropriate decisions on the FCA's behalf and to do its work
efficiently. In complex cases the RDC now generally operates with panels of three RDC members
throughout the process. The panels are responsible for assessing both the material produced by the
Authority in support of its proposed action and the material (including representations) provided by the
subject of the proposed regulatory action. The use of panels of three — which we previously increased
to five at the representations stage — seems to have worked fairly and efficiently. In particular, we aim
to reach the final stage of a case, when the RDC decides whether or not to give a Decision Notice

and, if so in what form as quickly as possible. | am conscious that the RDC.process can be difficult and
stressful, particularly for unrepresented individuals, and it is clearly desirable to ensure that our process
is not unnecessarily delayed. We will-also be looking to move towards a greater use of electronic case
management over the next year, and | hope that before long we will be in a position to run case meetmgs
‘either wholly or largely using materials in electronic form.

| would like to take the opportunity to highlight the Financial Services Lawyers Association’s pro bono
scheme, which in appropriate cases provides free legal representation by solicitors and counsel to
individuals appearing before the RDC, who would otherwise be unrepresented. | have seen this scheme in
actionrecently and can attest toits value.

As'in prior years, we have decided in some cases not to follow the regulatory action proposed by the
relevant Division of the FCA. This has meant either not giving a Decision Notice at all or imposing
different sanctions. We have also had our first partly-contested case under the new regime which came
into force in early 2017. This involves a streamilined process, designed to limit issues for decision by the
RDC and to arrive at a determination of such cases more qmckly thanwould otherwise be the case. |
hope we will see more of these in the future.
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The RDC has considered some interesting and important cases this year. For example, we issued a
decision'notice in the case of Neil Danziger (formerly an interest raté derivatives trader at RBS), imposing
a substantial financial penalty and prohibition in respect of LIBOR manlpulatlon and we |mposed a
financial penalty of £60,000 on a former bond trader, Paul Walter, in relation to market abuse carried out

by him in the context of algorlthmac trading.?

Looking forward, | would expect alargely similar mix of cases to those we have seen over the last year

. (though we appear to be approaching the end of the Authorisations cases in relation to firms with

interim permissions in relation to consumer credit activities). We shall however look out for our first case
involving the new Senior Managers and Certification Regime, since [ know it is of interest to the industry
and advisors, to understand how the RDC will deal with cases involving the new Duty of Responsibility .-
which the SMCR has introduced.

" I have continued to take opportunities outside the FCA to communicate what the RDC does to

those involved in financial services and their advisers. This has allowed me to speak at seminars and
roundtables, to explain what is involved in appearing before the RDC and to emphasise the fact that we
are separate from the parts of the FCA, which are responsible for investigations and proposing regulatory
or other action. Just as.importantly, it has allowed me to héar and respond directly to concerns about the
RDC. I will continue to look out for suitable occasions to continue this interaction.

I summarise below our review of the FCA's enforcement settlement process during the past year, and
present our conclusions and recommendations. Finally, | would like to thank the RDC's members for their
hard work over the last year and to recognise the excellent support provided by our secretariat which
includes our own legal advisers, case-handlers and administrator.. Without their collective dedication and
commitment, the RDC would not be able to meet its objectives.

—— ’ . .
( i Fe\/(hﬂ
Tim Parkes
1 See the press release and Final No'(ice at www.fca.org.uk/news/press-rel /fca-fines-and-bans-former-rbs-trader-neil-danziger
2 See the press release (and Final Notice) at www.fca.org.uk/news/press-releases/fca-fines-bond-trader-60k-market-abuse
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Overview

The RDC is a committee of the FCA Board and makes specific decisions onits behalf. The Board
appoints the RDC's Chair and members although, apart from the RDC Chair, RDC members are
not employees of the FCA. So the RDC is a part of the FCA, but is operationally independent of
the executive. As the RDC's Terms of Reference make clear, ' The RDC is separate from the FCA's
executive management structure.”

The RDC Chair reports quarterly to the External Risk and Strategy Committee (ERSC) of the FCA
Board about resourcing and performance, for example, how long it takes to complete cases. The RDC
Chair does not report on individual decisions made by the RDC.
Case work

' The RDC made 609 decisions on cases {at elther the ﬁrst or final stage) during the year. Many of these
are about enforcement action against firms for failure to pay regulatory fees or submit regulatory
returns. This figure is a slight increase on the previous year.

- "The Committee also makes decisions on:

“contested enforcement and superwsory actions alleglng serlous breaches by regulated and

af
& unregulated firms and individuals
{f- applications by firms and mdwnduals for authorisation or approval whlch the Authorlsatlons team

proposes to refuse and which are contested

whether to give authority for the FCA to bring civil or criminal proceedings

Nagonal

Maklng decisions

TheRDCis supported by a secretariat of FCA staff, made up of case management, legal and
administrative functions. These staff work in a separate division from the FCA staffinvolved in
conducting investigations and making recommendations to the RDC; they report through the'
Company Secretary to the FCA Chair. The RDC's dedicated legal function advises the RDC Chair and
membérs on the legal and evidential soundness of cases. This assures an objective and independent
approach to issues arising from cases brought to the RDC.

The secretariat also monitors case inputs and timeliness. It ensures that cases are progressed
appropriately, taking-into account complexuty the requirements of the subjects of regulatory action
-and resourcing.

The FCA's website includes a detailed description of what the RDC's role is in contested cases and
explains the different notices which the RDC may issue.® The RDC determines what is an appropriate
decision based onits understanding of the issues before it. In each case, the RDC assesses the
evidence and legal basis for any recomrnendation for regulatory action.

The process allows the subject of the action or their legal representative to make both written and
oral representations to the RDC.> Members use their experience and knowledge in their assessment.

Wheh-appropriate, the RDC will depart from the recommendations made to it, for example:

« tochange the basis of a case from deliberate to negligent misconduct, or vice versa .

3 Paragraph 2(a) of the RDC's Terms of Reference: see www.fca.org. uk/publlcation/corporate/fca-corporate—goveruance.pdf
4 www.fca.org. uk/about/commlttees/regulatory -decisions-committee-rdc

5 The Financial Services Lawyers Association may provnde pro-bono legal assstance to a subject: see wwwfsla org. uk/scheme
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« tochange the amount ofa proposed financial penalty A
« toconclude that no distiplinary actionis abpropﬁate
« todecide that an appﬁcation for authorisation of a firm or approval of an individual should be granted

As we explain below, the RDC's decision-making remit has been extended toinclude cases where the
firm or individual only wants to contest apart ofthe case against them.

RDC decisions are decisions of the FCA. They can thérefore only be challenged by the subject of the

* action, who may refer the matter to the Upper Tribunal for a re-hearing.

Operational performance

Cases received

Cases received during the year have mcreased by over 14% since the préevious year. This contmues the

upwards trend seen inrecent years. The largest increase continues to be in straightforward enforcement
&actions against firms that fail to submit returns or pay fees. This is partly due to the significant increase
idn the number of firms regulated by the FCA. These actions may result, ultimately, in a firm's permissions
%elng cancelled. In approximately 15% of cases brought to the'RDC last year, the firms rectified the
?eguiatory breach during the process, so endlng the regulatory act|on and enabling the firms to continue
<%radlng :
C

. '(acél'he majority of cases received by the RDC (472) were Straightforward — Enforcement cases. Cases-

.

ZFeceived in addition to these are shown in the graph below.

. Figure 1: Cases opened during the year by case type®

25 4
20 4
15 )
1
104 . 9 °
5 ] 5
’ 2
. || ‘
ol : s
Civil . Criminat Panel - © Panel- © Panel- Panel - traightforward -
: Authorisations Enforcement Enforcement Supervisory  Supervisory
(Partly-contested) :
6 " Panel - Enforcement/Supervisory: enforcement or supervisory actions, other than straightforward cases. against firms/individuals for regulatory breaches.

Stralght-orward— Enforcement: enforcement actions decided by the RDC Chair or a Deputy-Chair alone where the use of a panelis not necessary or appropriate

(the.majority being for failure to pay regulatory fees or submit requlatory returns).

Straightforward ~ Supervisory: supervisory matters decided by the Chair or a Depuity alone (for reasons of urgency).

Civil/Criminal: cases where permission is sought from the RDC Chair or a Deputy Chair alone for the FCA to begm proceedings against firms or individuals in the
" civil or criminal courts. .

Panel — Authorisations: cases where itis proposed to refuse an application by a firtn for authorisation or for an individual to be approved.
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Outputs and outcomes
. The number of cases completed during the year has also mcreased compared to the previous year.

The RDC completed 467 Straightforward - Enforcement cases dunng the year. Cases completed in .
addition to these are shown in the graph below.

Figure 2: Cases completed during the year by case type
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Authorisations Enforcement  Supervisory Supervisory

= he outcomes of the 22 completed Panel - Enforcemeént/Supervisory cases were that:

the RDC issued seven prohibition orders preventing an individual Qrom carrying on certain activities

the RDC imposed financial penalties on four individuals

« two cases were settled after the RDC had issued warning notices against a firm (which agreed a
financial penalty) and an individual (who agreed a financial penalty and prohibition)

» four cases were withdrawn by the EMO team before~we received the papers

» the RDC decided not to take the action requested by EMO (the imposition of financial penalties and
prohibitions) against two individuals -

« EMO discontinued one case due to the serious ill-health of the individua! against whom a warning
notice had previously beenissued

» the RDC cancelled one firm's permission

» theRDCissueda First Supervisory Notice withdrawing a firm’'s permissions and imposing a
requirement restricting its ability to'deal with its assets without the FCA's permission

« .the RDCissued a Second Supervisory Notice to a firm confirming requirements not to carry on any
regulated activities, and restricting its ability to deal with its assets without the FCA's permission

The 6 completed Authorisations cases had the following outcomes:
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. Two applications by firms for authotisation were refused. One of these was a firm which had held
interim permission under the consumer credit transitional regime.

+ One application for an individual's appfoval for controlled functions was refused (although the RDC
found the individual to be fit and proper for other controlled functions at the same firm). v

+ TheRDC stayed its proceedings at the request of the Authorisations team and one firm, following an
agreement between them for a variation of permission with a view to a phased w:thdrawal from the
market. The application was withdrawn at the end of this process.

« The Authorisations team approved an application for an mdnv:dual to perform a controlled functlon
after receiving further information. »

¢ Oneother application for an individual's approval was withdrawn by the applicant.

Timing

The average time taken to. complete a Panel Enforcement' case was approximately 7 8 months from

the.RDC receiving the case papers until it either gave a Decision Notice or decided not to give a notice.

This compares with 6.5 months last year. However, had it not been for two linked cases which required
Substantial extensions of time, as well as the provision of further information, this year's average would

ghave been 5.4 months.

t Ot

"aNe completed Panel — Authorisations cases in 2.8 months on average, an improvement on last year's
<faverage of 3.7 months. : '

Upper Tribunal decisions

Where there are disagreements between the FCA and firms or individuals about the FCA's regulatory
decisions, the firm or individual can refer the RDC's decision to the Upper Tribunal (Tax and Chancery

- Chamber) for a re-hearing. The Tribunalis an mdependentJudlaaI body established by the Tribunals,
Courts and Enforcement Act 2007.

Tribunal proceedings involve a full re-hearing of the case, not an appeal. They also involve different
evidence —most notably live witness evidence, including cross-examination before.the Tribunal. The
RDC does not have any role in the proceedings. The FCA's case is presented by EMO, which can choose
to present the case to the Tribunal on a different basis from that presented to the RDC, for lnstance by
arguing for a higher ﬂnanoal penalty.

For these reasons, the RDC does not and cannot directly assess the quality of its decisions in referred
cases based on whether the Tribunal reaches the same conclusion as the RDC. Nevertheless, Tribunal
decisions are frequently informative and illuminating, and the RDC actively reviews them for any learning
points, either about the specific case or about RDC processes and procedures more generally.

During the year, there were three substantive Tribunal decisions, covering liability and sanction, or the
outcome of an authorisation application, on cases decided by the RDC. in two of these cases, which each
concerned action by the Authority to cancel the permissions of a firm to carry on regulated activities,
the firm's reference was struck out as having no reasonable prospect of success. In the other case (a
disciplinary and prohibition case), the Tribunal reached the same conclusion as the RDC. '

The Tribunal also made a decision in a case where.the RDC had refused permission for firms to carry

- ondebt adjusting and debt counselling activities. The firm applied to suspend the effect of those
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° decisions, which otherwise take immediate effect. In this case, the Tribunal refusedto grant the
.suspension. In another case, where the RDC had decided to prohibit an individual who had been
convicted of serious offences of dishonesty, the Tribunal stayed the reference as the individual's
case was being considered by the Criminal Cases Review Commission.

8 RDC cases which were referred to the Tribunal during the year were awaiting a deClS|on on the
reference at the year-end (31 March 2018).

Ongomg case loads
Attheend ofthe period of this review (31 March 2018}, the RDC had 73 ongoing cases:

+ 12 openPanel -Enforcement cases
+ 8 stayed Panel—Enforcement cases (stayed following requests by the Serious Fraud Office)

« 4imminent referrals that had been notified to the RDC (|nclud|ng 3 Panel - Enforcement
cases) .

« 45 Straightforward Enforcement cases

G .
& 2 Superviscry cases
(&) o
% 1 Panel-Authorisations Panel case
-
. <
. % 1 Criminalcase -
2 Lt .
Y de
5]
2.

Membership of the RDC

Thée membership of the RDC is made up of current and recenitly retired financial services
industry practitioners and non-practitioners. Members are appointed for afixed term which is
normally three years, but can be extended to six. There are currently nine practmoners and ten
non-practitioners.® Six members of the Committee, including the Chair, are lawyers® and three
are’accountants.’® The FCA's website gives further details."

RDC members are selected on the basis of their:
« experience of making independent, evidence-based decisions
« work in senior and expert positions in financial services, or.other relevant sectors

« knowledge and understanding of consumers and other users of financial services

This range ofskills and experience is intended to improve the objectivity and balance of the
FCA's decision-rhaking and to help achieve fairness and consistency across cases. - -

'lraj Amiri, Niki Beattie, Kevin Brown, John Callender. Peter Craddoék Chris Cummings, Nick Lord, Stuart Mclntosh and Caroline Ramsay

Tim Parkes. Elizabeth France, Peter Hinchliffe, John Hull, Karen Johnston, Robin Mason, Philip Marsden, Elizabeth Neville , Malcolm Nicholson and
Pauline Wallace

9 Tim Parkes, Peter Hinchliffe. John Hull, Karen Johnston, Philip Marsden and Malcolm Nicholson '
10 Iraj Amiri, Caroline Ramsay, Pauline Wallace )
11 www‘fca‘org.uk/about/committees/rdc-membe?s
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The full RDC meets regularly. The object of these meetings is to: enhance the effectiveness

of the Committee by sharing insight and experience in relation to decided cases, undertake

trainingin relevant technical aspects of regulatron by the FCA and keep members mformed of
~ likely workloads and areas of focus.

We plan to conduct a recruitment exercise during 2018 to enhance the RDC's expertise in

- the banking/corporate finance sector. We will also conS|der whether we need to replace three
members who will retire from the Committee during 2018. We consider the diversity of the
-‘Committee when recruiting new members, as itis important that the Committee reflects the
different sectors of the regulated communijty and consumers.

'Review of the enforcement settlement process

Inits report on enforcement decision-making at the financial services regulators'?, 2'the Treasury
recommended that the RDC (as the FCA's decision-maker in contested cases) should regularly
review the FCA's processes in settled cases. It recommended this review should include seeking
comments from all or a sample of those who have settled cases and speaking with'the relevant
o EMO staff. It also said the RDC should monitor the effectiveness of the recommended changes

& £ to the'settlement process, identify whether there may be settlement process lessons to be

O learned, ahd make géneric public recommendations. The RDC undertook to do this, and to

g publish in the RDC's Annual Review any recommendations fromits review. The first review was

> < lncluded in the RDC's Annual Review for 2016- 2017.

= Similarly to last year, the RDC invited relevant firms or individuals who had settled a disciplinary
Z or prohibition case with EMO during the financial year to take part in a survey to give their views
on the settlement process. We summarise the results of the survey below.

a

The RDC sent surveys to five firms and five individuals, and received responses from two firms.
Considering the low response rate, the RDC has adopted a.cautious approach to drawing
conclusions from what is avery small data-set. The comments below shquld be read with thatin
mind.

The firms that provided answers to the questionnaire said that they had received adequate
information, noting: open lines of communication, regular updates about timescales and the
clarity of the information received. : '

One of the firms, which had requested extra time, was given extensions. Both firms said that '
they had enough time to respond and that settlement negotiations progressed quickly.

The firms stated that the clanty ofthe documentation was good. They believed that FCA staff
conducted themselves well, and that staff of the right level were involved.

On reviewing the responses, the RDC did not identify speaﬂc concerns that would require a .
change to the settlement process.

12 www.gov.uk/governm'ent/upléads/system/upIoaas/attachment_data/ﬁlé/S89063/enforcement_review_response;ﬁn‘al.pdf
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The nexf 12 months

This will see our move to the. FCA's new offices in Stratford: We do not expect this to cause any .
disruption to the RDC's work; indeed, we expect the new facilities and technology which will be avanlable
to us to enhance our ability to deal with cases efficiently.

The FCA made a significant extension to the RDC's remit in the Policy Statement published on 1
February 2017.* As aresult the RDC has recently considered its first partly contested case, where a firm
has agreed certain elements of a case while contesting other elements before the RDC.

The continuing expansion of the FCA's regulatory responsibilities and the impact of the Senior‘Managers' '
* rand Certification Regime are likely to increase the number of cases seen by the RDC over time. '

Otherwise, the RDC expects to see cases reflecting the prlor|t|es setoutin the FCA s Busmess Plan for .
2018/19.

O

National Audi Office

?

13 wwwifca.org.uk/publication/policy/ps17-01.pdf
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The FCA's Environmental Impact

The FCA is committed to good enwronmental practice, including support of the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDG) as part of our overall approach to Corporate Responsibility.

We seek to follow industry best practice in all that we.do and provide value for money (VfM). Effective

environmental management and.prudent use of resources also fits within the remit set by FSMA in so

far as it supports one of the principles of good regulation; to make the most efficient and economic use -
of resources. As a regulator we also have a firm commitment to UN SDG 8 ‘Decent Work and Economic
Growth' to encourage and expand access to banking and financial services for all.

The key focus this past year has been to:
*+ useresources wisely to deliver both environmental and financial benefits

+ make allFCA enjployees aware of their responsibility for ensuring that they understand the
envkironmc)antal management policy

» committo measuring reporting and reducing our impact onthe environment wherever practicable

¢« set obJect;ves and targets for each of our key impacts and review them regularly to ensure that they.
remain achievable, and

. engage our supphers to ensure that they reflect our comm|tments to sound environmental practace
and good corporate responsibility .

The FCA manages its business in an environmentally responsible manner with an on-going focus on
sustainability. This involves careful control over the use of resources and consumables and minimising

“waste. We have made progress through a number of initiatives:

» ' maintained a high rate of recycling at 86% and won the ‘Best Recyder award from our waste service
provider, Paper Round

» achieveda 6% reduction in printing through use of 'Follow Me' and purged printing

« trialled reusable lunchboxes in the staff restaurant and commltted to eliminating smgle use plastics
(SUP) consumablesin 2019

We are moving to a new, more efficient, head quarters in Stratford which will combine our two L.ondon

offices. The building has achieved Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method

 (BREEAM) Excellent rating. We have also invested in new technology which will allow us to work more

flexibly and efficiently. Using tablets in meetings rather than printing and Skype for business to reduce
avoidable travel will have a positive impact on our paper consumptlon and CO2 emussuons :
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Performance Commentary

Plant and Equipment

The FCA has two officesin London and one in Edinburgh: sole occupancy of 25 The North Colonnade
- (25TNC) which accounts for the majority of the FCA's estate two floors of 1. Canada Squaré as a

tenant and one floor of Quayside House in Edinburgh, also as a tenant. X
" We refurbished our 25TNC headquarters in 2008 to improve the building's infrastructure which

reducedthe overall energy consumption from 18m to 12m kWh pa. We are committed to UN SDG 13

'Climate Action’ and seek to reduce our carbon footprint wherever possible. The FCA has par‘mcrpated

inthe Carbon Reduction Commitment since 2010. . RS

During 2017/18 we have again balanced our commitment to sustainable practice with the need to
provide VfM. Therefore we have endeavoured to maintain and improve on performance without
significant investment in our current property portfolio. In November 2018 our lease at 25TNC ends
and the owners will decide the future use of the building. \

We strive for increasing efficiency and reducing energy consumption yéar-on year. However,
opportunities to gain further significant savings in our current premises are limited due to previous-
successful initiatives and our impending move which constrains capital investments.

ffice

. / B
SSustainable Constructlon '
- #ur new office is BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rated It also benefits frorn chilled beam heating and cooling
—._ Jwhich uses less power and is more efficient and envnronmenta“y friendly. A district heating and -
i Fooling system operating in the Olympic Park will provide heated and cooled water. This is more
‘ C:ustarnable and resilient as its primarily powered by biofuel. .

Thisis one of the first buildings in the UK to have a fully integrated triple glazed active window system.
This means that our blinds are integrated with the building management system and activated
through sénsors on the roof which track the sun’s trajectory, light intensity and heat. This has huge
environmental benefits reducing the running costs of heating and cooling.

Rainwater harvesting will be used to flush our toi|ets and will reduce our overall water-consumption.

v

Greenhouse Gas Emissions - ' ~ :
There has been a slight increase in our energy con5urnptzon and refated energy costs. We have offset
our emissions through the CRC. :

us ., - : . ) :
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'FCA staff visit regulated firms across the UK and globally To mlnlmlse the |mpact of our business: travel
" we have a pollcy that encourages sustaunable travel and prlontlses the use of public transport :

Overall there has been adecrease.in UK domestlc and Europe short haul air travel. Long haul S
o international air travel has incréased due to businessdemand. and cabin selection, Business class is
& available to staff who travel'more than 5 hours which. generates a higher CoZ emlssson UK ail travel has

eased sllghtly compared t62017 although Eurostar has shghtly decreased in cornpanson to 2017 and

OInCI’
R oA

the class of cabln is malnly standard : , ,

'1

' ’ 3 - . _
* Corrected flgures for 15/16 and 16/17 data B N " o L | )

Notes
1 CO2e conversion rates calcula ted under the class of average passenger as per guidance on the DEFRA's website for busmess travel.

2 Radlauve forcing (RF)is a measure of the additional environmentalimpact of aviation. Figures are "with RF factors” whichincorporate a 90%

increase in emissions toinclude the effect of radiative forcmg These mclude emissions of nitrous oxides and water vapour when emitted at
LEEEN . \

- high altitude: . oL : . :
3 Flight distance uplift factor—flgures donot mclude the 9% upllft factor., - - ' ' - : n

L4 Excludes travel oooked and then clalmed through exper\se relmbursement except rmleage S 147
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Waste generatlon .

We follow the waste hierarchy (‘reduce, reuse, recycle, recover, disposal’) to lower costs and reduce
environmental impacts. ThIS demonstrates our commitment to UN SDG 12 'Responsible Consumption
and Production'.

There has been an increase in overall waste as we dispose of items ahead of the office move. However,
we remain committed to recycling wherever possible and have recycled 86% of our general (non-
hazardous) waste. This is an increase of 20% since the introduction of ‘Mixed Recycling'. o

We cornitinue to operate a pollcy of zero waste to landfill and to convert organic waste produced in FCA s
kitchens into biogas and liquid fertiliser through aerobic digestion. )

FPaper.Consumption:
# TPrinting -

aOur Follow Me' printing across all multi-functional device printers has continued to be more efficient and
" Zless paper intensive. Printers are configured to black and white and double S|ded by default to ensure the
most efficient use of paper. In 2017/18, we have seen a 6% reduction of overall pnntlng against the prewous
financial year. All printing paper is recyclable and ordered through a sole supplier, Xerox, and priht.le'vels
are continuously monitored and reported. All printer equipment and consumables are dispesed of and/or
recycled by Xerox in accordance with best practice printindustry guidelines .

Our printer paper is made from recycled material and FSC and EU Ecolable wh|ch supports UN SDG 'Life
on Land’and sustainable management of forests.

'Indicators

TN IRART S

sNon: ~financia

{w 5-::%-@“' e
Fin 4
These data does not include the reduced energy consumption from having more environmentally

friendly printers; however, the reduced energy consumption levels are included in the kWh calculation
given earlier.

Purged prmtmg . ‘
‘Follow Me’ printing has saved us 1,685,771 sheets of paperin 2017/2018, the equivalent of 158 trees

_ from purged print jobs. These are print jobs that were sent to the printer but never released to prmt by
the user and so cancelled for printing.

es~""‘“‘°"‘3”'f“\7\l5t*e"if(géﬁ6'ﬁ"s) ¥ CO2 (pounds)F
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Deleted P
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Reprograph|cs
Our staff use the in-house Reprographlcs function for any specialist prmtlng or photocopying over 100
sheets.

R A R,

’ﬁnanclal in

' Reprographlcs has expenenced a shght increase in A4 paper consumptlon and a slight decrease in A3

paper consumptlon during this current period.

Water Usage !
The 25TNC headquarters has reduced cistern capacity from 9 litres to 6 litres and uses sensors to
reduce the amount of water usedin the toilets.

zo17 B 2616

The FCA supports UN SDG 14 ‘Life Below Water’ by ssgnlflcantly reducing the chemicals used for cleaning,
replacing them with Stabilized Aqueous Ozone (SAQ). This is a cleaning agent made from tap water which safely
ufplacmg traditional chemical cleaners, deodorizers and sanitizers. This method of cleaning means less chemucals
&are released into the water system . Y

o
=
o
=
< .
.g
-
5}

ustainable Procurement

Z'he FCA's Supplier Environmental, D|ver5|ty and Inclusion and Social Policy Statement supports UN SDG
12 'Responsible Consumption and Production’. It requires suppliers to meet our commitment to sound
environmental practice. It encourages them to develop and supply goods and servicesthat help improve
both our and their environmental performance.

Our catering provider has the Sustainable Restaurant Association (SRA) Three Star Champion Status
and adopts the SRA three-pillars of sustainability. Food is sourced locally, regionally and seasonally to '
help support UK producers. Seafood, including caught and farmed fish and shellfish, follows the Marine
Conservation Society's ‘Good fish guide'.
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